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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of EGL Holdings Company Limited and its subsidiaries, |
hereby present to you the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

With the continuing impact of the coronavirus disease 2019
pandemic and its variants, most of the Group’s travel business
has had almost zero revenue since mid-March 2020, although
there has been some contribution from hotels, local tours and
retail business, the Group inevitably recorded significant losses.
During the Year, the Group recorded total revenue of approximately
HK$44.6 million (2020: HK$249.8 million), representing a
significant decrease of 82.2% compared with last year, and the
gross loss amounted to approximately HK$29.2 million (2020:
HK$12.8 million), representing an increase of 128.0% compared
with last year. During the Year, loss attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$155.6 million (2020: HK$108.8
million). For the details of our business performance, please refer
to the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
below.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year (2020: HK$NIil).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For our travel related business, customer desires to travel persist
although outbound travel has been at a standstill. During the
Year, the Group continued to develop new tourism products and
introduced local one-day package tours with different thematic
elements, all of which were very popular with our customers.
Among them, the one-day tour to the East Dam of the High
Island Reservoir in Sai Kung and the one-day tour to Tai O on
Lantau Island were well-received with direct coach bus rides from
the city to the tour scenic spots, seafood banquet at Michelin
restaurant and vegetarian banquet at Po Lin Monastery. At the
same time, the development of our Staycation products is under
close co-operation with hotels of different ratings and theme
features in Hong Kong, to innovate for different seasonal and
theme settings, in order to diversify our products to appeal to
the needs of different customers. In addition, the Group has
collaborated with the Japan National Tourism Organization and its
Tourism Department to launch a series of Themed Skycation in
the first half of the Year, and also worked continuously with two
cruise lines, Dream Cruises and Royal Caribbean International,
to launch Seacation tours. In order to provide cruise customers
with an understanding of onboard services and fare basis, as well
as to allay concerns about hygiene conditions on board vessels,
the Group and our partner companies organized open days and
seminars on the various fun facilities, special meals and the latest
epidemic prevention arrangements on board, so that customers
can enjoy the cruise free of worries.

For our sale of merchandises business, although the Group’s online
shopping platform “EGL Market” has multiple competitors in the
same market, the online platform maintains a competitive edge as
it regularly assesses market changes, introduces new products,
selects agent products and searches for more products to meet
customer needs, and also reviews the popularity of products to
make special promotions or to enhance marketing. At the same
time, in order to further expand our business with the brick-and-
mortar stores, we opened our first store in Luk Yeung Galleria in
Tsuen Wan in the second quarter, and opened a pop-up store in
MOKO in Mongkok and another one in Metroplaza in Kwai Fong
in the fourth quarter. These stores bring face to face contact with
our customers for their needs with increased interaction, mutually
complementing between online and offline services, encouraging
customers after shopping online to pick up their purchases at the
physical stores to save the Group's transportation costs and to
induce in-store customers to shop online again.

20214E% Annual Report 2021 007
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In late December, the Group participated in the “19th Hong
Kong Food Festival” for the first time. During the 5-day festival,
in addition to selling Japanese snacks, frozen meat and fruits,
Malaysian specialty souvenirs and a series of popular products
from regions including Taiwan and Macau at venue discount
price, the Group also unconventionally promoted our one-day
local tours, Staycation accommodation and Seacation tours.
With the proactive and active efforts of our staff and the colorful
booth design, the Group’s booth naturally became the center
of attention. Other booth staff and customers have praised the
Group’s enthusiasm and vitality, and gave us immense support
and encouragement.

For our hotel business, although hotels around the world have
been affected by the severe pandemic since the beginning of
2020, the Group still witnessed progress. The construction of
Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel located in Okinawa
was completed in October 2020, and the hotel officially
commenced operation in December of the same year. With
superior location and overall acclaimed services, the ranking of the
hotel ascended into the top 10 within a short period in the chart
of Okinawa hotels on Japanese internet searches. Furthermore,
the hotel has a unique design, in which local natural materials,
culture, history and modern elements delicately blend together
and perfectly showcase a new style of urban resort. For this hotel
design project, the designing company has won the honors of
“Honorable Mention” presented by DNA Paris Design Awards
2021 and “Grand Prize” presented by K-Design Award 2021, the
international design competition sponsored by Korea and Superb
score of 9.2 by Hotel.com.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

Vaccination is an important measure for Hong Kong to return to
normal social activities, and for inbound and outbound tourism.
The Group actively encouraged employees to inoculate with the
COVID-19 vaccines, by offering transportation allowances and
paid leaves. | myself have completed the three-dose vaccination
in early November 2021, for the protection of myself, my family
and the community. In addition, the Group launched “EGL
Tours COVID-19 Vaccination Incentive Scheme Lucky Draw” to
encourage Hong Kong residents to inoculate with COVID-19
vaccines as soon as possible. The lucky draw was held and the
result was announced in mid-September 2021.
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In order to seize the opportunity under the “Consumption Voucher
Scheme” launched by the Government, the Group has offered
different ways of electronic payment in support of the public’s
preferential use of the consumption vouchers, thus promoting the
Group’s business expansion, stimulating sales at “EGL Market”
online platform and brick-and-mortar stores, and strengthening
the image of the Group’s brand with the public. It is expected
that under the effective control of the COVID-19 pandemic and
the future reopening of Hong Kong’s border with Mainland China,
the “Consumption Voucher Scheme” would enhance the public’s
desire to travel and give impetus to the recovery of tourism
industry.

For the sustainability of the environment and the community in
which our businesses are operated, the Group works hard towards
uncovering various innovations for green office management
measures, and accelerates the implementation of energy-saving
measures in our business operation. During the pandemic, the
Group strengthened the implementation of its energy-saving
measures that could reduce energy consumption, such as
reducing fluorescent lighting in the office that are beyond adequate
lighting purposes, shortening the length of lighting in public areas
of offices and recycling stationery. These measures could save
costs and also help reduce the consumption of natural resources.
At the same time, a series of epidemic prevention measures were
implemented to protect employees and customers, including
regular cleaning and disinfection of branches and office premises,
provision of supplies for epidemic prevention and control in all
office locations and regular issuance of epidemic prevention
information to employees. Furthermore, the Group participates
in the “Anti-Epidemic Hygiene Measures Certification Scheme”
organised by the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (HKQAA),
and is committed to the epidemic prevention measures required
by the certification scheme. Under the scheme with continuous
review by HKQAA, the Group has raised the awareness of
epidemic prevention and implemented standardized hygiene
measures to assure the safety of our employees and customers
and the health of our community.

Amid the pandemic, it is impossible to organise large-scale
recreational activities for employees. However, for the sake of
physical and mental health of employees, the Group continued
to organise trainings and recreational activities in small groups in
compliance with the government’s epidemic prevention guidelines.
These activities have helped employees towards self-enrichment,
achieving their work-life balance and relieving emotional pressure
under tension of the pandemic.

20214E% Annual Report 2021 009
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BUSINESS PROSPECT

The sale of merchandises business of “EGL Market” has shown
satisfactory performance, and will remain as a focus of the Group
even after recovery of the tourism segment. It will be developed
into the third major business of the Group in addition to our
tourism and hotel businesses, to add surging power to the
Group’s businesses. Besides, as the tourism business has yet to
recover, the Group continues to implement cost control initiatives
to improve operating cash flows, including human resource
restructuring, arrangements of unpaid leaves, salary reductions for
some employees and Directors, and seeking rent concessions for
branch premises. Furthermore, the Group will continue to engage
the financial support of banks and related companies, to ensure
adequate working capital.

I would like to extend my sincere gratitude to shareholders,
customers, business partners, the management and all employees
for moving forward together amidst the pandemic, upholding
confidence and offering support to the Group. Even though the
pandemic has had a significant impact on the Group, we are
cautiously optimistic about recovery of the tourism industry,
observant in closely monitoring development of the pandemic
and holding tight to our roles in the society. We are ready to
provide our customers with pleasant tours to the fullest potentials
immediately after the pandemic.

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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GROUP OVERVIEW

Under the adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, most
of the Group’s main businesses have been halted since mid-
March 2020. During the Year, revenue of the Group decreased
to approximately HK$44.6 million (2020: HK$249.8 million),
representing a decrease of 82.2%. Gross loss was approximately
HK$29.2 million (2020: HK$12.8 million), representing an increase
of 128.0%. Loss attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$155.6 million (2020: HK$108.8 million).

Basic loss per share for loss attributable to owners of the
Company for 2021 was HK30.98 cents (2020: HK21.65 cents).
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HEEHE BUSINESS OVERVIEW

AEETEEROERERTE - BEHTES 8B The principal activities of the Group comprise provision of package

MIRTIHEEE QRRGEE RINE  URESB % tours, FIT Products, ancillary travel related products and services

R i R E TS o and sale of merchandises as well as the ownership, development
and management of hotel business.

EESEBDENRRERE (B) /FEFWOT Revenue and gross (loss)/profit from various business categories
for the years are set out as follows:

2021 2020 (& & 751)) (Restated)
% () £ ()
Wz R ERE W s SR ERE
Gross Gross Gross Gross
(loss)/ profit (loss)/ profit
Revenue profit margin  Revenue profit margin
TExT TEx BoE TExT  FExD  Bok
HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$000 HK$'000 %
M&4T Package tours 7,734 1,549 20.0 216,246 13,583 6.3
BEHTERKEERT FIT Products and ancillary travel
AR E SRR related products and services!" 5,234 3,386 64.7 16,701 10,341 61.9
g EY Sale of merchandises" 17,504 3,973 22.7 7,418 1,541 20.8
BIEEE Hotel operation? 14,106 (38,0850  -270.0 9,406  (38,260)  -406.8
e Total® 44,578  (29,177) -65.5 249,771  (12,795) -5.1
M LR FEEHDBEURAEREEZE29 A 8E O Comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the
EERMAMEHTE presentation of the current year and the corresponding ratios were

re-calculated accordingly.
@ HEEHN EEECNERACEENEEUSERE @ In calculating gross profit/loss, cost of sales is re-defined to include

EEESZYE - BERERBITEZBESE D an appropriate portion of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment derived from hotel operation.

20214 % Annual Report 2021 013
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PACKAGE TOURS

Under the adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, most
package tours have been suspended since mid-March 2020.
During the Year, package tours consisted of local tours in Hong
Kong and outbound tours departing from Macau to Mainland
China. Revenue amounted to approximately HK$7.7 million
(2020: HK$216.2 million), representing a decrease of 96.4% and
contributing 17.3% to the Group’s total revenue (2020: 86.6%).
Gross profit amounted to approximately HK$1.5 million (2020:
HK$13.6 million), representing a decrease of 88.6%.

FIT PRODUCTS AND ANCILLARY TRAVEL RELATED
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Revenue from FIT Products and ancillary travel related products
and services mainly represents income from sale of air tickets,
hotel accommodation, public transportation tickets, theme park
admission tickets, commission income from travel insurance
services and handling fees from remittance services provided to
souvenir and merchandise suppliers in Japan.

The sale of merchandises business, composed of the online
shopping platform “EGL Market”, was grouped into this category
in the 2020 annual report. During the Year, this business line was
detached and classified as a separate category, namely “sale of
merchandises”. As a result of re-classification during the VYear,
comparative figures were therefore adjusted accordingly.

During the Year, most sales of FIT Products and ancillary travel
related products and services were brought to a stop because
of travel restrictions and border measures imposed by many
countries. Revenue amounted to approximately HK$5.2 million
(2020: HK$16.7 million), representing a decrease of 68.7% and
contributing to 11.7% to the Group’s total revenue (2020: 6.7%).
Gross profit amounted to approximately HK$3.4 million (2020:
HK$10.3 million), representing a decrease of 67.3%.
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SALE OF MERCHANDISES

To cope with adverse circumstances, the Group launched a
brand-new online shopping platform, “EGL Market”, in 2020 where
souvenir product items around the world are available for customer
self-pickup and delivery services. During the Year, a brick-and-
mortar retail shop in Tsuen Wan and a pop-up store in Mongkok
and another in Kwai Fong respectively were opened. As sale of
merchandises business was detached and classified as a separate
segment during the Year, comparative figures were therefore
adjusted accordingly.

During the Year, revenue amounted to approximately HK$17.5
million (2020: HK$7.4 million), representing an increase of 136.0%
and contributing 39.3% to the Group’s total revenue (2020: 3.0%).
Gross profit amounted to approximately HK$4.0 million (2020:
HK$1.5 million), representing an increase of 157.8%.

HOTEL OPERATION

Osaka Hinode Hotel, the Group’s first hotel, provides quality
hospitality services for guests from all over the world. The hotel
has a capacity of 354 rooms for 691 guests with a hot spring bath
building adjacent to it. Impacted by outbreak of the COVID-19
pandemic, its operation has almost been suspended since mid-
March 2020. The hotel’'s occupancy rate for the Year further
dropped to 1.0% (2020: 8.0%).

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel, the Group’s second
hotel, started its operation in December 2020. It provides quality
hospitality services for guests from all over the world and has a
capacity of 201 rooms for 480 guests with the facilities ranging
from outdoor hot spring to swimming pool. Also impacted by
outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the hotel room occupancy
rate for the Year was 23.2%.

Revenue from hotel operation mainly represents income generated
from letting the hotel rooms. During the Year, the revenue
amounted to approximately HK$14.1 million (2020: HK$9.4
million), representing an increase of 50.0% and contributing to
31.6% to the Group’s total revenue (2020: 3.8%). Gross loss
amounted to approximately HK$38.1 million (2020: HK$38.3
million), representing a decrease of 0.5%.
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Gross profit/loss of hotel operation is re-defined to include
an appropriate portion of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment derived from hotel operation. Comparative figure
and comparative gross profit margin were therefore adjusted
accordingly.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

TEHFLE KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
2021 2020

FEFZEO Gross profit margin® -65.5% -5.1%
KEFIBE Operating profit margin -413.8% -57.1%
e Net profit margin® -349.1% -43.5%
FMEBEX Interest coverage ratio -12.4 {&times -20.4 f&times
B ERIREA Return on total assets® -17.2% -10.3%
FiN/NEIEZFE DN Return on equity attributable to

JFE i 72 75 [O] 3 ZE @ owners of the Company® -125.6% -43.1%
BN EEER Current ratio 0.6 f&time 0.7 f&time
AR L= Gearing ratio

RERRUEEE Total borrowings over total assets 76.6% 64.2%

FEBRUREER Net debts over equity 493.0% 252.3%
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MR RN RMENEH -
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#e
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m Certain comparative figure has been reclassified to conform to the
presentation of the current year and the corresponding ratio was re-
calculated accordingly.

@ Profit/loss in calculation refers to the profit/loss attributable to
owners of the Company.

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

Please refer to the discussion on the Group’s revenue and gross
profit in the sub-section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Business Overview” above.
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SELLING EXPENSES

Frontline employee costs contributed the majority of selling
expenses of the Group. Selling expenses amounted to
approximately HK$29.1 million (2020: HK$38.6 million),
representing a decrease of 24.7%. Although the hotel in Okinawa
started its operation in December 2020, such expenses decreased
because of our Group’s cost-saving actions, including no-pay
leaves, salary reductions and manpower re-structuring.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Employee costs, directors’ remuneration, rent, rates and
management fee and depreciation on property, plant and
equipment contributed the majority of administrative expenses of
the Group. During the Year, administrative expenses are re-defined
to exclude an appropriate portion of depreciation of property, plant
and equipment derived from hotel operation. Comparative figure
was therefore adjusted accordingly. Also, administrative expenses
of approximately HK$1.3 million in year 2020 as disclosed in note
8 in the consolidated financial statements are re-defined to be
other operating expenses in order to confirm with current year
presentation.

Administrative expenses amounted to approximately HK$103.6
million (2020: HK$103.3 million), representing an increase of 0.3%.
Although our Group has implemented various cost-saving actions,
such expenses slightly increased because the hotel in Okinawa
started its operation in December 2020.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other operating expenses amounted to approximately HK$33.5
million (2020: HK$1.3 million). The increase of approximately
HK$32.2 million was mainly due to the written off of prepayments
for booking aircraft seats with an airline in the amount of
approximately HK$33.5 million in the Year.
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FINANCE COSTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, imputed interests of
approximately HK$1.0 million (equivalent to approximately
JPY13.3 million), incurred on the bank borrowings for construction
of Okinawa Hinode Resort and Hot Spring Hotel, were capitalised
into construction in progress. Upon the completion of the hotel
building in October 2020, these imputed interests were transferred
thereupon to property, plant and equipment. No imputed interests
were recorded during the Year.

Finance costs of approximately HK$4.7 million (2020: HK$4.0
million after capitalisation of the above-mentioned imputed
interests) was incurred on the bank borrowings which were used
to finance the construction and decoration of hotel buildings and
hot spring bath building, acquisition of travel buses and daily
operations of travel related business.

As at 31 December 2020, three loans of HK$200.0 million in
total from a related company, Great Port, which were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand, were classified as current
liabilities. On 18 March 2021, Great Port issued three waiver
letters with respect to the demand clause in each of the loan
agreement. As such these loans became payable on 1 January
2026 and were reclassified as non-current liabilities. The third loan
of the three loans was changed to interest bearing in accordance
with a supplemental agreement on 1 April 2021. Furthermore, two
additional unsecured and interest-bearing loans of HK$40.0 million
and HK$80.0 million were obtained from Great Port in April 2021
and in November 2021 respectively. These two loans are also
repayable on 1 January 2026. Based on discounted cash flows,
finance costs of approximately HK$7.8 million (2020: Nil) were
incurred by these five loans during the Year.

Following the adoption of HKFRS 16 “Leases” by the Group on 1
January 2019, finance costs incurred on lease liabilities during the
Year amounted to approximately HK$1.9 million (2020: HK$2.6
million).
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INCOME TAX CREDIT

The income tax credit of the Group during the Year amounted
to approximately HK$42.9 million (2020: HK$39.9 million). Its
increase of approximately HK$3.0 million was mainly resulted from
the increase in deferred tax credit.

INTEREST COVERAGE RATIO

Interest coverage ratio of the Group for the Year was recorded at
-12.4 times (2020: -20.4 times). The decrease in negative interest
coverage ratio was mainly resulted from the increase in operating
loss before finance costs and taxation being greater than the
increase in finance costs.

Interest coverage ratio is defined to be dividing profit/loss before
finance costs and taxation by finance costs.

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN, OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN
AND NET PROFIT MARGIN

For the changes in gross profit margin, operating profit margin and
net profit margin, please refer to the factors already discussed in
the sub-section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Business Overview” above.

In calculating gross profit/loss, cost of sales is re-defined to
include an appropriate portion of depreciation of property, plant
and equipment derived from hotel operation. Comparative figure of
gross profit margin was therefore re-calculated accordingly.

Operating profit/loss is defined to be profit/loss before finance
costs and taxation for calculating operating profit margin.

CURRENT RATIO

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current ratio was 0.6
time (as at 31 December 2020: 0.7 time). Although there was a
decrease in loans from a related company of HK$200.0 million
because such loans have been re-classified to non-current
liabilities in the Year, the effect was offset by an increase in short
term portion of bank borrowings and a decrease in deposit,
prepayments and other receivables.
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%m/
(R
Increase/
2021 2020 (Decrease)
FHET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B2 — B EN Gearing ratio - Total borrowings
[EINEE=- over total assets
RITER Bank borrowings 420,118 476,796 (56,678)
BENTER Loans from a related company 272,874 200,000 72,874
WBIETR (Hfata) Total borrowings (note a) 692,992 676,796 16,196
HmEE Total assets 905,115 1,053,511 (148,396)
12.4
EEPES
percentage
BRLEE Gearing ratio 76.6% 64.2% points
BIREE — B EFEBRLUREREE  Gearing ratio - Net debts over equity
R (Hi5ta) Total borrowings (note a) 692,992 676,796 16,196
HE&®E Lease liabilities 47,902 59,288 (11,386)
HBER W) Total debts (note b) 740,894 736,084 4,810
B RTERREFERE Less: Cash at banks and on hand (130,133) (98,787) (31,346)
610,761 637,297 (26,536)
fesRiEs (Mztc) Equity (note ¢) 123,897 252,583 (128,686)
240.7
(EEP g
percentage
BB E Gearing ratio 493.0% 252.3% points
HizE - Notes:
(a) MRERBIFERTERKBEELRDER (a)  Total borrowings comprise bank borrowings and loans from a related
company.
b) HBEFSERTET BELDERKIEEERG- (b)  Total debts comprise bank borrowings, loans from a related

company and lease liabilities.

© RERDEEMERNABDERABGERKREE- ©

the Company.
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Equity comprises all capital and reserves attributable to owners of
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The increase in gearing ratio — total borrowings over total assets
was mainly attributable to the decrease in deposits, prepayments
and other receivables of approximately HK$78.8 million and
the decrease in property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$123.9 million because of depreciation and lower exchange
rate for conversion as at current year end.

The increase in gearing ratio — net debts over equity was mainly
attributable to the decrease in equity of approximately HK$128.7
million.

RETURN ON TOTAL ASSETS AND RETURN ON EQUITY
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMFANY

Return on total assets and return on equity attributable to owners
of the Company during the Year were -17.2% (2020: -10.3%) and
-125.6% (2020: -43.1%) respectively. The increase in negative
return on total assets and negative return on equity were mainly
due to the fact that the Group suffered from a greater loss for the
Year and the total assets and equity decreased accordingly.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

Regarding the construction of Osaka Hinode Hotel completed in
October 2017, the carrying amount of the bank borrowings as at
31 December 2021 amounted to approximately JPY2,837.2 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$190.5 million) (as at 31 December
2020: JPY2,836.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$211.9
million)).

For the construction of hot spring bath building in Osaka
completed in March 2019, the carrying amount of the bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2021 amounted to JPY446.8
million (equivalent to approximately HK$30.0 million) (as at 31
December 2020: JPY446.7 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$33.3 million)).

With respect to the construction of Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot
Spring Hotel completed in October 2020, the carrying amount
of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2021 amounted to
approximately JPY2,800.4 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$188.1 million) (as at 31 December 2020: JPY2,913.9 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$217.7 million)).
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With regard to the acquisition of five travel buses in 2017, the
carrying amount of the bank borrowing as at 31 December
2021 amounted to approximately JPY51.9 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$3.5 million) (as at 31 December 2020: JPY51.8
million (equivalent to approximately HK$3.9 million)).

In respect of the bank borrowing withdrawn to meet the needs of
working capital for travel related business operation, the carrying
amount as at 31 December 2021 amounted to HK$8.0 million (as
at 31 December 2020: HK$10.0 million).

Three unsecured and interest-free loans of HK$200.0 million in
total were obtained from the related company, Great Port, in 2020.
With the repayment on demand clause in the loan agreements,
these loans were classified as current liabilities as at 31 December
2020. On 18 March 2021, Great Port issued three waiver letters
in respect of demand clauses and thus those loans have been
reclassified as non-current liabilities thereafter. Among these
three loans, the first and second loans remained as unsecured
and interest-free and the carrying amount was approximately
HK$132.1 million as at 31 December 2021 (as at 31 December
2020: HK$160.0 million). The third loan with supplemental
agreement signed on 1 April 2021 became unsecured and
interest-bearing. The carrying amount was approximately HK$35.1
million as at 31 December 2021 (as at 31 December 2020:
HK$40.0 million).

Moreover, both the fourth loan of HK$40.0 million and the fifth loan
of HK$80.0 million were granted by Great Port and withdrawn on
1 April 2021 and 29 November 2021 respectively. Both loans are
unsecured, interest-bearing and repayable on 1 January 2026. The
carrying amount of these two loans amounted to approximately
HK$105.7 million in total as at 31 December 2021 (as at 31
December 2020: Nil).

Other than the above, the Group financed its operation with its
own capital, with the total equity attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
HK$123.9 million (as at 31 December 2020: HK$252.6 million). As
at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash at banks and on hand
amounted to approximately HK$130.1 million (as at 31 December
2020: HK$98.8 million). Cash at banks and on hand were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar accounting for approximately
77.8% (as at 31 December 2020: 55.8%), JPY accounting for
approximately 15.6% (as at 31 December 2020: 31.0%), United
States dollar accounting for approximately 0.5% (as at 31
December 2020: 3.8%). Euro accounting for approximately 1.1%
(as at 31 December 2020: 1.5%), and Renminbi accounting for
approximately 0.6% (as at 31 December 2020: 2.1%).
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, property, plant and equipment of
Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel, Osaka Hinode Hotel
together with the hot spring bath building, and travel buses,
and certain pledged bank balances in Japan of approximately
HK$500.3 million in total (as at 31 December 2020: HK$565.9
million) were pledged for the bank borrowings in Japan as
mentioned in the sub-section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Financial Review — Capital Structure, Liquidity and
Finance Resources”.

Also, as at 31 December 2021, the Group had pledged bank
deposits of approximately HK$8.3 million (as at 31 December
2020: HK$8.6 million). Excluding those pledged bank balances in
Japan mentioned above, majority of the pledged bank deposits
were pledged to certain licensed banks in Hong Kong and Macau
to secure letters of guarantees issued to certain third parties on
behalf of the Group. Together with corporate guarantee provided
by the Company and undertakings provided by the certain
executive Directors to maintain the control over the management
and business of the Group, the Group’s total guarantees
amounted to approximately HK$14.0 million (as at 31 December
2020: HK$16.9 million), which were mainly issued to the Group's
suppliers, such as air transport association, airlines and hotels in
order to guarantee the Group’s trade payable balances due to the
suppliers.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other pledge of assets
as at 31 December 2021 (as at 31 December 2020: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND FUTURE CAPITAL
EXPENDITURES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$0.8 million (as at 31 December 2020: HK$1.0
million) to acquire property, plant and equipment for its travel
related business.

For future capital expenditures other than above-mentioned, the
Group currently intends to finance such expenses by existing
internal resources.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Directors considered that there were no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2021 (as at 31 December 2020: Nil).
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FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RISK AND
TREASURY POLICIES

Foreign currency exchange risk exposure is encountered by the
Group to the extent that receipt from customers and payments
to suppliers may not be reconciled, subject to prevailing foreign
currency fluctuations. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
one floating to fixed interest rate swap contract with a bank
in Japan to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk and cash
flow changes of its floating-rate bank borrowings. Other than
the aforesaid swap contract, the Group did not rely on hedging
arrangements. The Group had implemented foreign exchange risk
management procedures to closely monitor the risk exposure. The
procedures were established to prevent carrying excessive cash
balance in foreign currencies, of which the purchase amounts
were limited to the corresponding costs of travel elements based
on estimated sales amount for one week, to cover the foreign
exchange risk exposure in connection. The objective of our foreign
exchange risk management procedures is to cover the foreign
exchange risk exposure in connection with those costs of travel
elements denominated in foreign currencies to be incurred for one
week. The procedures do not allow us to exercise any judgement
over the future direction of foreign exchange fluctuation and are
strict procedural steps for our operational staff to follow. The
Group will review the procedures from time to time and make
appropriate changes when necessary. Other than the transactional
foreign currency exchange risk, assets and liabilities of the
group entities are mainly denominated in its respective functional
currency. The Group’s treasury management policy is to place
surplus cash into bank deposits with licensed banks mainly in
Hong Kong, Macau and Japan. Also, working capital are centrally
managed to ensure proper and efficient collection and deployment
of funds, and sufficient funds to settle liabilities when they fall due.
Net exchange loss of approximately HK$2.7 million was recorded
during the Year (2020: net exchange gain HK$5.2 million).
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND EMPLOYEE'’S
REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total workforce of
254 employees (as at 31 December 2020: 482), of which 22
(as at 31 December 2020: 182) were full-time escort guides.
Employees’ remuneration packages are determined with reference
to the market information and individual performance and will
be reviewed on a regular basis. The remuneration policy will
be reviewed by the Board from time to time. Emoluments of
Directors are determined by the remuneration committee of the
Board after considering the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparing with market conditions. In addition to
basic remuneration, the Group also provides medical insurance,
provident funds and other benefits in kind to the employees.
To intensify personnel training and development, the Group
provides a series of employee training programmes, which aims
to accelerate professional growth and identify competences and
talents of diversified teams. High potential staff will be groomed
and developed intensively according to the promotion plan
towards the management level. To attract and retain the suitable
personnel for the development of the Group, the Group has
adopted a share option scheme since November 2014. Pursuant
to the share option scheme, share options may be granted to
eligible employees of the Group as a long-term incentive. No
share options were granted, cancelled, lapsed or exercised
during the Year (2020: Nil). During 2020 and the Year, due to the
adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, no-pay leaves and
salary reductions have been arranged for employees. Manpower
has been re-structured. Other than that, there was no significant
change in the remuneration policies, bonus, share option scheme
and training scheme of the Group (2020: Nil).
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OUTLOOK

The management of the Group will continuously monitor the
travel restrictions and traveller quarantine arrangements. It will
continue to explore additional sources of income and to implement
various cost control measures, including restructuring the
workforce, enhancing staff cost saving measures and seeking rent
concessions from landlords. Also, during 2020 and 2021, loans
in total of HK$320.0 million have been withdrawn from the related
company, Great Port. And Great Port agreed to arrange further
credit facilities of not less than HK$100.0 million upon request by
the Group until 30 June 2023. The Board is of the view that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations
in 2022 and first half of 2023.

Depending on the duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and
continuing negative impact on economic activities, the Group
might experience further negative result and liquidity restraints and
incur additional impairments on its assets in 2022. Nevertheless,
the exact impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2022 and
subsequent financial periods cannot be predicted.

We are well-positioned in the market on providing quality services
and products. We are confident in Hong Kong’s economic
recovery and strengthen ourselves to regain our momentum step
by step and to rekindle Hong Kong people’s interest for the return
of tourism after getting through this hard time.
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HE12BNALEE
For the year ended 31 December
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
TET AT FAEx FTET TET
%5 Results HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wi Revenue
HRATE Package tours 7,734 216,246 1,467,725 1,496,863 1,457,902
BHTERREE FIT Products and ancillary travel
HRATHERA E R R AR ) related products and services 5,234 16,701 188,828 212,527 164,102
B RiHE O Sale of merchandises (" 17,504 7,418 - - -
BEEE Hotel operation 14,106 9,406 71,775 67,224 2,580
44,578 249771 1,728,328 1,776,614 1,624,584
E () /# @ Gross (loss)/profit @
RITE Package tours 1,549 13,583 191,656 189,908 209,661
BHTERREE FIT Products and ancillary travel
IRITHE R E B R RS O related products and services " 3,386 10,341 68,770 75,461 79,160
B miHE O Sale of merchandises (" 3,973 1,541 - - -
BEEEY Hotel operation @ (38,085) (38,260) 15,959 21,009 (1,694)
(29,177) (12,795) 276,385 286,378 287,127
Hi A a8 35 Other income, gains and losses, net 11,313 14,452 4,479 9,590 14,096
ELHEAREE Share of results of associates (513) (1,053) 2,198 3,081 2,148
REERRRE 2 RE Impairment on interest in an associate - - - - (3,839)
Htnf &M Other operating expenses (33,452) (1,277) - - -
BB A K PR RA] (Loss)/Profit before finance costs
(518) /aF! and income tax (184,479) (142,607) 18,790 36,857 38,188
MEMAK Finance costs (14,854) (6,992) (7,042) (3,913) (370)
FisiiER/ B Income tax credit/(expense) 42,908 39,925 2,877 2,120 (9,314)
EE (58) /58 (Loss)/Profit for the year (156,425) (109,674) 14,625 35,064 28,504
FERER Loss/(Profit) attributable to
LB/ (7)) non-controlling interests 790 914 (624) (247) 55
EREHEEA (Loss)/Profit attributable to
Bk (§598) /& Al owners of the Company (155,635) (108,760) 14,001 34,817 28,559
SREE Per share data
Sk (58) /B (Loss)/Earnings per share
—EARRES (B)e - Basic and diluted (HK cents) © (30.98) (21.65) 2.79 6.93 5.68
B Financial ratios
EfxO Gross profit margin @ -65.5% -5.1% 16.0% 16.1% 17.7%
REFIEEO Operating profit margin © -413.8% -57.1% 1.1% 2.1% 2.4%
FHE Net profit margin @ -349.1% -43.5% 0.8% 2.0% 1.8%
FEBEXO Interest coverage ratio © -12.4ftimes  -20.4f3times ~ 2.7f3times  9.4fZtimes  103.21Ztimes
REEDIREN Return on total assets -17.2% -10.3% 1.3% 3.8% 3.4%
BmOHRE Return on equity “ -125.6% -43.1% 4.0% 9.8% 8.5%
TEEE Current ratio 0.6f&time 0.7{3time  1.1f3times  1.3(Ztimes  1.6{3times
Y Gearing ratio
—RETRNREEO - Total borrowings over total assets © 76.6% 64.2% 34.1% 29.6% 29.7%
—FEBRURERER O - Net debts over equity © 493.0% 252.3% 66.9%  FEENA  TEENA
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As the sale of merchandises business was classified as a separate
segment in current year, comparative figures were therefore adjusted
accordingly.

Gross profit/loss of hotel operation is re-defined to include an
appropriate portion of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
derived from hotel operation. Comparative gross profit/loss and
comparative gross profit margin were therefore adjusted accordingly.

Operating profit/loss in calculation is defined to be profit/loss before
finance costs and taxation.

Profit/loss in calculation is defined to be profit/loss attributable to
owners of the Company.

Interest coverage ratio is defined to be dividing profit/loss before
finance costs and taxation by finance costs.

Gearing ratio:

Total borrowings comprise bank borrowings and loans from a
related company

- Net debts comprise bank borrowings, loans from a related
company and lease liabilities less cash at banks and on hand

- Equity comprises all capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the Company

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HKS$NIl).
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As at 31 December
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
FET FET FHET FET FHET
BEREE Assets and Liabilities HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$O000  HK$'000
mEE Total assets 905,115 1,053,511 1,091,880 912,476 845,660
RN =RE Total liabilities (782,821) (801,878)  (738,859)  (554,325)  (506,699)
T 4a%R Total equity 122,294 251,633 353,021 358,151 338,961
STABEEDN Bank borrowings included in
RITER total liabilities (420,118)  (476,796)  (372,875)  (269,638)  (250,931)
FIEABIEM Loans from a related company (272,874)  (200,000) - - -
HEiEEE Total equity
RABEB A Equity attributable to
LR owners of the Company 123,897 252,583 350,577 355,015 336,154
FEERER Non-controlling interests (1,603) (950) 2,444 3,136 2,807

122,294 251,633 353,021 358,151 338,961
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ERENREAFEZEETTRERKEZILZSGITFE  The Directors submit herewith their report together with the
wKo audited consolidated financial statements for the Year.

TEER PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

AT ZETBEEARETR ARATMBAT ZE The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
BEBHNEEMEBBRERMEEI4 principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Al R EEE DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

R2021F12831H » KA AT Z o HDIRHEBEAZTHT  As at 31 December 2021, distributable reserves of the Company
(20204 : £944,000,0008 7T) © amounted to HK$Nil (2020: approximately HK$44.0 million).
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2021 are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 86 to 213 of this
annual report. The Directors did not declare any dividend during
the Year and the Directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the Year (2020: HK$NIil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion of the Group’s future business development are set
out in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 10 and the
sub-sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis
— Business Overview” on pages 13 to 16 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Outlook” on page 26 of this annual
report respectively.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Certain principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group may
affect its business, operating results and financial conditions,

including:

()

(1)

OCCURRENCE OF NATURAL DISASTERS,
ACTS OR THREATS OF TERRORISM, WARS,
TRAVEL RELATED ACCIDENTS, OUTBREAK
OF CONTAGIOUS DISEASES OR OTHER
CATASTROPHIC EVENTS

The demand for the Group’s travel related products, services
and hotel accommodations may be materially and adversely
affected by natural disasters, acts or threats of terrorism,
wars, travel related accidents, outbreak of contagious
diseases (including COVID-19) or other catastrophic events.
Such events may significantly and adversely affect customer
sentiments and demand for travel related products, services
and hotel accommodations to the affected destinations or
for travel activities in general. The occurrence and timing of
such events cannot be predicted or controlled by the Group
and may have significant and adverse impact on its assets,
business operations and operating results, particularly if the
Group is, or is perceived to be, not reacting appropriately
in the wake of any such event. Further description of the
impact of the COVID-19 on the Group’s operations are set
out in note 2(b) and note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements and the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to
10 and the “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
12 to 26 of this annual report respectively.

CHANGE IN ECONOMIC CONDITIONS OF MAJOR
MARKETS

The Group’s business is based in Hong Kong and Macau
and its revenue is mainly derived from the sale of travel
related products and services in Hong Kong and Macau. Any
economic downturn or recession in Hong Kong or Macau
could lead to decline in demand for the Group’s products or
services and its overall business and operating results may
be materially and adversely affected.
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(i) CHANGE IN ECONOMIC, SOCIAL OR POLITICAL
CONDITIONS AND LAWS AND REGULATIONS
RELATED TO JAFAN

The business and operating results of the Group might be
adversely affected if there is any material adverse change in
the economic, social or political situations relating to Japan,
including its foreign relationship with other Asian countries,
or laws and regulations, including building regulations and
health and safety regulations or if there are any serious
natural disasters or disastrous accidents occurring in Japan,
which may adversely impact customer demand for travel
related products and services of the Group related to Japan
and as well as the hotel accommodations in Japan.

(iv)  HIGHLY COMPETITIVE HOSPITALITY INDUSTRY IN
JAFPAN

Osaka Hinode Hotel and Okinawa Hinode Resort &
Hot Spring Hotel, which are located in Osaka and
Okinawa respectively, might face competition from other
accommodation options in Japan currently existing or
which may come into operation in the future. The success
of the Group’s hotels operation will depend on its ability
to compete in aspects such as room rates, quality of
accommodation, service level and convenience of location.

Further description of possible capital risks and financial risks
facing by the Group are set out in note 38 and note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements and the sub-section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Foreign Currency
Exchange Risk and Treasury Policies” on page 24 of this annual
report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the “Five Year
Financial Summary” on pages 27 to 30 and the sub-section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review”
on pages 16 to 25 of this annual report respectively. Particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the Year, if any, can also be found in the above sections
of this annual report and notes to the consolidated financial
statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and has implemented certain policies to minimise
the impact on the environment caused by its business activities.
The Group has implemented internal recycling program on a
continuous basis for consumables such as toner, cartridges and
paper to minimise the operation impact on the environment and
natural resources. Recycled papers have also been used as
printing materials. The Group also implemented energy saving
practices in offices and branch premises, where applicable. To the
extent practicable, the Group completed the upgrade of electricity
systems to achieve the energy saving to workplace. The Board is
of the opinion that the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in all
material respects during the Year. The Group endeavours to refine
the approach to addressing its environmental, social and ethical
responsibilities along with improving its corporate governance and
should generate greater value for all of its stakeholders including
its shareholders, employees, customers, and suppliers as well as
the communities.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The “Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2021” of the
Company prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing
Rules to be published at the same time as this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Group provides a
fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity to its staff, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings and
development resources to the employees so that they can keep
abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry
and, at the same time, improve their performance and self
fulfillment in their positions.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide products and services
which satisfy the needs and requirements of the customers.
The Group enhances its customer relationship by continuous
interaction with customers to gain insight on the changing market
demand for different products and services so that the Group can
respond proactively. The Group has also established procedures
in handling customers’ feedbacks and complaints to ensure
customers’ opinions are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner.

The Group maintains sound business relationship with its
suppliers and service providers, including land, airlines and
hotel operators, globally. In order to have a better and close
monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the Group’s management
conducts performance review regularly targeting the Group’s major
suppliers and service providers, and communicates with them for

rectification and improvements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years are set out on pages
27 to 30 of this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

LIST OF PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2021, details of the properties owned by the
Group are as follows:

A & BEE
i ESi BmE g
kY] fi & EHEDL AR (FEHK) (FHHK) RERR
Approximate Approximate
Percentage Aggregate Gross Floor
Interest in Available Site Area Area Existing
Name Location the Property Rooms (sq.m.) (sq.m.) Use
KIREDF BIE BARKRRFAARS 100% 354 1,602.07 9,883.83 B
REEEXER-—TH
2FE13/K%2E33
Osaka Hinode Hotel 2-13 and 2-33, Hotel
Ebisunishi, 1-Chome, Naniwa-Ku,
Osaka-Shi, Osaka-Fu, Japan
BROEFEBABR BARKRRAARS 100% 16 266.01 1,008.33 RRA
REEEZERA—TE
%31 K 2E32
Hinode Deep-water Hot Spring 2-31 and 2-32, Hot spring bath
Ebisunishi, 1-Chome, Naniwa-Ku,
Osaka-Shi, Osaka-Fu, Japan
HBEOX BRERBE BAHEHE T 100% 201 2,327.89 6,296.21 BIE
WE=TH

Okinawa Hinode Resort &
Hot Spring Hotel

348-1+3463505:353-6
348-1, 346, 350 and 353-6,

3-Chome, Makishi,

Naha City, Okinawa, Japan

Hotel
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EFEERRMER
RAEE AEERAAES 2 BELBEEAEREE

FEEADIB0% °

AEETEHBENAFEMGRBEIOLENT

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the share capital of the Company
during the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to HK$NIl (2020: HK$20,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers represent less than 30% of the
Group’s total turnover.

The percentages of purchases for the Year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

LARER
HATRRERE

BB DL
Approximate
Percentage of
the Group’s Total

Purchases
RAMER The largest supplier 3.2%
AARMEEEH Five largest suppliers in aggregate 10.1%

MEEMN BEEF HEEHBANEIMNEES
FIMBEEAABEEITRAS WU LZRER  REAFE
BAETERERAERE R NHEHNEMEE
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As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any interest during the Year in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.
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et E
HERUL

BEEBERMAE 108K TEERRBFRE L
ERN=ZDZ—EFNUHEAHLIF=N=EE
AR EBALR =22 —NESABNESERE
RE-BEESLEFRAEIE=_FHERE R -HEKF
BEZHMERERE LREEEETRNESZELORE
HERZESF HUABE—2EF LRIHKE—AH
BEEME MEMBANEEREE BRIFRERT
ERWE) RIEFAEREEEF -HIL Raldl
TENFEI LT REEHITERN2022F RRBF
ARELRE UTEERBEEE-

EEREREEBZEERBN

RAREHE EENAEESREEBZEBEGN
BN AN FEIREB7IET6HE ©

DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)

Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

Ms. Yuen Ho Yee (appointed on 28 May 2021)

Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon (appointed on 28 May 2021)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric
Ms. Wong Lai Ming

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years. Any Directors
to retire shall be those who have been the longest in office since
their last re-election or appointment but as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)
be determined by lot. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Accordingly, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun and
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric will retire from office and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the 2022 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group as at the date of this report are set out on pages 73 to
76 of this annual report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant
statutes for the benefit of the Directors (including former Directors)
of the Company. The permitted indemnity provisions are provided
for in the Articles of Association and in the directors and officers
liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential
liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be
brought against such Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts or appointment
letters, concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out under the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company that will or may
result in the Company issuing Shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares during the Year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
2022 AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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R2021F12B831H EERARARSTHAERAE
RAFEFEAAEREE (EERBHRPE KRG EXV
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HERIE KA EIME BT EENE LML
RIEREFABNGARA Rz s &R a
T

() RELERHZGFE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code were as follows:

() LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF THE COMFANY

(F VNG|

BHBEARRF BRITRAE

EEfL 513 15 42 8L BABIL

Approximate %

Total Number of of the Issued

Shares Held Share Capital

Name of Director Capacity in the Company of the Company

mxmEest (TrEd)) BaEAA 840,000 0.17%
Mr. Yuen Man Ying (“Mr. Yuen”) Beneficial owner

BE2ELE (kL) BmEAA 500,000 0.10%
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen (“Mr. Huen”) Beneficial owner

TESu+ (F4+)) BCE Ry 840,000 0.17%

Ms. Lee Po Fun (‘Ms. Lee”) Interest of spouse (H5E) (Note)
BFERE BEm#EAA 6,000 0.00%

Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon

Beneficial owner

=

FRITHREEZRB  WIRBESRPERAEXV
BB AR BN R EPAE & %A 2840,0008% iz 7

WERRED -

Note:

Ms. Lee was deemed to be interested in 840,000 Shares beneficially

owned by Mr. Yuen by virtue of her being the spouse of Mr. Yuen for
the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

20214E% Annual Report 2021 041



&3583R% GOVERNANCE REPORT

e

=

TS

Report of the Directors

U

KRR AR Z 4P B

() LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF THE
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION OF THE COMFANY

HAEMEER EEBEEER

EEHL HEEE S 514 R {n 48 & BN E D

Total Number of Approximate %

Name of Shares Held in of Interest in

Associated the Associated the Associated

Name of Director Corporation Capacity Corporation Corporation

rELE IBEEE BBEFERMILA 8,850 26.70%
Mr. Yuen Evergloss Founder of a discretionary trust (Bit5#1) (Note 1)

|mkE IBEEE R2EGEZBENER 7,650 23.08%
Mr. Huen Evergloss Interest of a controlled corporation (Bt522) (Note 2)

R TREE)) BESE BEREBA 3,300 9.95%

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu  Evergloss Beneficial owner
(“Mr. Leung”)

Fut REEE NEEEzRHmARBRERA 9,150 27.60%

Ms. Lee Evergloss Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (B1z£3) (Note 3)
& beneficial owner

RAMER L 12 E 18 MEEEzZEA 8,850 26.70%

Ms. Yuen Ho Yee Evergloss Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Hfzt4) (Note 4)

042 =m=mEiRARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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#] B (FBAlpadis Trust (HK) Limited®2 B #A) 558,850
R tRRE B 1D » Alpadis Trust (HK) LimitedZ&The Yuen
Family 2014 TrustB955EA > MThe Yuen Family 2014
TrustAREEUEZEFEL TR EERBEL L (B
AREENBEAN) AHESRARIINNIEET.

2. EEHBEEEEZEER) FA7.650REEEER
o

3. 9,150 BB E IR M > FE (Alpadis Trust (HK)
Limitedz 2 &M B A7) 558,850k %15 > Alpadis
Trust (HK) LimitedZThe Yuen Family 2014 Trustpy3 5
N B LT HBZELZTHEAZ— R F300RIBEEIE
BNBEEL T EABTR BB AR

4. FIEE (Alpadis Trust (HK) LimitedZ 2 &M B AF) 58
8,8500% 12 i B FERZ 15 > Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited%
The Yuen Family 2014 TrusttI st A c RBELZ T A%
EetEmAZ—o

M ESTFriREEE 4 > R2021F 128310 liEmEEE
KRNBRBITBRAEBRARBHETMAEEEZE (F
ERBSKRIEBRAFABXVE) 2R - HERMHE
HEPHEEARARNBIRIEE S R EKRAIFEIS2KET
1%??271‘%6%}5&%63?’i@*@?ﬁ%‘%%?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ%jﬁ@ﬁ
KRR 2 R A m R A

Notes:

1. The 8,850 shares in Evergloss were held by Likang, which is wholly
owned by Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited being the trustee of The Yuen
Family 2014 Trust, which is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Yuen
whose discretionary objects are Ms. Lee and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee,
wife and daughter of Mr. Yuen respectively and both an associate of
Mr. Yuen.

2. The 7,650 shares in Evergloss were held by Kwok Lai, which is
wholly owned by Mr. Huen directly.

3. Out of the 9,150 shares in Evergloss, 8,850 shares were held by
Likang, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited
which is the trustee of The Yuen Family 2014 Trust. Ms. Lee is one of
the beneficiaries of the trust. The remaining 300 shares in Evergloss
were held by Ms. Lee as the beneficial owner.

4. The 8,850 shares in Evergloss were held by Likang, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited which is the trustee of The
Yuen Family 2014 Trust. Ms. Yuen Ho Yee is one of the beneficiaries
of the trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company, or any of its associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

20214 % Annual Report 2021 043



&3583R% GOVERNANCE REPORT

EREHE

Report of the Directors

FERRIN RN RABRARD 2 B

R2021F12831 A IHEREZTHARBD RS ITEA
B UTRE (EEHALBIRSITHAERIN
RARABRMDAEEKRD P HEE BREESRPER
B EXVEF 2K 37 BB Z & BB A A B K Bk 22 F il
B RN AR B IRIEES RS KRG E3361%
BYEEZEZM AEHMEAAB ZERARXE

RAERERGZIFE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to any Director or
chief executive of the Company, the following shareholders (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF THE COMFPANY

EARRE

TP N BETRE

IR TE 1% B 1R 4R 81 BB 7L

Approximate %

Total Number of of the Issued

Shares Held Share Capital

Name of Shareholder Capacity in the Company  of the Company

1R R B I BEEAA 374,130,000 74.46%

Evergloss Beneficial owner

Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited ZEEA 374,130,000 74.46%
Trustee (#1&£) (Note)

Alpadis Group Holding AG PRS2 PEH)E B 374,130,000 74.46%
Interest of a controlled corporation (#1&£) (Note)

Alain ESSEIVA RREGEB AR 374,130,000 74.46%
Interest of a controlled corporation (#1&£) (Note)

Dominik Philipp HEER PRS2 PEH)E B 374,130,000 74.46%
Interest of a controlled corporation (#1&£) (Note)

Krinya HEER BB 374,130,000 74.46%

Interest of spouse

(#152) (Note)
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ZE374,130,000% 17 I VB E ETEIS 75 o IRIE E 12
H1 7182 % Yohki Ryokoh Limited (I Yohki ) 53 B/ #E B #9
26.70% K% #926.24% © F| | R Yohki¥g HiAlpadis Trust
(HK) Limited2 Z#% » Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited
B &R S5 ZEEA 2 () The Yuen Family
2014 Trust’ ZRAEDHURZFEL LRI ZR
HEZ T (B RELENHEN) BRIESHARLT
BIENIEIS 5T 5 (i) The Happyyau Family Trust > 725 5% #%
FHENUBRZFRBEBANENFE L T REE = [TAE
S AR BIFEEET

EZa

JR20214F 12531 H » Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited5
Alpadis Group Holding AGRIZ E N1 /E A& - 17
Alpadis Group Holding AGHIAlain ESSEIVAZE 4 K
Dominik Philipp HEERZL 4 73 5l #E 5 #956.78 % % #9
43.22% o [t » 1RIF5E 25 R B & 15 B BXVES » Alpadis
Trust (HK) Limited ~ Alpadis Group Holding AG ~ Alain
ESSEIVASE 4 KeDominik Philipp HEERZE £ #8385 1%
PEEEEIFE 2374,130,0008 17 P HHE Em o
Krinya HEERZ 1-#Dominik Philiop HEERZG 4 (#78
#58374,130,0008 B2 17 HE B B n) 2 BOAE ©

M ESTFriREEE SN > R2021F 128310 » fiEHE
EREFAL EFTHAARAERSTEHABRIN B
RERMOIABERD I EE BREES MAERAE
XVEBE2 R33N B2 B X B A AT R FIEE > e
SRR A ABIRIEE S R E KA FE336KEFHEE
2EREM ZEMFEARAB ZEAERIRE o

EFWBROHEERZEF

BRI ERES S —REZBREN &2
EHEAEZERAS -HEWNBARRERZRKE LR
BERTFERNAFEEAFEILEMZH &
EFENEARFZRBHISHUTZFRBUEBY
BARBAREMEMERZ RN EEZER -

Note: Such 374,130,000 Shares were held by Evergloss. Evergloss was
owned as to approximately 26.70% by Likang and approximately
26.24% by Yohki Ryokoh Limited (“Yohki”). Both Likang and Yohki
are wholly owned by Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited, which is the trustee
of two discretionary family trusts, namely (i) The Yuen Family 2014
Trust, which is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Yuen whose
discretionary objects are Ms. Lee and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, wife and
daughter of Mr. Yuen respectively and both an associate of Mr. Yuen,
(i) The Happyyau Family Trust, which is a discretionary trust set up
by Mr. Yau Shui Fung whose discretionary objects are Ms. Li Siu
King, wife and an associate of Mr. Yau Shui Fung, and Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals.

As at 31 December 2021, Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Alpadis Group Holding AG which in turn was
owned as to approximately 56.78% by Mr. Alain ESSEIVA and
approximately 43.22% by Mr. Dominik Philipp HEER. As such,
Alpadis Trust (HK) Limited, Alpadis Group Holding AG, Mr. Alain
ESSEIVA and Mr. Dominik Philipp HEER were deemed to be
interested in 374,130,000 Shares which were held by Evergloss
by virtue of Part XV of the SFO. Ms. Krinva HEER is a spouse
of Mr. Dominik Philipp HEER who has a deemed interest of
374,130,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, there was no
other substantial shareholders or persons (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) who had any interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the option as disclosed under the section headed
“Share Option Scheme” below, none of the Company, any of its
holding company, its subsidiaries and its fellow subsidiaries was
a party to any arrangements which would enable the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.
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Exus

Name of Director

NCIEZY
Name of Company

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2021, the Directors, other than independent
non-executive Directors, had an interest in any business apart from
the Group’s business, which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business that need to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as
follows:

Nature of Interest

EHME

Nature of Business

| E Next81 Limited
Mr. Huen
REYE Next81 Limited
Mr. Leung

HREFEBUNLRARNZERTS AL EREE
LR TEEBUNZ AR ZEBREFRR

BREIXFRBEEN AFEARBEEFNALEH
EHEERUERBNGF N EBRRFNERES
(EEBEBIRIN PHEAEAEDE

FrENE SR

EFERAEREREZRRE BB ENRIMFUHE
EEHFHMBER -FMEEERESHMNER RS
EXFFHEEFELEREAERNMBEE BAAKX
RRETRIERERE - AR F EHRMBRES S
ERECBEREEZRBZH-

BIREHE

AEBBNKEE ZFIBHN GG M B HRRW L2
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Online shop Director

I M2 BREES

Online shop Alternate director to Mr. Huen

As the Board is independent of the board of the above mentioned
company, the Group is capable of carrying on its business
independently of, and at arm’s length, from the business of that
company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors was interested in
any business (apart from the Group’s business) which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group during the Year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Board on the basis of their performance, qualifications,
competence and job nature. The remuneration of the Directors is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and is decided
by the Board, having regard to the financial results of the Group,
individual performance and comparing with market conditions. The
Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive
arrangement for eligible employees.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the retirement scheme of the Group are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital is
held by the public under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual written confirmation of
independence pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

GENERAL DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULES
13.18 AND 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report, the
Group entered the following facility letters containing covenants
relating to specific performance obligations on the controlling
shareholder of the Company which were subject to announcement
disclosure under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules and requirements
of disclosure in this annual report under Rule 13.21 of the Listing
Rules, the details of which are set out below:

(i) On 12 July 2021, EGL Tours (as borrower), the Company,
Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee, each as
guarantor or security provider, accepted a further renewed
and revised offer from a bank in respect of the general
banking facilities previously granted to, and accepted by,
EGL Tours in May 2018. Under the renewed facility letter
(the “2021 Facility Letter”), the general banking facilities
(including a revolving loan facility (the “2021 Revolving Loan
Facility”) and corporate credit card(s) (the “2021 CCD”)) in
the aggregate amount of HK$50,600,000 (collectively, the
“2021 Facilities”) were renewed. The 2021 Revolving Loan
Facility has no fixed term and is subject to periodic review
of the bank and the 2021 CCD is subject to the terms and
conditions issued by the bank’s card centre to EGL Tours.
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Under the 2021 Facility Letter, each of EGL Tours, the
Company, Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee has
undertaken to the bank, among others, the following:

(@) EGL Tours shall ensure that Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen,
Mr. Leung or Ms. Lee any one shall remain chairman or
director(s) of EGL Tours and the Company and maintain
control over the management and business of the
Group;

(b) EGL Tours shall ensure that Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen,
Mr. Leung or Ms. Lee, shall at all times collectively
maintain, directly or indirectly, not less than 45%
beneficial shareholding in the Group; and

(c) the major operating account to be maintained in the
bank with new average bank balance of the companies
which includes EGL Tours, Great Port (being a
company controlled as to approximately 60.63% by
Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee collectively)
and the Company of not less than HK$50,000,000.

The 2021 Facilities are subject to the bank’s overriding
right of repayment on demand and the bank’s unrestricted
discretion to cancel or suspend, or determine whether or not
to permit drawings in relation to the 2021 Facilities.

On 11 March 2022, EGL Tours (as borrower) accepted the
further renewed and revised offer from the bank in respect
of the general banking facilities previously granted to,
and accepted by, EGL Tours in October 2018. Under the
renewed facility letter (the “2022 Facility Letter”), the general
banking facilities (being an invoice financing loan, bank
guarantee and a revolving loan of up to HK$45,000,000
and corporate credit card of up to HK$1,500,000) in the
aggregate amount of HK$46,500,000 (collectively, the “2022
Facilities”) were renewed. The 2022 Facility Letter was
countersigned by the Company as a guarantor or security
provider.
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Under the 2022 Facility Letter, EGL Tours has undertaken to
the bank, among others, the following:

(@ any one of Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee
shall remain chairman or directors of EGL Tours and
maintain control over the management and business of
the group;

(b)  Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee shall at all
times collectively maintain, directly or indirectly, not less
than 45% beneficial shareholding of EGL Tours; and

() Evergloss shall at all times maintain, directly or
indirectly, not less than 51% beneficial shareholding in
the Company.

Pursuant to the 2022 Facility Letter, the bank has the
overriding right at any time to require EGL Tours to
immediately make payment and/or cash collateralisation of
all or any sums actually or contingently owing to the bank
under the 2022 Facilities.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders on 13 November
2014 which shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the date of listing of the Shares (i.e. 28 November 2014),
subject to early termination by the Company in a general meeting
or by the Board. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to provide incentives to Eligible Person (as defined below) and
is established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
the Eligible Person have had or may have made to the Group.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may offer to grant
an option to any employee, or any secondee, consultant, agent,
representative, adviser, customer, contractor of the Group or any
affiliates; or any business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture partner,
supplier of goods or services to the Group or any affiliates or any
employee thereof (the “Eligible Person”).
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The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in
issue from time to time. The maximum number of shares available
for issue under options which may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme or other share option scheme adopted by the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue immediately following completion of the initial public offering
of the Company (but taking no account of any shares which may
be allotted or issued pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment
option (as defined in the prospectus of the Company dated 18
November 2014)), being 50,000,000 shares. The total number of
shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to each
Eligible Person in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
number of shares in issue as at the date of grant unless approved
by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be determined
by the Board provided that it shall not be less than the highest
of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must
be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the
nominal value of a share.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option
is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of 10 years from that date. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted.

No option was granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme as at 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021. No share
option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
Year under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 50,000,000 shares
representing approximately 9.95% of the issued share capital of
the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Details of the connected transactions entered into by, and/or
subsisted between, the Group and the connected persons of the
Company during the Year and which are not exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules are set out below:

(1

2021 Tenancy Agreements

Given that the leasing to the Group (as tenant) by Great Port
(as landlord) for the occupation or use of certain premises,
car parking spaces and advertising area under the lease
agreements all dated 8 November 2019 entered into between
the Group and Great Port, expired on 31 December 2020,
the Group entered into the following six tenancy agreements
(collectively, the “2021 Tenancy Agreements”) with Great Port
on 23 December 2020 to renew the rental of certain premises
of the former tenancies for the respective period as set out
below:

(A) Tenancy agreements for a term commencing from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 (both days

inclusive)
BYBEER
HE0N FRERENTHNE  NE (F5R) B#  BE#
Approximate
Parties to the relevant Gross Floor Area
2021 Tenancy Agreements Premises (sq.ft.) Monthly Rental Use
& EE il
No.  Landlord Tenant
1. KEfT BRBRTH BENEBEESRRRERA0BARCE 45,816 5630008 M EFEALBERES
12B2E 1512 161828 2815 (FEEREMR BHE
1BERREBAREHE BHE)
Great Port EGL Tours Units A and C on 10/F, the whole of 12/F, (excluding car HK$563,000 Head office, car park
the whole of 15/F, the whole of 16/F, parking spaces and for rental
Car Parking Spaces Nos. P15, P18 to P23 on spaces and of signage areas for
2/F and Signage Areas, EGL Tower, signage areas) advertising
No.83 Hung To Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
2. AEf RRERITH EENEEEESR R ER10EBE 2,300 21,0008 A
Great Port EGL Tours Unit B on 10/F, EGL Tower, No.83 Hung To Road, HK$27,000  Head office
Kowloon, Hong Kong
3. RET BRI BENRRBERHL5-51% 5,531 87,0008  ATHERER/
HEIABESE12 3 4 556F REMEE
Great Port EGL Tours Unit Nos.1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 on 5/F, Chevalier House, HK$87,000 Branch office and/or
Nos.45-51 Chatham Road South, Kowloon, Hong multi-function room
Kong
4, RET BT BANEARESS-51EE T KESIE6AE 835 130008  AIRER
Great Port EGL Tours Unit No.6A on 5/F, Chevalier House, Nos.45-51 HK$13,000  Branch office
Chatham Road South, Kowloon, Hong Kong
5. REfT BRBMRTH (RF)  RPMAHDEAER2-68% 3,460 3B800EMT  RMIMERRBEHE
BRAF BEAEHR730-80457101EME Al
Great Port EGL Tours (Macau) Unit M, 10/F, Nos.730-804 Avenida da Praia Grande, MOP38,800  Macau office and call
Company Limited Nos.2-6B Avenida de D Joao IV, Macau centre
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(B) Tenancy agreement for a terrm commencing from
1 January 2021 to 31 January 2021 (both days

inclusive)
B#HEEER
TR0 FREHENTAR mE (FAR) BH Bz
Approximate
Parties to the relevant Gross Floor Area
2021 Tenancy Agreements Premises (sq.ft.) Monthly Rental ~ Use
ELA £ il
No.  Landlord Tenant
6. KEfT RREMRTH (R RMABOEAFRE2-6B% 1,159 55,0000F9  RPISTIER
BRAR R A B H730-80438 3 TBE
Great Port EGL Tours (Macau) Shop B, G/F, Nos.730-804 Avenida da Praia MOP55,000  Macau branch office

Company Limited
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()

Grande, Nos.2-6B Avenida de D Joao IV, Macau

Great Port is a majority-controlled company owned by
Mr. Yuen as to approximately 26.70%, Mr. Huen as to
approximately 23.08%, Mr. Leung as to approximately
9.95% and Ms. Lee as to approximately 0.90%, all being
the Executive Directors. The aforesaid Executive Directors
together controlled approximately 60.63% voting power
of Great Port, and therefore Great Port is an associate of
the said Executive Directors and thus a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the 2021 Tenancy
Agreements constituted connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
under the Listing Rules but exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements. Details of the 2021
Tenancy Agreements and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 23 December 2020.

2022 Tenancy Agreements

Given that the five tenancy agreements all dated
23 December 2020 entered into between the Group and
Great Port in relation to the granting of tenancies to the
Group for the use of certain premises, car park spaces
and advertising areas expired on 31 December 2021, on
26 November 2021, the Group entered into the following
five tenancy agreements (collectively, the “2022 Tenancy
Agreements”) with Great Port to renew the former tenancies,
each with a term commencing from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022 (both days inclusive):
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Approximate
Parties to the relevant Gross Floor Area
2022 Tenancy Agreements Premises (sq.ft.) Monthly Rental ~ Use
&% EE R
No.  Landlord Tenant
1 RET RRERITH BENAEEERRREER 018 45,816 5630008 AR EEARAEES
ARCE 12182 152 1612 (FBERER BHE
2B 21815 1828 RFEMREHE BHE)
Great Port EGL Tours Units A and C on 10/F, the whole of 12/F, (excluding car parking HK$563,000 Head office, car park
the whole of 15/F, the whole of 16/F, spaces and signage spaces and for rental
Car Parking Spaces Nos. P15, P18 to P23 areas) of signage areas for
on 2/F and Signage Areas, EGL Tower, advertising
No.83 Hung To Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
2. RET E3 i BENABEESSH 2,300 27,0008 A%
REHESI0EBE
Great Port EGL Tours Unit B on 10/F, EGL Tower, HK$27,000  Head office
No.83 Hung To Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
3. RET RRERITH BENRZRERSSIFETABESE 5,531 870008  AIMEER/AEY
1323 4 5J6E EE
Great Port EGL Tours Unit Nos.1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 on 5/F, HK$87,000  Branch office and/or
Chevalier House, multi-function room
Nos.45-51 Chatham Road South,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
4, RET BB R{TH BBNERREELS-51RE TR E5EAE 835 130008  AIRER
Great Port EGL Tours Unit No.6A on 5/F, Chevalier House, HK$13,000  Branch office
Nos.45-51 Chatham Road South,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
5. RET RRERITH BPIAE I A F52-6B% 3,460 388002ML  EMMERR
(29 BRAF 8 A& 5730-8043 101EME BEBERD
Great Port EGL Tours (Macau) ~ Unit M, 10/F, Nos.730-804 Avenida MOP38,800  Macau office
Company Limited da Praia Grande, Nos.2-6B Avenida and call centre

de D Joao IV, Macau
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Great Port is a majority-controlled company owned by
Mr. Yuen as to approximately 26.70%, Mr. Huen as to
approximately 23.08%, Mr. Leung as to approximately
9.95% and Ms. Lee as to approximately 0.90%, all being
the Executive Directors. The above-mentioned Executive
Directors together controlled approximately 60.63% voting
power of Great Port, and therefore Great Port is an associate
of the said Executive Directors and thus a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the 2022 Tenancy
Agreements constituted connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
under the Listing Rules but exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements. Details of the 2022
Tenancy Agreements and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 26 November 2021.

Save as disclosed above, no other related party transactions
conducted in the Year as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute a connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction which is required to be disclosed
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above,
no transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding
company or any of their respective subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or an entity connected with the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, (i) no contract of significance was
entered into by, and/or subsisted between, the Company or
any of its subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (i) there is no contract
of significance in relation to the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirm that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Details of the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 56 to 72 of this annual
report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Details of significant event of the Group after the reporting date are
set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at
the 2022 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report
of the Company for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed in
achieving a high standard of corporate governance and leading
the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate image
with effective corporate governance procedures.

During the Year, the Board is of opinion that the Company has
applied the principles and complied with all the applicable code
provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules that were in effect during the Year. This Corporate
Governance Report has been produced with reference to the then
applicable requirements under the Listing Rules and the CG Code
that were in effect for the year ended 31 December 2021 and has
not reflected the amendments to the Listing Rules and the CG
Code that took effect from 1 January 2022.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AND DELEGATION BY THE
BOARD

The Board provides leadership, guidance and strategic decisions
to the Group’s activities and oversees its financial performances.
The Board has delegated its powers to the management for the
Group’s daily management and operations.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

According to code provision A.2.1 (now rearranged as C.2.1) of
the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and the chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the Year, the role of the Chairman is
performed by Mr. Yuen Man Ying while the office of the chief
executive officer of the Company is vacated. The Board will keep
reviewing the current structure of the Group’s management from
time to time and should candidate with suitable knowledge, skills
and experience be identified, the Company will make appointment
to fill the post as appropriate.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. At least
one of the Independent Non-executive Directors possesses the
appropriate professional accounting qualifications and financial
management expertise, which complies with the requirements of
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with Rules 3.10
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. During the Year, the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors represents not less than
one-third of the Board. As such, there exists a strong independent
element in the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement. The Board comprises the following Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)

Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

Ms. Yuen Ho Yee (appointed on 28 May 2021)

Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon (appointed on 28 May 2021)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric
Ms. Wong Lai Ming

Mr. Yuen Man Ying, the Chairman and Executive Director, is the
spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun, an Executive Director. Ms. Yuen Ho
Yee, the Executive Director, is the daughter of Mr. Yuen Man
Ying and Ms. Lee Po Fun, both are the Executive Directors. The
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok
Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun, are interested
in the Company’s shares through their interest in Evergloss, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. The above-mentioned
Executive Directors also have interests in the shares of Great Port,
which has certain transactions with the Group which constituted
connected transactions. Please refer to the “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 73 to 76, “Report of
the Directors — Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” on pages 41 to 43 and
“Report of the Directors — Connected Transactions and Directors’
Interests in Contracts” on pages 51 to 54 of this annual report for
more details. Save as disclosed above, the Directors have no other
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships
with one another.
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INDEPENDENCE OF
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual written confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to the relevant guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. During the Year, each of the
Directors (namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen,
Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun, Ms. Yuen Ho Yee,
Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon, Mr. Chan Kim Fai, Mr. Tang Koon Hung
Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming) has participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by ways of
attending seminars, reading training materials and updates
relevant to (i) the Group’s businesses; (i) regulatory updates; (iii)
the Listing Rules; (iv) anti-corruption; or (v) Environmental, Social &
Governance (“ESG”) Practices.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with the Company for a specific term of three
years. Such term is subject to his/her retirement by rotation
and re-election at an annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Articles of Association. During the Year,
Ms. Yuen Ho Yee and Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon were nominated
by the Board and were elected as the Executive Directors at the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 28 May 2021.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of the Directors are governed by the Articles of
Association. The Articles of Association provides that any director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company (“AGM”) and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at each AGM, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at least once every
3 years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Any
Director who has not been subject to retirement by rotation in
the three years preceding an AGM shall retire by rotation at such
meeting. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
and so that as between persons who became or were last re-
elected Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

Accordingly, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun and Mr. Tang
Koon Hung Eric shall retire at the 2022 AGM. All of the retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
same meeting.

BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 (now rearranged as C.5.1) of the
CG Code, the Board should meet regularly and board meetings
should be held at least four times a year.
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If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
Director shall abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions and
he/she shall not be counted as a quorum in the Board meeting
discussing the matter concerned.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS

Set out below are details of the attendance record of each Director
at the Board meetings, committee meetings and general meeting
of the Company held during the Year:

EE RN
HE/ AERLE
Number of meetings
attended/eligible to attend

B2 Elﬂimii &4 M
RRBERE Bxggs ZEgES Z2ggx3 ZEggE ZEgER
Risk
Annual Audit  Management Nomination  Remuneration
General Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting Meetings
HiTEZE Executive Directors

RXEEE Mr. Yuen Man Ying 1/1 4/4 - - 1/1 2/2
BEZEE Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen 1/1 4/4 - - - -
2RI E Mr. Leung Shing Chiu 1/1 4/4 - 2/2 - -
FESRL Ms. Lee Po Fun 11 4/4 - - 11 2/2
RmELT Ms. Yuen Ho Yee* - 3/3 - - - -
BEETE Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon* - 3/3 - - - -

BUFHTEE Inclependient Non-executive Directors
BiREL L Mr. Chan Kim Fai 11 4/4 3/3 2/2 il 2/2
Bagrt Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric il 4/4 3/3 2/2 il 2/2
BEEPLT Ms. Wong Lai Ming 1/1 4/4 3/3 2/2 1/1 2/2
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*

Appointed with effect from the conclusion of the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 28 May 2021.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company is an important forum in which the
management of the Company can engage with the Shareholders.
The most recent AGM of the Company was held on 28 May 2021
(2021 AGM").

At the 2021 AGM, all Directors in office on the meeting date,
including the Chairman of the Board and all the chairmen and
members of the Board Committees, attended the meeting along
with senior management and the external auditor. At the 2021
AGM, separate resolutions were proposed for each issue and
were voted on by poll. The procedures for conducting a poll were
explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken.

The voting results are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Risk
Management Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. All the Board Committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference which are available to Shareholders on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board Committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 13 November 2014
with specific written terms of reference in accordance with
the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Audit Committee
comprises a total of three members, all being Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim Fai (Chairman), Mr. Tang
Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, (i) reviewing financial information of the Group; (ii)
monitoring of the relationship between the Group and its external
auditor; (iii) overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems; and (iv) developing
and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance
with legal and regulatory requirements and requirements under the
Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year. During
the Year, the Audit Committee (i) reviewed the Group’s audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
the unaudited financial statements for the six months ended
30 June 2021 respectively; (i) reviewed the external auditor’s
reports to the Audit Committee on their statutory audit of financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 and their
independent review of the interim financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2021; (iii) reviewed the audit plan of
the external auditor for the year ended 31 December 2021; (iv)
reviewed the Group’s financial reporting system; and (v) made
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of external
auditor and approval of the engagement letter of the external
auditor.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Audit Committee has been appointed by the Board to perform
the corporate governance function. The responsibilities of the
Audit Committee on corporate governance function are set out in
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. During the Year, the
Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management and
the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on
13 November 2014 with specific written terms of reference. The
Risk Management Committee comprises a total of four members,
being one Executive Director, namely Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim
Fai (Chairman), Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
include reviewing the Company’s enterprise risk management
framework, and the guidelines, policies and procedures for risk
assessment and risk management and reviewing the effectiveness
of the risk management function.

The Risk Management Committee held two meetings during the
Year. During the Year, the Risk Management Committee reviewed
the internal control system of the Group, the Group’s high-level
related risks and key emerging risks and the controls in place to
mitigate such risks and the Group’s surplus cash management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 13 November
2014 with specific written terms of reference in accordance with
the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
comprises a total of five members, being two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman) and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Kim Fai, Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board, making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the VYear.
During the Year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity) of the Board, assessed the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors, nominated Executive
Directors and recommended to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the re-election of all retiring Directors at the 2021 AGM.

As the nomination policy of the Company, the Nomination
Committee will (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of
the Board at least annually based on objective criteria with
due regard to the benefits of diversity as set out in the Board’s
diversity policy and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy; (b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; and (c)
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the managing director (if applicable).
Please refer to the sub-section headed “Board Diversity Policy” of
this Corporate Governance Report for details of the Board’s policy
on board diversity.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 13 November
2014 with specific written terms of reference in accordance
with the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee comprises a total of five members, being two Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim
Fai, Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric (Chairman) and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all
the Directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a set of formal and transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy; (ii) reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (iiij making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
all the Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the
Year. During the Year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed
the remuneration policy of the Group, reviewed the remuneration
package of the individual Executive Directors and senior
management as well as reviewed the remuneration of Independent
Non-executive Directors for submission to the Board for approval.

REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 (now rearranged as E.1.5) of
the CG Code, details of the annual remuneration of the senior
management of the Company then in office by band for the Year
are as follows:

AE

Number of

M4 R Remuneration band individuals
51,000,000 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has established a board diversity policy. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. Diversity of Board
members can be achieved through consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All the Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Each of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun has
provided annual confirmations in respect of the compliance with
non-competition undertakings (the “Undertakings”) given by them
in favour of the Company pursuant to a deed of non-competition
undertakings dated 13 November 2014. The Independent Non-
executive Directors have also reviewed the compliance by each
of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun with the
Undertakings during the Year. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there
is no breach by any of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man
Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee
Po Fun of the Undertakings given by them.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the remunerations paid or payable to the external
auditor in respect of its audit services and non-audit services
provided to the Group were approximately HK$1.6 million and
approximately HK$0.4 million, respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the Year.
The Directors were aware of the material uncertainty related to
going concern of the Company.

As disclosed in note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
the COVID-19 pandemic began in early 2020 still has a profound
negative impact on the Group’s financial performance and financial
position for the year, in particular for the quarantine requirement
implemented by Japan government for visitors and Hong Kong
government for people entering Hong Kong from overseas.

The Group incurred a loss of approximately HK$156,425,000
for the year ended 31 December 2021 and as of that date, its
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$128,016,000. These conditions indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore, it
may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in
the normal course of business.

In the opinion of the Board, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future,
based on the cash flow projections of the Group covering a period
up to 30 June 2023 (the “Forecast Period”) after taking into the
following considerations:

(@) The management of the Group has been endeavoring
to improve the Group’s operating cash flows through
implementing various cost control measures, including
restructuring of workforce, implementing salary reduction
for employees and the directors of the Company,
arrangements of unpaid leaves, seeking rent concession
from landlords on the lease of certain branches;

(b) The management of the Group has been negotiating with
a bank in Japan to defer the quarterly payments of the
principal instalment of approximately HK$6.8 million per
quarter of a loan for the year 2022;

(c) As at the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements, Great Port Limited (“Great Port”), a related
company, agreed to provide additional credit facilities of not
less than HK$100 million to the Group during the Forecast
Period;
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(d) The expected mild revival of the travel business is based
on the latest developments of the pandemic and of travel
restrictions worldwide, especially in Japan, and quarantine
policy implemented by Hong Kong government. In the
view of the continuous suspension of outbound package
tours, the Group has diversified its business to sales of
merchandises during the current year; and

(e) The management of the Group keeps endeavoring to seek
additional sources of finance.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 77 to 85 of this
annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board recognises that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems play a key role in the identification,
evaluation and management of risks faced by the Group, the
assurance of continued compliance with laws and regulations
by the Group, and the provision of reasonable assurance on
the Group against material misstatement, error, loss or fraud.
The Board appreciates that the Group is exposed to risks in
achieving its business objectives and strives to maintain such
risks at acceptable level through the design, implementation
and monitoring of effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are established
within the Company and its subsidiaries for facilitating effective
and efficient operations, for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use, for maintaining proper accounting records, for
ensuring the reliability of financial reporting and information, and
for ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
These systems are designed to meet the Group’s particular
needs and to minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed,
and are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks
to achieve business objectives and by their nature, can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatements or losses.
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The key elements of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems include the establishment of a risk register to
keep track, record and report identified risks, the assessment and
evaluation of risks, the development and continuous updating of
responsive procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control
procedures to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is also adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that
affect the achievements of its objectives. A risk matrix is adopted
to determine risk rating (L = low risk, M = medium risk, H = high
risk) after evaluation of the risk by the likelihood and the impact of
the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the level of managements,
attention and risk treatment effort required.

During the process of risk assessment, each risk owner is
required to capture and identify the key inherent risks that affect
the achievement of its objectives. Each inherent risk is evaluated
according to the risk matrix. After taking into consideration the
risk response, such as control measures in place to mitigate the
risk, the residual risk of each inherent risk is evaluated again. The
risk register with the risk responses and residual risks is reported
to the Risk Management Committee. The Risk Management
Committee evaluates the effectiveness of the systems and reports
to the Board. The highest category of residual risks is subject to
the Board’s oversight.

During the Year, the Board, through the Risk Management
Committee, reviewed the continued effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems covering all
material aspect of controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The review covered the foreign exchange risk
management and the Group’s surplus cash management.
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During the Year, the Company also engaged an independent
professional consultant to conduct an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The review covered the following items within the Group:

o Online Sales - Procurement, Accounts Payable and
Payment Cycle (including rebate)

° Online Sales — Revenue and Receivable Cycle
° Online Sales — Inventory Management
° IT General Controls — Online Platform

Relevant applicable recommendations made by the consultant
during the Year have already been implemented in stages by the
Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures
and practices.

As a result of the above review, the Board is satisfied that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
adequate and effective and have complied with the CG Code
provisions on internal control throughout the Year and the
Company has an internal audit function.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Group
conducts its affairs with close attention to the inside information
provisions under the SFO and the Listing Rules. The Directors and
senior management are responsible for determining whether any
particular information is inside information and overseeing and
coordinating disclosure of inside information of the Group. They
are also responsible for taking reasonable measures to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group from time to time and that
disclosures are made and/or announcements are published
on a timely basis in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations, and before such information is fully disclosed to the
public, they shall ensure the same is kept strictly confidential. The
Directors are also committed to ensure that information contained
in announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact,
or false or misleading through the omission of a material fact in
view of presenting information in a clear and balanced way.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board may propose or declare the payment of dividends
after taking into account, among other things, the results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition, operating and
capital requirements, the amount of distributable profits, reserves
available for distribution based on HKFRSs, the Articles of
Association, applicable laws and regulations (including the laws
of Cayman Islands) and other factors which the Directors deem
relevant.

The Company, subject to the factors and considerations above,
pay annual dividends of not less than 50% of the Group’s
consolidated profit attributable to the Shareholders. Any dividends
declared will be in Hong Kong dollars with respect to the Shares
on a per Share basis, and the Company will pay such dividends
in Hong Kong dollars. Other distributions, if any, will be paid to
the Shareholders by any means which the Directors consider
legal, fair and practicable. Any distributable profits that are not
distributed in any given year may be retained and be made
available for distribution in subsequent years. To the extent profits
are distributed as dividends, such portion of profits will not be
available for reinvestment in the Group’s operations.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The role of the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) is performed by Ms. Wong Cheuk Yee Kathy. The
Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and is
appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is responsible
for facilitating the Board’s processes and communications among
Board members, with Shareholders and with management.
The Company Secretary received at least 15 hours of relevant
professional training to update her skills and knowledge during the
Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communications between the Shareholders and the Board.
An AGM shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING (“EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, an EGM
shall be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong, which is presently situated
at 15/F, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such

requisition and signed by the requisitionist(s).

meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office
in Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
BY SHAREHOLDERS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles
of Association for putting forward a resolution at an EGM. The
requirements and procedures are set out above in the paragraph
headed “Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting”.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

No amendment has been made to the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.

On behalf of the Board

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (“Mr. Yuen”), aged 70, is the founder of the
Group and has been the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company since 24 July 2014. Mr. Yuen initiated the creation
of the Group in 1987. He is also the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Board. Mr. Yuen serves as the managing director of EGL
Tours and as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Management Group
Company Limited (“EGL Management”), i-Evertravel Company
Limited (“i-Evertravel”), EGL Tours (Macau) Company Limited
(“EGL Macau”), EGL Tours (Japan) Company Limited (“EGL
Japan”), EGL Holdings (Nippon) Limited (“EGL Nippon”), EGL
Holdings (Asia) Limited (“EGL Asia”), EGL Investment Group
Company Limited (“EGL Investment”), EGL Market Company
Limited (formerly known as EGL Trading Company Limited) (“EGL
Market”) and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a
director of Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He is responsible for important decision making of the
Group, overseeing both tours and hotel operation development,
promoting the Japanese market, planning for tour itinerary in
Japan, supervising and training tour escorts, and strategic
planning air charter of the Group. Mr. Yuen has over 37 years
of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism industry.
Mr. Yuen is the spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun who is an Executive
Director of the Company, and the father of Ms. Yuen Ho Yee who
is an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen (“Mr. Huen”), aged 64, has been an
Executive Director of the Company since 24 July 2014. Mr. Huen
joined the Group in 1987. Mr. Huen also serves as a director of
EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL Macau, EGL
Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment, EGL Market
and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director of
Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Huen is the spokesman of the Group. He is responsible for
overseeing development of the Group, public relations, specialised
gourmet tourism, hotel operation and the subsidiaries of the
Company incorporated in Macau and Shenzhen respectively.
Mr.
experience in the tourism industry.

Huen has over 37 years of extensive knowledge and
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Mr. Leung Shing Chiu (“Mr. Leung”), aged 67, has been an
Executive Director of the Company since 24 July 2014. He is
a member of the Risk Management Committee of the Board.
Mr. Leung joined the Group in 1988. Mr. Leung serves as a
director of EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL Macau,
EGL Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment, EGL Market
and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director of
Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of the Company. He
is responsible for managing the receiving services for outbound
tourism in Japan, frontline sales, customer services, accounting
and administration matters of the Group. Mr. Leung has over
37 years of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism
industry.

Ms. Lee Po Fun (“Mrs. Yuen”), aged 63, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 24 July 2014. She is a member of
both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Board. Mrs. Yuen joined the Group in 1987. She also serves
as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL
Macau, EGL Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment,
EGL Market and other subsidiaries of the Company. She is also
a director of Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company. She is responsible for overseeing the information
technology department, human resources development and
the overall tour operations of the Group. Mrs. Yuen has over
37 years of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism
industry. Mrs. Yuen is the spouse of Mr. Yuen Man Ying who is
the Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company, and the
mother of Ms. Yuen Ho Yee who is an Executive Director of the
Company.

Ms. Yuen Ho Yee (“Ms. Yuen”), aged 33, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 28 May 2021. Ms. Yuen joined the
Group in November 2011. She serves as a director of EGL Tours.
She is responsible for overseeing the operations in the marketing
and public relations department, overseas wedding department
and product development department. She is also responsible
for formulating strategies for promoting the Group’s image and
business and developing new products for the future development
of the Group. She has over 10 years of experience in the tourism
industry. Ms. Yuen graduated in July 2010 from the University of
Nottingham, United Kingdom with a Bachelor of Arts Degree in
Management Studies. Ms. Yuen is the daughter of Mr. Yuen Man
Ying, the Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company,
and Ms. Lee Po Fun, an Executive Director of the Company.
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Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon (“Mr. Cheang”), aged 57, has been
an Executive Director of the Company since 28 May 2021.
Mr. Cheang is the financial controller of the Group. He is
responsible for supervision and management of the Group’s
financial issues. He joined the Group in June 2001 as a finance
manager before being promoted as the financial controller of EGL
Tours in April 2004. Mr. Cheang has over 33 years of extensive
accounting and financial experience, in which 10 years in another
public listed company (whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange), with latest position as accounting
manager. Mr. Cheang graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with a bachelor degree in social sciences in November 1988 and
later obtained a master degree of science in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2001. Mr. Cheang
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai (“Mr. Chan”), aged 63, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
13 November 2014. He is also the chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Risk Management Committee of the
Board and a member of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Board. He is responsible for
overseeing the management of the Group independently. Mr. Chan
is currently an independent non-executive director of Magnificent
Hotel Investments Limited (stock code: 201), Shun Ho Property
Investments Limited (stock code: 219) and Shun Ho Holdings
Limited (stock code: 253) (all these companies are listed on the
Stock Exchange). Mr. Chan has also served as the sole proprietor
of lvan Chan & Co, CPA since 2001. Mr. Chan is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and CPA Australia.

20214E% Annual Report 2021 075



&3583R% GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEhEREEBZEBEGN

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Wik (T8kE)) > 765 B20145F11H13HE
HAERRBBUFNITEZ - RTAEETIZHNES
EENFEFFEREEECERZEY RELZEFUR
EMEEZETNME FASBEIUERAEENE
o 738 AASM Pacific Technology Limited (— S 52 Bt
RFFER ETHRE] > RMHARE : 522) WEILIFHIT
BEFE - HMAEERNERESFIGHNER RAS
BEEIAGEE .

=R L (T&EL4t) » 635 B2014E11 8130
HEARRBDEIUFNTES BT AEETGIERZ
ZEE FHNZES RLAZEENREAKREEZES
B REEREUGEEAEEANEIR X TINE
BOEBBANELSR BRI AT BIENEEM-

RIE EHRAE13.51BO)FIRBEESTEN

BERAEEESEHFINESFEHN M BTRENW
120

=REERE

REWE

BsafGrt (T&X L)) 605k B2014F8H28H H1E
ARABREME-REEAEEANRAWEEF &
YT H2006FOR ERERMERITHLNATME
EEERBAENEFTHE BYINE B RIRH
TEBERRETFRR BRI HAEBHCERES
NEBRIERABZBELBA -BELITREBRNES
SN Uk AEBEHMAETHNE B REESFFAR

GEMAENERES

076 =H=miEiRARAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric (“Mr. Tang”), aged 76, has been
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
13 November 2014. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Board and a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Risk Management Committee of
the Board. He is responsible for overseeing the management of
the Group independently. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of ASM Pacific Technology Limited (stock code:
522), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Tang was qualified as a Chartered Accountant in Canada
and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Ms. Wong Lai Ming (“Ms. Wong”), aged 63, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
13 November 2014. She is also a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Risk Management Committee of the Board. She is responsible
for overseeing the management of the Group independently.
Ms. Wong has over 23 years of experience in the legal industry.
Ms. Wong is a non-practicing solicitor in Hong Kong.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Details of the change of emoluments of the Directors for the Year
are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Company Secretary

Ms. Wong Cheuk Yee Kathy (“Ms. Wong”), aged 60, has been
the company secretary of the Company since 28 August 2014.
She is responsible for the company secretarial matters of the
Group. Ms. Wong has been the company secretary of EGL Tours
since September 2006, being responsible for its general company
secretarial affairs. Ms. Wong has over 37 years of experience
in the accounting, audit and tax industry. Ms. Wong holds a
diploma in accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College
and a bachelor of law degree from Peking University. Ms. Wong
is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EGL
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 86 to 213, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a loss of
approximately HK$156,425,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021 and as of that date, its current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by approximately HK$128,016,000. These conditions,
together with the matters set forth in note 2(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit

matters to be communicated in our report.

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets

(refer to notes 4(n), 14, 15 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
prepayments amounted to HK$580,238,000, HK$26,860,000 and
HK$27,530,000 respectively.

These non-financial assets mainly comprised freehold land, hotel
buildings and leasehold improvements of hotels in Japan, right-of-
use assets of rented premises, right-of-use assets of travel buses
and prepayments to suppliers.

In light of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group had cancelled and/
or postponed its travel related products and services to those
affected cities and countries since mid-March 2020, suspended
its hotel operation in Osaka intermittently and scaled down its
hotel operation in Okinawa during the year. Such arrangements
have halted the operation of the Travel Related Business and hotel
business and adversely impacted the Group’s financial results
for the year ended 31 December 2021. These were identified as
indicators of impairment to the Group’s non-financial assets and
accordingly, impairment assessments were carried out by the
management. The Group engaged an independent professional
valuer as management’s expert to assist its assessment.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuead)

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets were tested at
cash generated units (“CGU”). The management considers each
hotel business in Osaka and Okinawa, Japan, Travel Related
Business, and Sale of Merchandises Business to be four separate
CGUs.

The recoverable amounts of the four CGUs were determined
based on the higher of their value-in-use (“VIU”) or fair value less
costs of disposal (“FVLCD”).

For impairment assessment of the two CGUs of Travel
Related Business and Sale of Merchandises Business

Management estimated the VIU of these two CGUs using
discounted cash flow based on cash flow forecasts covering a
period 5 years. The impairment assessment involved significant
judgements towards future results of the businesses, in particular,
the key assumptions in future gross profit margin, annual revenue
growth rates, terminal growth rates and discount rates.

For impairment assessment of the two CGUs of hotel
business in Osaka and Okinawa, Japan

Management estimated the FVLCD of these two CGUs based on
market approach, by using market values of comparable hotel
properties in Japan adjusted for factors such as differences in
age and conditions between the comparable hotel properties and
those of the Group. The selection of comparable hotel properties
and the adjustments made involved significant judgements and
assumptions.

Based on management’s assessments described above, no
impairment loss was made for the Group’s non-financial assets as
at 31 December 2021.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuea)

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

We have identified the impairment assessment of non-financial
assets as a key audit matter because of its significance to
the consolidated financial statements and because VIU and
FVLCD calculations involve significant management judgements,
assumptions and estimates.

Our response:
Our key audit procedures included:

- Assessing the appropriateness of the management’s
identification of the CGUs based on our understanding of the
Group’s business;

- Evaluating the appropriateness of the methodologies applied
in respect of the assessment of the recoverable amounts;

- Challenging the reasonableness of the key assumptions of
the cash flow projections of the Travel Related Business
CGU and Sale of Merchandises CGU including future gross
profit margin, annual revenue growth rates, terminal growth
rates and discount rates and the reasonableness of the key
assumptions in determining the fair values of the two hotel
business CGUs based on our knowledge of the Group’s
business and industry;

- Reconciling input data to supporting evidence and considering
the reasonableness of the evidence;

- Involving an auditor’'s expert to assist our assessment; and

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
management’s expert and auditor’s expert.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control;

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control;
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STATEMENTS (Continued)

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors;

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern;

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate Number PO5057

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
E £2021512831H LS [E For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
FHT FHT
(#= &2
Htat42)
(Restated,
Note 42)
HK$’000 HK$’000
g Revenue 44,578 249,771
& AR Cost of sales (73,755) (262,566)
e 5 Gross loss (29,177) (12,795)
Halg A~ Wz R EHEF 5 Other income, gains and losses, net 11,313 14,452
8 & B 2 Selling expenses (29,081) (38,625)
THRAX Administrative expenses (103,569) (108,309)
HMgER Other operating expenses (33,452) (1,277)
iy NG Share of results of associates (513) (1,053)
A& A AR Finance costs (14,854) (6,992)
PRSI ARS8 Loss before income tax (199,333) (149,599)
Fri5#iiK & Income tax credit 42,908 39,925
FEBHE Loss for the year (156,425) (109,674)
HEenEHmoEEEEN Other comprehensive income, that
Hh 2w - may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
BMEFINEBR Exchange differences on translation of
e =5 foreign operations (24,574) 10,171
FEAE A E B INES & A RIAY Share of exchange differences on
ME W =R translation of foreign associates (2,977) 674
B DI FEBH Reclassification of exchange difference on
MW ZR deregistration of foreign operation - (789)
ReEnSH P ITE Effect on cash flow hedge, net of tax
R BIA 753 459
FEHEMEEWRE Other comprehensive income for the year,
R FIE net of tax (26,798) 10,515
FEZEWREELE Total comprehensive income for the year,
NpRIRIE net of tax (183,223) (99,159)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
# %£2021512831H LEE[E For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Kt THET FHT
Notes HK$ 000 HK$’000
FELEE RS - Loss for the year attributable to:
RAEHER A Owners of the Company (155,635) (108,760)
FEVERR P 2 Non-controlling interests (790) (914)
(156,425) (109,674)
FEL 2 EUR 42858 . Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
ZiN/NCIEZZ =N Owners of the Company (182,571) (97,994)
FE5E AR 2 Non-controlling interests (652) (1,165)
(183,223) (99,159)
KRB EEANEGLEEZ Loss per share for loss attributable to
FREE owners of the Company
—HARKREE (BL) - Basic and diluted (HK cents) 10 (30.98) (21.65)
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12021F12831H As at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
ok FET FAET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERTEE Non-current assets
W - BWE k& Property, plant and equipment 14 580,238 704,150
FREEE Right-of-use assets 15 26,860 41,201
REE & N Al RERS Interests in associates 17 9,900 11,993
BEETIRE E Deferred tax assets 18 92,700 54,331
PTESBI A Derivative financial instruments 28 533 -
HiA Deposits 21 1,963 2,301
712,194 813,976
MENEE Current assets
EE Inventories 19 2,582 1,331
B 5 R Trade receivables 20 3,210 1,709
Ale c BARMEMEUEE Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 21 42,158 120,659
JE U Bt 22 R B BR 3K Amount due from an associate 17(b) 6,290 7,022
A U Bl #i 18 Tax recoverable 222 1,449
EHIRITFER Pledged bank deposits 22 8,326 8,578
ROTGEREEFRS Cash at banks and on hand 22 130,133 98,787
192,921 239,535
mEaE Current liabilities
H S IERER Trade payables 23 5,220 4,950
FE T 3R I8 K E 4th JE 1T BR Accruals and other payables 24 23,506 40,703
EHARE Contract liabilities 25 12,161 18,215
JE -1 BE 8 A &) BR K Amount due to an associate 17(b) 12 79
BERNRIER Loans from a related company 36(b) = 200,000
HERE Lease liabilities 15 40,071 41,137
IR Provision for taxation 290 385
RITE K Bank borrowings 26 239,677 50,362
320,937 355,831
mEaERE Net current liabilities (128,016) (116,296)
WMEERARIHER Total assets less current liabilities 584,178 697,680
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R2021FE12H831H As at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Bt FHET FAT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ERENEE Non-current liabilities
BiE Provision 27 738 820
RITIER Bank borrowings 26 180,441 426,434
HE&E Lease liabilities 15 7,831 18,151
&N A ER Loans from a related company 36(b) 272,874 =
TESRMITA Derivative financial instruments 28 = 642
461,884 446,047
BERE Net assets 122,294 251,633
¥ EQUITY
KATEBA Capital and reserves attributable to
FEEE AR B owners of the Company
[ Share capital 29 50,245 50,245
fH Reserves 30 73,652 202,338
123,897 252,583
JEPERR S Non-controlling interests 35 (1,603) (950)
WEmAA%E Total equity 122,294 251,633
REREFE On behalf of the Board of Directors
RXH il
Yuen Man Ying Leung Shing Chiu
HITES HITES

Executive Director

Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2021F12831HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

KRAFER AL
Attributable to owners of the Company
RERK/
kA ROEE  AHEE  iEEE  EARA HERE  HAEE ExEH & FERED  BGAE
Retained
Foreign earnings/ Non-
Share Share Merger  Statutory Capital  exchange Hedging (accumulated controlling Total
capital premium* reserve* reserve* contribution* reserve* reserve* losses)* Total interests equity
b TAL TAL THL THL THL L TEL TEL TEL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2021E1818 At 1 January 2021 50,245 145,335 (58,214) 872 - 13,798 (416) 100,963 252,583 (950) 251,633
FERE Loss for the year - - - - - - - (155635) (155,635 (790)  (156,425)
Eth2EHE Other comprehensive income
BEEHNEBE Exchange differences on translation
EREH of foreign operations - - - - - (24,711) - - (24,711) 137 (24,574)
EERERIHE AN Share of exchange differences on
ERER translation of foreign associates - - - - - (2977) - - (2977) - (2977)
Rengnzy e Effect on cash flow hedge, net of tax
iR - - - - - - 753 - 753 - 753
FEXANERS Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - (27,688) 753 (155635  (182,570) (653)  (183,223)
REREATETH Deemed capital contrioution arising from
LEETSIN loans from a related company - - - - 53,884 - - - 53,884 - 53,884
20215128318 At 31 December 2021 50,245 145,335 (58,214) 872 53,884 (13,890) 337 (54,672) 123,897 (1,603) 122,294
* ZERBRBRREMBARARRPITEERE] * The total of these accounts represents “Reserves” in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity
HZE2021F12H31HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

NG Z PN
Attributable to owners of the Company
Bx  ROGE AfEE AEHE NERE  WAEE  RERAC st FEREE B4R
Foreign Non-
Share Share Merger ~ Statutory  exchange Hedging  Retained controlling Total
capital premium* reserve” reserve” reserve” reserve”  earnings”® Total interests equity
Tix T TiEx Tin THx T TiEx TiEx THT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
*2020E151H At 1 January 2020 50,245 145,335 (68,214) 1,157 3,491 (875) 209,438 350,577 2,444 358,021
FEBR Loss for the year - - - - - - (108,760)  (108,760) 914)  (109,674)
Rtt2El s Other comprehensive income
BEBINEHR Exchange differences on translation
ERZEE of foreign operations - - = = 10,122 - = 10,122 49 10,171
JE(HAEEINEESATIR  Share of exchange differences on
BRER translation of foreign associates - - - - 674 - - 674 - 674
ENAEHBEENERAN  Reclassification of exchange difference
EXZE on deregistration of foreign operation - - - - (489) - - (489) (300) (789)
RemEHNLFE Effect on cash flow hedge, net of tax
MEHHE - - - - - 459 - 459 - 459
FERENRAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 10,307 459 (108,760) (97,994 (1,165)  (99,159)
FHE-FHBAR Deregistration of a subsidiary - - - (336) - - 336 - (2,229) (2,229)
e Appropriation - - - 51 - - (51) - - -
2020128311 At 31 December 2020 50,245 145,335 (58,214) 872 13,798 (416) 100,963 252,683 (950) 251,638
* ZERBREARSMBRIKRPIEE The total of these accounts represents “Reserves” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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FelRenER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HZE2021F12831HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
=3 THET FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
EEEMELEZHRERE Cash flows from operating activities
FRPTEIAIES 18 Loss before income tax (199,333) (149,599)
R Adjustments for:
ME--BEKRREITE Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 8 58,498 54,538
ERAEEEINTE Depreciation on right-of-use assets 8 23,737 53,176
R E AR A Finance costs 8 14,854 6,992
RITERF BUA Interest income on bank deposits 7 (18) (108)
HEYZE BERZHE (Gain)/loss on disposal of property,

(Yez) 5187358 plant and equipment, net 8 (69) 17
#IEHEEW S Gain on termination of lease 8 (37) (66)
s FE S R Written off of prepayments and

H fth e Ui B other receivables 8 33,558 770
BoREWIRY Bad debts written off in respect of

B IER trade receivables 8 - 556
sEEE— KM B A B B W Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary 7 - (293)
L SARNE R Gain on modification of loan payment 7 (309) (252)
HEREE W= Gain on rental concession of lease 7 (3,070) (4,007)
FE{LE S AR 28 Share of results of associates 513 1,053
EEESEERIZ Operating cash flows before

SEIRETNE working capital changes (71,676) (37,223)
=& (g R (Increase)/Decrease in inventories (1,278) 533
B ZEUER 0gm) R (Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (1,678) 4,927
HENTENHK Decrease in deposits, prepayments and

Hth e R R D other receivables 44,493 52,254
FE W Bt 2 B BR R Decrease/(increase) in amount due

B () from an associate 732 (859)
B SRR M, ol Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 300 (42,382)
FESTFRIE K ELfthFEBRBL/D  Decrease in accruals and other payables (16,503) (16,890)
HH8ERD Decrease in contract liabilities (6,054) (166,867)
FET Bt = A Bl AR FURL D Decrease in amount due to an associate (67) (3,653)
EiEFmAZIRE Cash used in operations (51,731) (210,160)
Bl (B FrER Income tax refund/(paid) 1,002 (1,354)
EE B 2 B R RE Net cash used in operating activities (50,729) (211,514)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HZE2021F12H31HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
i3 FAET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
REEHELEZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BEYE -BENEE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,652) (10,117)
SZAHERTIER Payment for construction in progress - (130,375)
HEME BEKRRKRHZ Proceeds from disposal of property,

FrigsR I8 plant and equipment 251 7
HIRIRITFERUR (18N)  Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits 252 (1,817)
[SAl &S Interest received 18 108
RE BT 2 FEE Net cash used in investing activities (2,131) (142,194)
MEEFHEEZRERE Cash flows from financing activities
RITIERPRIENIA Proceeds from bank borrowings 40 - 251,259
BIRIBITER Repayment of bank borrowings 40 (10,427) (165,742)
REE A BB Advance from a related company 40 120,000 200,000
ENAEREN A Principal element of lease rental paid 40 (17,634) (29,592)
ENHERENF S Interest element of lease rental paid 40 (1,940) (2,575)
[=ANEINS Interest paid 40 (5,329) (5,392)
HE LB EL L FEE Net cash generated from financing activities 84,670 247,958
HWERREEEY Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

@, el 258 cash equivalents 31,810 (105,750)
SMNEERSEEE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (464) (1,582)
FVRERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of the year 98,787 206,119
FEXRRERHEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 22 130,133 98,787
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2021F12831HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

1.

—RE

RERBEERBRAR (TRAF]) R2014F78
CAHEHESHETMMIAERREERER
N E) o AN A B B9 5 ¥t = R Ak A Windward
3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islandsc H = & &
EMBUNTBNEREBE BT RELEE
151

1

KATIMREIDF2014FE11B28E N EAM AR
SRR ARAT (TBAZFT) Tk Eme

FARMEEZXEF/REER HNBATNE
EEFHN GRSV BHRRMNE34-

FRBNERARKRERATDAEREEER
BRAR — RPN EBEBRESEMA LA
= o

HE2021F12831HIEFEZ GG HEHRETL
EEEGR2022FE38258#E & o
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1.

GENERAL

EGL Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 July 2014 as an
exempted company with limited liability. The address of its
registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO
Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. Its
principal place of business is located at 15/F, EGL Tower, 83
Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 28 November 2014.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company
is Evergloss Management Group Company Limited,
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 were approved by the board of directors on
25 March 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2021F12H31HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. REEZE

@

(e

EHREEH
mEMBREDERMBEERANEEBMH
BREREA (HEBEOEE B M SR
TP BEERNENEBMBRSEER
BB EREE) KR -GREPBRE
FEEEB(RATRE) B3RS £
RANBAKEER-

FTERERIGEAE KRR

GAMBERRSRESRAERL B
ESMTADR TR B HENR
REEEE

12020 F F X RIMI2019FE BB RHRF
(TCoVID-19)) BBEMEAEREAFERN
MERBERVYBRAREEREETE L
HERBFABUFH#EEREBBFHIEEH
EABBNALERIBBEER

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective terms include all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”)
and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The
consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis, except for a
derivative financial instrument, which is measured at fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

The coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) pandemic
pbegan in early 2020 still has a profound negative
impact on the Group’s financial performance and
financial position for the year, in particular for the
quarantine requirement implemented by Japan
government for visitors and Hong Kong government for
people entering Hong Kong from overseas.

20214E% Annual Report 2021 095



BA#53R 3R FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ZE2021F128331H IEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. REIEE 4

b) FERZERGELZRK @

HE2021F12B31HEFE  AEEE
HE51849156,425,0008 70 MEEZ
B - AEETHEEBHERHEELN
128,016,000 7T ° & AR BN FEE AR
MEM AJEHANEEFELSESENER
BARE WHAKENRHEXHBRERE
HRESEREEEA®E.

BEReRA KREETISER REANE
EHE B E2023F6830H LL#AME (M8
HE) NRsEREREN AEBRE RN
EEETAHEERBESRNAIRRERK
BTN BEE -

(@ FEREEBEERNZBEEZEMS
ERERULETERNECERER
E-ARANERER -BHEER
ERBEFRH ZHEFHFBRA A
EXBKRETHIEHENEZRR ;

b) FEBSEE-—EHEHAHAX—RETH
o U BREES (20226085 E
#96,800,00078 Tt A& S BT =X ;

096 H=mirEiRARAS EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continuea)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern

assumption (Continued)

The Group incurred a loss of approximately
HK$156,425,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021 and as of that date, its current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately HK$128,016,000.
These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
therefore, it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

In the opinion of the Board, the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due in the foreseeable future, based on the cash flow
projections of the Group covering a period up to 30
June 2023 (the “Forecast Period”) after taking into the
following considerations:

(@ The management of the Group has been
endeavoring to improve the Group’s operating
cash flows through implementing various cost
control measures, including restructuring of
workforce, implementing salary reduction for
employees and the directors of the Company,
arrangements of unpaid leaves, seeking rent
concession from landlords on the lease of certain
branches;

(b) The management of the Group has been
negotiating with a bank in Japan to defer the
quarterly payments of the principal instalment
of approximately HK$6.8 million per quarter of a
loan for the year 2022;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2021F12H31HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. RUEE

(b)

FTERZERIGHEAAZ KRR #B)

) REEUBRXEHMESH BAEL
BAETERAE (TKET) BAER
T8 R HA R 4R =~ /0 52100,000,0007%
TEIMEERMEREAER ;

(d) REXFHNRABMEEZENEIK
(BRI = B 2) Y% 15 ik 2 (Rl &
MR LU B BB B Y182 B
R-BNHRRITERELSE A&
BAFEERHEBZTILEBTME
-

e ZEEEERFERNSKBEINES
R ©

WEN X B ERTHEER L
1150 ) R B (9% 2 S I 6 5 IR AU 43
B IR  E1 BB A B R ERSME E
BARRBEHRERNELTR) 177
EEATREY EFUEMEFROE
BRRNGARBREDERE -

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continuea)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

(c) As at the date of approval of the consolidated
financial statements, Great Port Limited (“Great
Port”), a related company, agreed to provide
additional credit facilities of not less than HK$100
million to the Group during the Forecast Period;

(d) The expected mild revival of the travel business
is based on the latest developments of the
pandemic and of travel restrictions worldwide,
especially in Japan, and quarantine policy
implemented by Hong Kong government. In the
view of the continuous suspension of outbound
package tours, the Group has diversified its
business to sales of merchandises during the
current year; and

() The management of the Group keeps
endeavoring to seek additional sources of
finance.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties
exist as to whether the Board will be able to achieve
its plans and measures as described above, including
whether the Group is able to successfully implement
various control measures, arrange the additional
credit facilities from the related company and source
additional sources of finance when it is needed. The
Board is satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

20214E% Annual Report 2021 097



BA#53R 3R FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ZE2021F128331H IEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

2. REIEE 4

b) FERZERGELZRK @

HEEBREZEBRFECEERKLEX
B AARGEMBRRIFEBBIURE
EEEMREHTSTFE  BEMBIEE
EEZBIIEEFHEE  UREIER
BERIFRBEEDNENDERRBE
ERRBER  ILFRBENRZEL RN LR
B BREARE

© DERZEIEE
FEMBREUSATHNINEEEBTE
Bl

3. RMBEEBMBRSER

@) FRANFTET B ASIE ] & B 753 & 2
BI|—2021&F151H%EXL
AEARAEEERRAUTE B G
NEBHENFI A BIT BB RS %
AR AEER2021FE1B1IHZ BB
FEEHRBZ MERE

s BAUBWREENFSR -BTADS
ZERIE395E - EEYHRES ERIET
FBBMBREERFIRREE
I B|EERE165E (BFT4) » IR
BENE-FREER

o EEYUBIRSERFE165E (B5TA) »
2021468 30H & 2 COVID-1918 Bi 8

PBRIBERMNE B B RS ELF165E (B
517) > 202146 H30H % 2 COVID-1948 g
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Gt ERR D R E AR W E At 5] 2 8] K
#Eo
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2.

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continuea)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern

()

assumption (Continued)

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made
in the consolidated financial statements to write down
the values of the assets to their net realisable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effect of such adjustments has not
been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -

effective 1 January 2021

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new or amended HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA to the Group’s financial statements for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2021:

° Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

o Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

Except for the early adoption of the amendments to
HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021, the Group has not early
adopted any other new standards and interpretations
that are not yet effective for the current accounting
period.
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HZE2021F12H31HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(@

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2021 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

Effective 1 June 2020, HKFRS 16 was amended to
provide a practical expedient for lessees accounting for
rent concessions that arise as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and satisfy the following
criteria:

a) The change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

b)  The reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

c) There is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease.

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may
be accounted for in accordance with the practical
expedient, which means the lessee does not assess
whether the rent concession meets the definition of a
lease modification. Lessees apply other requirements in
HKFRS 16 in accounting for the concession.

In the annual financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group had elected to utilise the
practical expedient for all rent concessions that meet
the criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B ZE2021F128331H IEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

3. RMERBMBHRSEN @
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2021 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Continued)

Accounting for the rent concessions as lease
modifications would have resulted in the Group
remeasuring the lease liability to reflect the revised
consideration using a revised discount rate, with the
effect of the change in the lease liability recorded
against the right-of-use asset. By applying the practical
expedient, the Group is not required to determine a
revised discount rate and the effect of the change
in the lease liability is reflected in profit or loss in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
rent concession occurs.

On 9 April 2021, the HKICPA issued another
amendment to HKFRS 16: COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021, which extended
the above practical expedient to reductions in lease
payments that were originally due on or before 30
June 2022. This amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with
earlier application permitted including the financial
statements not authorised for issue at 9 April 2021.
The amendment is to be applied mandatorily by
those entities that have elected to apply the previous
amendment COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions. The
Group has early adopted the amendment COVID-19-
Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 in the
current annual financial statements.

The transition provisions of the extension to the
practical expedient require retrospective application,
with the cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendment recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings (or other
component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which the lessee first
applies the amendment.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(@

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2021 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Continued)

The Group had negotiated several rent concessions
with lessors during the year ended 31 December 2020
and none of these rent concessions affect payments
originally due after 30 June 2021 but before 30 June
2022. Accordingly, there is no impact on the opening
balance of equity at 1 January 2021. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group has entered into
additional rent concessions that satisfy the criteria for
the application of the extended practical expedient and
the Group has applied the practical expedient to these
rent concessions. The effect of applying the practical
expedient is disclosed in note 15.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

The amendments relate to changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as a result
of interest rate benchmark reform, specific hedge
accounting requirements and the related disclosure
requirements applying HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures.

The application of the amendments had no impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as
none of the relevant contracts has been transferred to
the relevant replacement rates during the year ended
31 December 2021. The Group expects no impact
on the Group’s designated hedged items/assessment
of hedge effectiveness resulting from the reform on
application of the amendments.
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(®)

3. IS BRATRIR A R ) 3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group:

o Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020"

° Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before
Intended Use’

° Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract’

° Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework?

o Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and HK
Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause®

° Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

° Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates®

o Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction®

° Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

2 Effective for business combinations for which the date
of acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

= The amendments shall be applied prospectively to
the sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual
periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amend a number of
standards, including:

° HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, which permits
a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of
HKFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by its
parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to
HKFRSs.

° HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarifies
the fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability,
explaining that only fees paid or received between
the entity and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the entity or the lender on
other’s behalf are included.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
(Continueqd)

° HKFRS 16, Leases, which amends lllustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives are
illustrated in that example.

o HKAS 41, Agriculture, which removes the
requirement to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset
using a present value technique.

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, the proceeds from selling
such items, and the cost of producing those items, is
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling a
contract’ comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to
the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract
can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g. direct labour and materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g.
the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfiling the
contract).

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement
that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the
acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result
of past events. For a levy that would be within the
scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to determine whether the obligating
event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has
occurred by the acquisition date. The amendments
also add an explicit statement that an acquirer does
not recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation
5 (2020), Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period,
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce a
definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The
revision to HK Int 5 (2020) updates the wordings in the
interpretation to align with the Amendments to HKAS
1 with no change in conclusion and do not change the
existing requirements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The HKICPA amended HKAS 1 to require entities
to disclose their material rather than their significant
accounting policies. The amendments define what is
“material accounting policy information” and explain
how to identify when accounting policy information is
material. They further clarify that immaterial accounting
policy information does not need to be disclosed, if it
is disclosed, it should not obscure material accounting
information.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies
(Continueq)

To support this amendment, the HKICPA also amended
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements to provide guidance on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments clarify how companies should
distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates. The distinction is
important, because changes in accounting estimates
are applied prospectively to future transactions
and other future events, but changes in accounting
policies are generally applied retrospectively to past
transactions and other past events as well as the
current period.

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments require companies to recognise
deferred tax on transactions that, on initial recognition,
give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible
temporary differences. They will typically apply
to transactions such as leases of lessees and
decommissioning obligations and will require the
recognition of additional deferred tax assets and
liabilities.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (Continued)

The amendment should be applied to transactions
that occurs on or after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. In addition, entities
should recognise deferred tax assets (to the extent that
it is probable that they can be utilised) and deferred tax
liabilities at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period for all deductible and taxable temporary
differences associated with:

° right-of-use assets and lease liabilities; and

° decommissioning, restoration and similar
liabilities, and the corresponding amounts
recognised as part of the cost of the related
assets.

The cumulative effect of recognising these adjustments
is recognised in retained earnings/accumulated losses,
or another component of equity, as appropriate.

HKAS 12 did not previously address how to account
for the tax effects of on-balance sheet leases and
similar transactions and various approaches were
considered acceptable. Some entities may have
already accounted for such transactions consistent
with the new requirements. These entities will not be
affected by the amendments.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. When the transaction with
an associate or joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method, any gains or losses resulting from
the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain
a business are recognised in the profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses
resulting from the remeasurement of retained interest in
any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or
a joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
these new pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
financial statements.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@

(6)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries and the Group’s interests in associates.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiaries is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests
even if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (i) power over the investee, (i) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee and (iii)
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable during the
year.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those
losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the
asset transferred they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the interest in
an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@

(e)

Foreign currency translation

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions
took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arisen,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off costs over their estimated useful lives, using
a straight-line basis, at the rates shown below per
annum. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of the reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:

Hotel and other building 2%
Leasehold improvements  30% or over the lease term,

whichever is shorter

Office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Freehold land is not depreciated.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

()

@)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represented hotel building
under construction and is stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises
direct costs of construction as well as borrowing
costs capitalised during the periods of construction
and installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases
and the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment
when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect
of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Leases
Accounting as a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of a lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

@)

Leases (Continued)
Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (i) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Subsequent to the commencement date, under the
cost model, the Group measures the right-of-use
assets at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liability. Unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased
asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised
right-of-use assets are depreciated on straight-line
basis over the shorter of useful lives and lease term.

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the date of commencement of the lease. The lease
payments shall be discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Group shall use the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate.
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Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any
lease incentives receivable; (i) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of
a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (i) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instrurments

()

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without
a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There is only one
measurement category into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial
assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables and other financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12-month ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; or (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.



e M B RN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2021F12H31HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. FEEHHEE @

h) ZHIR @

(i)

THEERIERE (B)
FBHEEBIEREEBENMERME
et EEBEDNRESHNTELE
ERZFEGHNRENEARERR
HWRZAAREREBZER ZE
RHERBERABERANRBLEE
TRAER -

AEBEAEBYHREERFNR
ZBEREHEEZBWREBIEE
B LR FRABRPEEBEFER
HEEBER AEBERIENEE
EBEEEREER TRERHA
R ERRERR EBAZERIBE
REREEIRR AN EEER-

RAMEBEMEETS  BHES
IR+ (8B S A
BoATH HERTREERKRE S
£ BB B E R R TERE
B R

RETEREEBVREIREER
bR T A A NS N B K i (i 5T TRHR(E
EEER AEEEERHEMNETEE
ANHBZHARNENER TAIES
WEERAIEEN ILBREREASE
BiBEE S ERE S G B iEA
EEEHMSHNEEREEER]D
#r o

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(1)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9’s simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors, current creditworthiness
of the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-month ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers the following as constituting
an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience
indicates that financial assets that meet either
of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial
covenants by the debtor; or

o information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collateral held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held) or (2) the financial
asset is more than 90 days past due.



e M B RN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2021F12H31HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. FEEHHEE @

h) ZHIR @

(i)

(i)

THEERIERE (B)

B EERENEREENFBUAT
REMEENBHAA BNREBE
MEBEEE) StE AR EERES
MEEMS  MEWATDRRERZE

st o

ERBENRBTEBZ ARBAREMH
PRI % > B0 2 B PR TR A BT U [B) 7k 7E By
(BIMEHARBEBNEAKRER
F o E S RKERME 2 aiBe
WE UBRBEEERE)) &R
FHMEHEMBEE-KEREZEBRR
(MBER) EMFEzEMEERT AL
MARAEBEWEREF T X265
TEBZNR - ERERWEZHIA
Rz o

2REE
FEBREEEEEY ANE SRS
EEITHE BB A S BB R
£ A4 A 2 BB R A 0 B
fER A o

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non-credit-
impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
cost are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade payables, accruals, other payables,
amount due to an associate, loans from a related
company, lease liabilities and bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is re-measured. The gain
or loss on re-measurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting, in which case recognition of any
resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of
the item being hedged (see note 4(h)(vii)).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

v)

(i)

(Vi)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is
designated as a hedge of the variability in
cash flows of a recognised asset or liability or
a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future
transaction, the effective portion of any gains
or losses on re-measurement of the derivative
financial instrument to fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the hedging reserve.
The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

20214E% Annual Report 2021 123



BA#53R 3R FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B ZE2021F128331H IEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. FEGHEBE @

h) ZH IR ®B

(vi)

B REH T (B

HIBHIRZ Z BV E R 5| BUARESEIF
THEENFEHEE HENET
WEEENESEM DR Wt AJF
THEENERITEREIEAMER
H{ER-

MR Z R A E &R S BUAES =
MEENZMEE BN ZNE
BEREaSEMOE LRE—HE
WRFr R B ERFTAER RN IEm
SRR E (PIMEESEF B A S S H
) BURABI M s AR o

W3R TREBE W E AR L 5
HE PABNEHTEHRENR
2R AR B RIENERA LR
B ERREm PR 2 W EE
ERBEARE UREHPREERE
LERREBEBERIZOMEE G0 LEPR
) ARR- SRR ZRATEHE
EamP 2R Rt N ERERNE

MoEERT -

124  S=FEEZERAERAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)
(vii)  Cash flow hedges (Continued)

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset
or non-financial liability, the associated gain or
loss is reclassified from equity to be included in
the initial cost or other carrying amount of the
non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a financial asset or
a financial liability, the associated gain or loss
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the
same period or periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss
(such as when interest income or expense is
recognised).

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or
terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, hedge accounting
is discontinued prospectively, any cumulative gain
or loss remains in equity at that time is accounted
for according to the nature of the underlying
transactions (as discussed above) once the
hedged cash flow occurs. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that has been reported in
equity is reclassified to profit or loss immediately.



e M B RN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2021F12H31HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. FEEHHEE @

()

0

7a

FENBERAES HREp AR &
REEMEPZBREERRD -RABER
ERBRARRFEERERRFMMRE
HNRRAREEZHMAE - AT R %
AFHM TG AR ISR FEENRAR
EHBED 2 (A5t EER G EEFHRH
%o

W B
KEELGHONR @R E M REAVES]
EERTERRRRT NEERAMEE
EmEARBMA RREN A ERTE T LUE
B EABEARE =W EEE - Wm
AR ER R E M ER WAL
ERIRZITH0 -

RIGHURERRENBREZR ERW
AR 75 B9 122 1 488 J [98 s ) 28 B 1 R M8 Ry
MER - HAEEBNBUTER MEMm
S ARFS BRI R R S

s ERRREBEIXKERAEBBAMME
Rz H

s FAEEENRIGERER-ENAEH
BHRBEEZEREGNEE; %

s AFAEEZBALEASEHAEEAE
BERARZEEBSEBEAARGIHT
HEFKEZS B IEERAE D 2
Ho

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

0)

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the first-in-first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
services may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or services is transferred
over time if the Group’s performance:

° provides benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0

Revenue recognition (Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or services.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For
contracts where the period between the payment and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component, using
the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i) Package tours

Revenue for package tours is recognised over
time in accounting period in which the control
of services is transferred to the customer
because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes benefit provided by the Group’s
performance as it performs. Payment is made to
the Group before the customers enjoy the tour
services.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()  Revenue recognition (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Hotel room rental

The Group provides hotel accommodations, food
and beverage and other hospitality in Japan.

The Group self-operates its hotel. Revenue
from hotel room rental is recognised over time
in the accounting period in which the hotel
accommodation services are provided to the
customer.

Sales of FIT Products, ancillary travel related
products and services

Revenue from free independent travellers (“FIT”)
packages, individual travel elements (together
with FIT package referred to as “FIT Products”)
such as sales of air tickets, hotel accommodation
and hotel packages, etc, and provision of
ancillary travel related services, such as, car
rental, travel visa application and travel insurance
arrangement, etc, is recognised at a point in time
when the booking or arrangement services are
performed or tickets are delivered to and have
been accepted by the customers. The Group is
the agent in these transactions and the revenue is
recognised on a net basis.

Where the Group acts as a principal in certain
transactions, including sales of admission and
transportation tickets and merchandise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the control
of the products is transferred to the customers,
being when the goods are sold to the customers,
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customers’ acceptance of the goods, the
customers have obtained the physical possession
or the legal title of the goods and the Group has
present right to payment.
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products and services (Continued)

The Group does not provide any sales-related
warranties. There is no right of return by
customers under the Group’s standard contract
terms, except for sales of certain train tickets.

(iv)  Travel bus services

The Group owns its travel buses in Japan. Travel
bus service revenue is recognised over time in the
accounting period in which the travel bus services
are provided to the customer.

(v)  Sale of merchandises

The Group sells goods directly to customers.
Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
product is transferred to the customers. Payment
of the transaction price is due immediately when
the customers purchase the product. Discounts
and other cash incentive to customers are
accounted for as reduction of the transaction
prices.

(vi)  Other income

Commission income is recognised when the
goods or services on which the commission is
calculated are delivered.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest
rate.

Contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the
Group obtains right to receive consideration from the
customer and assumes performance obligations to
transfer goods or provide services to the customer.
The combination of those rights and performance
obligations give rise to a net asset or a net liability
depending on the relationship between the remaining
rights and the performance obligations. Contract
liabilities are recognised for services to be provided to
customers represented by the excess of consideration
received from the customers according to agreed
customer billing schedules over cumulative revenue
recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Income tax

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(K

(m)

Income tax (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
on hand as well as short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to
be settled wholly before twelve months after the end
of the reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short-term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Defined contribution retirement plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme in
Hong Kong. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions after payment
of the fixed contribution. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries to
the maximum mandatory contributions as required
by the MPF Scheme. Liabilities and assets may be
recognised if underpayment or prepayment has
occurred and are included in current liabilities or current
assets, respectively, as they are normally of a short-
term nature. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
Macau makes monthly contributions to the social
security fund managed by the relevant authority of the
local government, which undertakes the retirement
obligations of the its employees. The Group has no
obligation for payment of retirement benefits beyond
the monthly contributions. The contribution payable is
charged as an expense to profit or loss as and when
incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)

According to the existing relevant regulations in
Taiwan, a subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
Taiwan is required to participate in the retirement plan
or scheme operated by the government of Taiwan
(the “Taiwan Scheme”) for the provision of pension
benefits to its employees. The Taiwan subsidiary is
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll
costs to the Taiwan Scheme to fund the benefits. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiary which
operated in Japan are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by a government-
affiliated corporation (the “National Pension Scheme”).
This subsidiary is required to contribute certain
percentage of employees’ salaries to the National
Pension Scheme. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiary which
operated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government (the
“Central Pension Scheme”). This subsidiary is required
to contribute certain percentage of employees’ salaries
to the Central Pension Scheme. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

All contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees and
when they fall due under the relevant regulations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- right-of-use assets;

- interests in associates; and

= prepayments

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
HKFRS.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

()

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the cash generating
unit, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
cash generating unit.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(i)

(it

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Company’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

o)

(@

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for staff costs already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable and
reducing the staff cost.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the employee share option reserve within
equity. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into
account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of the reporting period so
that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over
the vesting period is based on the number of options
that eventually vested. Market vesting conditions are
factored into the fair value of the options granted.
As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied,
a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons
other than employees and others providing similar
services, the fair value of goods or services received
is recognised in profit or loss unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets. A
corresponding increase in equity is recognised. For
cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is
recognised at the fair value of the goods or services
received.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to be ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest charges and other
costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(i) Depreciation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and
equipment in accordance with the accounting policies
stated in note 4(e). The estimated useful lives reflect
the management’s estimates of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from
the use of these assets. The management reassesses
the estimated useful lives at the end of the reporting
period.

(i) Impairment of receivables

The Group determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
provision matrix is determined based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the trade receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics and is adjusted for forward-looking
estimates. The ECLs of other receivables is determined
based on 12-month ECLs because there is no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
In making the judgement, management considers
available reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information such as actual or expected significant
adverse changes in business and customers’ financial
position. At every reporting date the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed by the management.
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5. FEGFHLERFIE @
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(i)

(v)

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

Significant judgements are required in determining
the amount of the provision for tax and the timing
of payment of the related tax. Where the final tax
outcomes are different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in
which such determination is made.

Classification of freehold land and hotel
building

As disclosed in note 14 in respect of the freehold land,
hotel buildings and hot spring bath building, these
items are not classified as investment properties as the
Group retains significant risks of running the business,
i.e. exposure to variation in the future cash flows
generated by the operations. Although the Group has
outsourced day-to-day administrative functions to a
hotel management company, the Group is not a purely
passive investor. Accordingly, management considered
that these items should be classified as owner-
occupied property.
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(V)

(v)
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RETEERERBEZMFELIE 552
HE () REEETRNERMEEEBEN
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(v)

(Vi)

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets

Judgement is required in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to
sell or value-in-use, which is the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset in the business and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions used, including the
discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group’s financial position and results of operations.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
as at FVTPL

The financial instruments at FVTPL are valued by
independent professional qualified valuers at the end
of each reporting period. Such valuation is based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty
and might materially differ from the actual results.

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the item above, please refer to the
applicable notes.
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5. FEGFHLERFIE @
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(vii) Determining the lease term

As explained in the above accounting policies, the
lease liability is initially recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. In determining the
lease term at the commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable by the Group, the
Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal
options taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for
the Group to exercise the option, including favourable
terms, leasehold improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s
operation. The lease term is reassessed when there is a
significant event or significant change in circumstance
that is within the Group’s control. Any increase or
decrease in the lease term would affect the amount of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised in
future years.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has identified its operating segments based on
the regular internal financial information reported to the chief
operating decision-makers about allocation of resources to
assess the performance of the Group’s business.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
changed its identification of reportable segments. The Group
separates “Sale of Merchandises Business” from “Travel
Related Business”. In the opinion of the Board, the revised
basis of segment identification provides a more appropriate
presentation of the segment information. Prior year segment
information is restated for comparative purpose.
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

The Group has three reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers different
products and services and requires different business
strategies. The following summary describes the operations
in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

o Travel and travel related services business (“Travel
Related Business”)

o Sale of merchandises (“Sale of Merchandises Business”)
o Hotel operation (“Hotel Business”)

Management assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on the measure of segment results which
represents the net of revenue, cost of sales, other income,
gains and losses, selling expenses, administrative expenses,
other operating expenses, share of results of associates and
finance costs directly attributable to each operating segment.
Central administrative costs are not allocated to the operating
segments as they are not included in the measure of the
segment results that are used by the chief operating decision-
makers for assessment of segment performance.

Segment assets include all assets with exception of
corporate assets, including cash at banks and on hand, tax
recoverable and certain prepayments and other receivables
which are not directly attributable to the business activities
of operating segments as these assets are managed on
a group basis. Likewise, segment liabilities exclude loans
from a related company and corporate liabilities, such as
certain accruals and other payables, which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segments and not allocated to segments.
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DEERE @ 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
FEETE (@) Business segments
MREHRER BaHEER IR st
Travel Sale of
Related Merchandises Hotel
Business Business Business Total
TET FTAT FAT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HE2021%512831H For the year ended
EFE: 31 December 2021:
W Revenue
REIINDEF From external customers 12,968 17,504 14,106 44,578
2R BT Reportable segment revenue 12,968 17,504 14,106 44,578
2R DE (B8) @A Reportable segment (loss)/profit (116,613) 1,418 (69,392) (184,587)
ME- -BEMRRBITE Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment (6,755) (43) (51,700) (58,498)
FCRARBERE Depreciation on right-of-use assets (23,737) - - (23,737)
S d=UN=E Share of results of associates (519) - - (519)
MEMRE Finance costs (2,162) - (4,845) (7,007)
Frigiaitse Income tax credit 20,559 - 22,349 42,908
OEHNHEE Reportable segment assets 175,633 7,478 649,912 833,023
A2®RDBEE Reportable segment liabilities 88,321 2,925 417,273 508,519
REERBEE Additions to non-current assets 11,567 426 687 12,680
EEHMENTEESE Share of net assets of associates 9,900 = = 9,900
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6. DEHRE @ 6.

@ ZEFEDE @

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

IREEEREEY BmHEER BIE X et
Travel Sale of
Related Merchandises Hotel
Business Business Business Total
(#KE7) (KE7)
(Restated) (Restated)
FET FHET FAET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HZE2020F12831H For the year ended
IHFE 31 December 2020:
Wz Revenue
REINDEE From external customers 236,080 7,418 6,273 249,771
RE Dz Wm Inter-segment revenue (3,133) = 3,133 =
A 2| U= Reportable segment revenue 232,947 7,418 9,406 249,771
2R (B518) EF Reportable segment (loss)/profit (90,705) 748 (57,702) (147,659)
M HE MR EITE Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment (9,198) 1) (45,339) (54,538)
FREEENE Depreciation on right-of-use assets (53,176) = = (53,176)
i A=UNCIES: Share of results of associates (1,053) = = (1,053)
RO AN Finance costs (3,329) - (3,663) (6,992)
PRSI R Income tax credit 20,455 = 19,527 39,982
AEHRNHEE Reportable segment assets 280,800 2,034 767,424 1,050,258
EHRNHER Reportable segment liabilities 125,361 391 473,210 598,962
REFRBEE Additions to non-current assets 29,569 11 140,205 169,785
LB E AT BEFE Share of net assets of associates 11,993 = = 11,993
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6. DEEHREZ @ 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
b) BIZHDE W 1B EEREEZ (b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
HlER profit or loss, assets and liabilities
2021 2020
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
W Revenue
A E2F®K D U= Reportable segment revenue 44,578 249,771
FeWm Consolidated revenue 44,578 249,771
2021 2020
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
PRSI ARS8 Loss before income tax
AE2FKD RSB Reportable segment loss (184,587) (147,659)
Hhi s 1835 Other gain/loss, net 1,327 1,307
BB A Finance costs (7,847) -
RO EEMRE Unallocated corporate expenses (8,226) (3,247)
FRPTEM B4R S 518 Consolidated loss before income tax (199,333) (149,599)
2021 2020
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
AIEHRDIPEE Reportable segment assets 833,023 1,050,258
KO EEE Unallocated corporate assets 72,092 3,253
EOREE Consolidated total assets 905,115 1,053,511
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6. DEPIRE @

(b)

©

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

B[22 W e  EEREEZ (b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,
HER &) profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)
2021 2021
TFAT FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
=K Liabilities
AE®NHWasE Reportable segment liabilities 508,519 598,962
b N = | Unallocated corporate liabilities 274,302 202,916
e =L Consolidated total liabilities 782,821 801,878
gz B (c) Geographic information

TRENNFEBRBINEE P W fRE
MEEMELERBEE ((RENFRHE
1) SN IERBNEE DI

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

revenue from external customers and non-current

assets other than financial assets and deferred tax

assets (“Specified non-current assets”):

REINNBE R Az
(&% R PRt &l 7)
Revenue from
external customers
(by customer location)

HENFRBEE
(IRERFEME D)

Specified

non-current assets
(by physical location)

2021 2020 2021 2020
FET FET FTHERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

EANEM Hong Kong and Macau
(Figa:u) (place of domicile) 29,394 238,254 31,301 46,775
HA& Japan 15,184 11,340 575,844 698,594
Hth Others - 177 9,853 11,975
44,578 249,771 616,998 757,344

FREMHE2ERAEBRHHEE R B
BEARBHEEREER ORI TMETE

The place of domicile is determined by referring to the
place the Group regards as its hometown, has the
majority of operation and centre of management.
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6. DEHRSE @ 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

@ BEALTEEFZEN (d) Information about a major customer
REE2021F12831HIEFE » KEE B The Group did not have any single customer
EEME—FPREMAEER10%U WG contributed more than 10% of the Group’s revenue

(20204 : #E) during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
© WKam I (e) Disaggregation of revenue
il AR EER BIEEH 4a3t
Travel Related Sale of Merchandises Hotel
Business Business Business Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
(=5 (= =5))
(Restated) (Restated)
TaAx TEx TFEx TEx TRz TFTEx  FTExT  TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEMETIG Primary geographical markets
EAMERM Hong Kong and Macau
(FfE i) (place of domicile) 11,890 230,836 17,504 7,418 - - 29,394 238,254
HAE Japan 1,078 1,934 - - 14,106 9,406 15,184 11,340
Hith Others - 177 - - - - - 177
12,968 232,947 17,504 7,418 14,106 9,406 44578 249,771
I s e S Timing of revenue recognition
iSdE At a point in time 5,234 16,701 17,504 7,418 - - 22,738 24,119
RERF R E® Transferred over time 7,734 216,246 - - 14,106 9,406 21,840 225,652
12,968 232,947 17,504 7,418 14,106 9,406 44578 249,771
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7.

s R EHMMWA S =S R E5I8 558 7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND
LOSSES, NET
IWHEEIEIRITE - EEB M RITHBEER  XEHE Revenue includes the net invoiced value of package tours,
BEREMEMERENEEZSEE;, ERTER ancillary travel related products, and hotel room rental and
RSB IR IT AR ARSI BR (BN I8 % 58 ; M h ancillary services; the net proceeds from FIT Products and
HE AFEMINRTENZEINESREEHT ancillary travel related services; and sale of merchandises.
wnr The amounts of each significant category of revenue
recognised during the year are as follows:
2021 2020
(&&EF)
(Restated)
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
W& Revenue
RAT Package tours 7,734 216,246
BH{TER #:2) FIT Products (note) 2,755 3,064
N IRITAE R A S R AR TS Ancillary travel related products and services
(Hiz2) (note) 2,479 13,637
EEREEN Sale of merchandises 17,504 7,418
H AR E R B e MRS Hotel room rental and ancillary services 14,106 9,406
44,578 249,771
HiaE : Note:
AEBBEHTERKMS THENERITHERREBEEN The Group’s revenue from FIT Products and certain ancillary travel
WHEEEBEAREBEEARAREZTARRNIREE B related services is considered as cash collected on behalf of
BT 358 c B FEW PR -RIBAR BB YN MR/ principals as an agent, and thus recorded on a net basis. The gross
proceeds received and receivable are as follows:
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B FEWRFT S TIE 42 28 Gross proceeds received and receivable 19,808 29,834
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7.

W B HAMMIEA - e R EEEFE @ 7.

TR EMEZBURAREZER GG

LOSSES, NET (Continued)

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND

The following table provides information about trade

HNEENER receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers:

20214 F22020£
12H31H 12831H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
FAET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
& 5 EWER (B1a220) Trade receivables (note 20) 3,210 1,709
eHaE (Watzs) Contract liabilities (note 25) 12,161 18,215
2021 2020
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000

H AU ~ W is K B518 7% %8 Other income, gains and losses, net
ER (BB W $E Exchange (loss)/gain, net (2,703) 5,155
BRIEUTA Handling income 305 502
RITERF] B WA Interest income on bank deposits 18 108
MIFWA Sundry income 2,175 1,041
HEMRE =R W E Gain on rental concession of lease 3,070 4,007
BT # Bh WA Government sponsor income 8,139 3,094
ERZTREERG Gain on modification of loan payment 309 252
i — KB A B = Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary - 293
11,313 14,452
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8. PRFREMAIEIE 8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

FREFEI A&, Gt A) U THEEEY : Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2021 2020

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

1% 25 6 BN Auditors’ remuneration 1,592 1,618
R TR AT R Written off of prepayments and

H th & W BR* other receivables* 33,558 770
BSEWIRZ Bad debts written off in respect of

[ E=pedl oy trade receivables* - 556
BRAREINEER L Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 13,531 2,817
ME-BERREITE Depreciation on property, plant

and equipment 58,498 54,538
FRESEITE Depreciation on right-of-use assets 23,737 53,176
HEME - BEKRKHE (Gain)/loss on disposal of property,

(Wz) EEiE R EE plant and equipment, net* (69) 17
HIEFE W Gain on termination of lease* (37) (66)
BB A Finance costs

—HEaBELN — Interest expense incurred on

FERX (Hfa£15) lease liabilities (note 15) 1,940 2,575

—TESRMIBEEW — Interest expense incurred on

MEMXZ derivative financial instruments 352 419
—BEABEREEN — Interest expense incurred on

FERX loans from a related company 7,847 =
—IRITEREEDN — Interest expense incurred on

AMEMRZ bank borrowings 4,715 4,951
—BERIRZEARE
HENE (Htzt16)

— Less: Imputed interest capitalised into
construction in progress (note 16) - (953)

14,854 6,992

BEMAE (BEAE128

Employee costs (including directors’

EEHD) - emoluments in note 12):
— = REMEYEF — Salaries and other benefits in kind 57,731 66,485
—RIRETEIHRR — Retirement scheme contributions 2,575 4,289
60,306 70,774
* FrEZERSHn s HtK Sz - * All these expenses are recorded as “other operating
expenses”.
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9. INCOME TAX CREDIT

2021 2020
FAET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BNHRIRIE — & B F) 1SR Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
—AREFERIEB — Tax for the year 50 31
—BEFEEETRE (B%) — Under/(over)-provision in respect of
B prior year 80 (30)
130 1
BVHAFRIE— H & F)18 Current tax — Japan Profits Tax
—BEFENCERER — Under—provision in respect of prior year - 60
- 60
IRIETRIE Deferred tax
—RAEFERTETA — Credit to profit or loss for the year
(H13%18) (note 18) (43,038) (39,986)
(42,908) (39,925)

REREHENABERRESHAR RHAS
BEEREBERRASEMNIINERER B
REERFAENEREBHERRESETES

BUE R SRR A °

B E2021FE K2020F 12831 H I FEE > fh5tE
TR A B9 E 2,000,000/ 7T328.25% 5t HE B
MAFHR > M 5T FE ST 7 : A1 #8i82,000,00078 7T
BEB D BIZ16.5%stH o A E FRERMARTE
MNEEEEN N MEFERNEEZ16.5%

BYRR R AR

The group entities incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
the BVI are tax-exempted as no business is carried out in the
Cayman Islands and the BVI under the laws of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI respectively.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first
HK$2.0 million of estimated assessable profits and at 16.5%
for the portion of the estimated assessable profits above
HK$2.0 million for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020. The profit of group entities not qualifying for the two-

tiered profits tax rates regime continued to be taxed at

16.5% for both years.
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9.

FRSTRIESR &

B E2021F12A31HIEFE BB HAR
THIRIEFORPIE E I B A B B (& 5t FE LR A
F3212% (20204F : 12% ) BIFR R 5t & - i ZE2021
F12A31HIEFE  AEERRPIEENNEBA

T E A (L ST E ST E A (20204 ©

) o

REEFECEMBRLDBENRIEZEEN
b &8 A B BVt 5T ST AR m 71 $225% (20204F

25%) M EFH - H E2021FE12831H L&
B AERRTREENWBASMEEE G
FEEREF) (20204 @ 48) o

REAZEENWB AT BEMB AN EERE
M MERGERNEHENERLEER (F
XA THANER))  ZERMERE E20214F
12831HEFEERRTEE RERBEELR

B EEFMERNENF430.6%E434.6%
(20204 : #930.6%E#934.6%) ° & £20214F

12831HLEEE  AEBRHAEENHRB AR
W B A (st PR ST AR i ) (20204 ©

) o

<l

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% (2020:
12%) on the estimated assessable profit of a subsidiary
operating in Macau for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The Group has no estimated assessable profit arising from
the subsidiary operating in Macau for the year ended 31
December 2021(2020: Nil).

PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at 25% (2020:
25%) on the estimated assessable profit of a subsidiary
operating in the PRC for the year. The Group has no
estimated assessable profit arising from the subsidiary
operating in the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: Nil).

Subsidiaries operating in Japan are subject to corporate
income tax, prefectural and municipal inhabitant taxes
and business tax (hereinafter collectively referred to
in aggregate,
resulted in effective statutory income tax rates ranging

as “Japan Profits Tax”) in Japan, which,

from approximately 30.6% to approximately 34.6% (2020:
approximately 30.6% to approximately 34.6%) for the
year ended 31 December 2021 based on the existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.
The Group has no estimated assessable profit arising from
the subsidiaries operating in Japan for the year ended 31
December 2021(2020: Nil).
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9. FhiSHiESR @ 9. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)
RBERAREFAENMMERIEE R tEBHER Reconciliation between income tax credit and accounting
I loss at applicable tax rates:

2021 2020
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRPT1SIRAIES 18 Loss before income tax (199,333) (149,599)
BEBFERE16.5% Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
(2020 : 16.5%) sTHHIMIE 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) (32,890) (24,684)
ﬁ?ﬁ{@ﬂ5£§$¥EMi5’3 B B8 /A F) Tax effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries
ZREMENMBLE operating in other jurisdictions (9,696) (10,625)
AANMIBENR 2 Tax effect of non-deductible items 4,933 450
BEFRMBENKRBE Tax effect of non-taxable items (6,806) (6,263)
REREREERBENRBEE Tax effect of temporary differences
not recognised 419 467
RIEDRNIBEENNBEE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 1,006 991
48 Eﬁiﬁﬁ?ﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬂﬁ IEEEE?E?% Tax effect of previously unrecognised
RERIEEENRBE tax losses now recognised as
deferred tax assets (169) (268)
BEFETEREERE Under-provision in prior year 80 30
Hih Others 215 (23)
(42,908) (89,925)
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10.

11.

SREE 10. LOSS PER SHARE
2021 2020
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
518 Loss
KRR ANEHLER Loss attributable to owners of the Company (155,635) (108,760)
2021 2020
T8 T8
000 ‘000
1 &8 Number of shares
ZEKREE Number of ordinary shares 502,450 502,450

H FE2021F K2020F12A31HLIEFEE » XA T
W EEE BT WERBEEEEASIRER
E5184EE o

=

EEAEZRNEE2021FE12831HIEEEN
{FAI RS 2 (20204 : 4®) o

11.

Diluted loss per share was the same as the basic loss per
share as the Company had no dilutive potential shares during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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12. EEFHM

ERFMRENT -

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows:

e REAM HER
BMER RREL
e (Hizta) (Miazp) BARsHEIHEER iz
Salaries Discretionary
and other and
benefits performance  Retirement
in kind bonuses scheme
Fee (note a) (note b) contributions Total
THERT FERT THERT TERT TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2021
HiTEZE Executive directors
RN Yuen Man Ying - 468 - 25 493
HER Huen Kwok Chuen - 855 - 36 891
28l Leung Shing Chiu - 838 - 36 874
2S5 Lee Po Fun - 862 - 36 898
=AE W) Yuen Ho Yee (note ¢) - 345 - 11 356
M7z E (Wztc) Cheang Chuen Hon (note ¢) = 699 = 11 710
- 4,067 - 155 4,222
BUFHTEE Indlependent non-executive directors
BRizIE Chan Kim Fai 202 - - - 202
B it Tang Koon Hung Eric 185 - - - 185
HER Wong Lai Ming 174 - - - 174
561 - - - 561
561 4,067 - 155 4,783
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12. EEFHM

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

e RHEM el
BWEH R
e (H1iza) (fztp) EIRsTEIHR ik
Salaries  Discretionary
and other and
benefits  performance Retirement
in kind bonuses scheme
Fee (note a) (note b)  contributions Total
THEL TET TEL THET FTET
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
2020
HITEE Executive directors
RXE Yuen Man Ying - 951 = 42 993
BEz Huen Kwok Chuen - 896 = 41 937
E %] Leung Shing Chiu - 867 = 39 906
FES Lee Po Fun - 898 = 39 937
- 3,612 - 161 3,773
BUHHTEE Independent non-executive directors
B Chan Kim Fali 202 - - - 202
159 Tang Koon Hung Eric 185 = = = 185
=EMR Wong Lai Ming 174 - = = 174
561 - - - 561
561 3,612 - 161 4,334
HiaE - Notes:

@ ENEEREAERFEHENABRNEIATRITE
B2 e RAEMBY R -

() HBERERRICADSEFAEERRBIEHFME
EgHEMERE -

© REBEKBFEEEZERAPITES > H2021
F5H28H BT ZREBFEREEREEN

d) REZE2021F12831HLEEE > KRB R%
(2020% : I9%) EEEMEFTMA4,443,000%8
75 (20204 : 3,482,000 7T) °

(@)

Being “Salaries and other benefits in kind” paid or payable to
executive directors of the Company in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Group.

The discretionary and performance bonuses are determined
by reference to the Group’s performance and approved by the
remuneration committee.

Yuen Ho Yee and Cheang Chuen Hon have been appointed
as Executive Directors with effect from the conclusion of the
AGM held on 28 May 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, six (2020: four)
directors of the Company have waived emoluments of
approximately HK$4,443,000 (2020: HK$3,482,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B ZE2021F128331H IEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

13. THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2020: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note
12 above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2020: one)
individual were as follows:

2021 2020

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

HERHEMEYET Salaries and other benefits in kind 839 960
1B R =RIZTEAL Discretionary and performance bonuses 110 160
RORETEIHR Retirement scheme contributions 18 18
967 1,138

EeHMFESE ALEMEET T

The emoluments of the highest paid non-director fell within
the following band:

2021 2020

A N

Number of Number of

Individual Individual

£ %1,000,0008 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 -
1,000,001 7t & 1,500,000/ 75 HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 - 1

BENHENFEREERBAE (FEEARTE
F) PFEBNSEREW T

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior
management (excluding directors of the Company) were
within the following bands:

2021 2020

A N

Number of Number of

individual(s) individual(s)

Z£ 31,000,000 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 1
1,000,001 75 £ 1,500,000/ 75 HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 - 1
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14. Y- -BERRE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

KAERE BER HER
T HtiigT BEMERE BRRE ERZE at: BE&E st
Hotel
Freehold and other Leasehold Office Computer Motor Furniture
and buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total
TEL Thn TAR TEL Thm TAR TEn Thm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1202051518 At 1 January 2020
A& Cost 215,955 170,312 150,884 20,541 42,657 20,798 15,070 636,217
RIE Accumulated depreciation - (6,623) (100,525) (15,404) (35,809) (11,583) (9,949) (179,8%)
REF#E Net carrying amount 215,955 163,689 50,359 5137 6,848 9215 5,121 456,324
HZE2020E1283ALEE For the year ended
31 December 2020
FNREFE Opening net carrying amount 215,955 163,689 50,359 5,137 6,848 9,215 5,121 456,324
BERIREA Transfer from construction in
(Hi16) progress (note 16 - 160,412 85,256 14,341 - - 5,151 265,160
WE Additions - 603 1,011 3,729 1,121 - 3,653 10,117
e Disposal - - - (12) (12) - - (24)
ik Depreciation - (4,030) (38,500) (2,329) (3,320) (4,208) (2,151) (64,538)
EREE Exchange adjustment 10,584 11,894 3,298 551 7 289 488 27,111
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount 226,539 332,568 101,424 21417 4,644 5,206 12,062 704,150
2020128313 & At 31 December 2020 and
202151818 1 January 2021
A Cost 226,539 343,674 242,159 39,249 43,714 21,755 24,563 941,653
RAE Accumulated depreciation - (11,1086) (140,735) (17,832) (39,070) (16,459) (12,301) (237,509)
REHE Net carrying amount 226,539 332,568 101,424 21,417 4,644 5,296 12,262 704,150
20214 % Annual Report 2021 159



BA#53R 3R FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B ZE2021F128331H IEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

14. YE - -BERREE =

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
KAEHE BER RER
fat AftiigT HENERE HARE BERE HE BEEkE &t
Hotel
Freehold and other  Leasehold Office Computer Motor Furniture
land buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total
Thn TAn Thn THn TAn Thn THn Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE2021512B31BLEE For the year ended
31 December 2021
FEmTE Opening net carrying amount 226,539 332,568 101,424 21,417 4,644 5,296 12,262 704,150
hE Additions - - 86 205 1,332 342 687 2,662
e Disposal - - - (1) (160) (21) - (182)
e Depreciation - (6,481) (37,828) (5,073) (2,37) (3,386) (3,364) (58,498)
ERHE Exchange adjustment (22,866) (33,267) (8,053) (1,878) (10) (352) (1,458) (67,884)
ERREFE Closing net carrying amount 203,673 292,820 55,634 14,670 3,435 1,879 8,127 580,238
1202151258310 At 31 December 2021
A Cost 203,673 308,985 221,705 36,864 44,542 19,396 23121 858,286
REHTE Accumulated depreciation - (16,165) (166,071) (22,194) (41,107) (17,517) (14,994) (278,048)
REFE Net carrying amount 203,673 292,820 55,634 14,670 3,435 1,879 8,127 580,238

2021128310 AEEE 2 R FRE F
{E49203,673,0007& 75 ( 20204 : 226,539,00075
7T) ~ 292,820,00078 75 (20204F : 332,568,00078
70) F21,482,000% 75 ( 20204 : 4,212,000 7T)
A H AR KA ERE LM BE R EMIEF RS
BHERAEEERNIRTER (iF26) o
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As at 31 December 2021, freehold land, hotel and
other buildings and motor vehicles of the Group
located in Japan with a net carrying amount of
approximately HK$203,673,000 (2020: HK$226,539,000),
HK$292,820,000 (2020: HK$332,568,000) and
HK$1,482,000 (2020: HK$4,212,000) respectively, were
pledged to secure the bank borrowings granted to the Group
(note 26).
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15. EAREE THE&AR

KEFFSEAEN
FEERHEEMEMNE ZEEERNEES
THYE - AR ERBEEUERGSE -

FEBTHEETHREARBEEECERES
T -BEARFE BERKHEZHEEGSHEE
PRIHYTE ZR SRR

EHREE
REFEEENDOMNEREEE ZREFE
LI

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group as a lessee

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions
from which it operates. The periodic rent is fixed over the
lease term.

The Group also leases certain items of plant and equipment,
including travel buses and plant and equipment. Leases of
plant and equipment comprise only fixed payments over the
lease terms.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
class of underlying asset is as follows:

20214 220204
12H31H 12831H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000

FEBRNEE Leased for own use,

DUHTE R AT carried at depreciated cost:

HEY % Rental premises 20,021 27,009
N Office equipment 4,921 7,253
HRE D+ Travel buses 1,918 6,939
26,860 41,201
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15. FREEE HEad ®

KEEFERAHN @

EHESE (&)

FR ERAREEZFUT

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

(Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Movements of right-of-use assets during the year:

HEME MARE gt st
Rental Office Travel
premises equipment buses Total
FTER TET FHET FTET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1£2020F181H At 1 January 2020 25,016 9,292 32,773 67,081
RE Addition 25,245 316 2,779 28,340
RIETE Termination of lease (243) - (829) (1,072)
nE Depreciation (23,033) (2,359) (27,784) (53,176)
ERAE Exchange adjustment 24 4 = 28
R2020F128318 & At 31 December 2020 and
20211818 1 January 2021 27,009 7,253 6,939 41,201
HE Addition 9,948 - 81 10,029
RIFTE Termination of lease (626) - - (626)
nE Depreciation (16,305) (2,330) (5,102) (23,737)
bR Exchange adjustment (5) () - (7
120215128318 At 31 December 2021 20,021 4,921 1,918 26,860
HEEE LEASE LIABILITIES
REBENTZIREDFTUT - The analysis of the present value of future lease payment is
as follows:
20214 F22020£
12H31H 12831H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
THET TFAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
mMENAE Current liabilities 40,071 41,137
JEREEE Non-current liabilities 7,831 18,151
47,902 59,288
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15. FRAEEE HEER @ 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES
(Continued)
KEEFEAARFAN 1B The Group as a lessee (Continued)
HEEE @) LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)
FER-HEEEZESHU T . Movements of lease liabilities during the year:
HEME NG HEE T 1@t
Rental Office Travel
premises equipment buses Total
TAT FTAT TAT TAR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R2020F181H At 1 January 2020 25,670 9,896 32,260 67,826
HE Addition 25,251 316 618 26,185
RIEAE Termination of lease (270) - (867) (1,137)
FERS Interest expense 1,402 577 596 2,575
AER Lease payments (20,042) (2,737) (9,388) (32,167)
COVID-19tBRETA & E 8, (ff22) COVID-19-related rent concessions (note) (4,007) = = (4,007)
[ERAE Exchange adjustment 8 5 - 13
112020128318 & At 31 December 2020 and
20211818 1 January 2021 28,012 8,057 23,219 59,288
WRE Addition 9,948 - 81 10,029
RIERE Termination of lease (663) - - (663)
FEHX Interest expense 1,340 448 152 1,940
HEMR Lease payments (15,360) (2,743) (1,471) (19,574)
COVID-19/8RIFA £ E R, (M752) COVID-19-related rent concessions (note) (3,070) - - (3,070)
fE R R Exchange adjustment (43) (5) - (48)
12021E12A31H At 31 December 2021 20,164 5,757 21,981 47,902
AaATHESRHEN Variable payments not included in the
FEIT measurement of lease liabilities:
120215128318 At 31 December 2021 - - - -
12020412831H At 31 December 2020 - - 661 661
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15. EAEEE HEAE @ 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES
(Continueq)

KEFIEAZAFAN &) The Group as a lessee (Continued)
HEAE (&) LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)
izt - Note:
UM ES() TR AEBE EERTSIREZME As disclosed in note 3(a), the Group has elected to apply the
e ERERSEMBEREEDF165EZEETFTS| A practical expedient introduced by the amendment to HKFRS
R TREAE AR EE2021F12831H L EE 16 to all rent concessions that satisfy the criteria. All of the rent
NS E RN S IEERERANTERE A EA concessions entered into during the year ended 31 December 2021
ATEE R FENHEaE4E5 R 3,070,0008 7T satisfy the criteria to apply the practical expedient. The application
RN E D BRSNS G R R of the practical expedient has resulted in the reduction of total lease
HAR AT AB% o liabilities of HK$3,070,000. The effect of this reduction has been

recorded in profit or loss in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers those payments occurs.

REBEMNHZEEHBWNT : Future lease payments are due as follows:
RIEFEEEM B RE
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
FAT FAET FET
120215F12H31H At 31 December 2021 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB —F Not later than one year 41,297 1,226 40,071
BE—FERMEUR Later than one year and
not later than two years 7,107 248 6,859
BB W EF A EURA Later than two years and
not later than five years 988 16 972
49,392 1,490 47,902
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15. FHESE THEAG @

FEEFERAEN @

(Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

HESE @) LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)
RERELR FE RE
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
FHET FET FHET
#2020F12831H At 31 December 2020 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AidE—F Not later than one year 42,508 1,371 41,137
HBE—FRmEUR Later than one year and
not later than two years 17,942 655 17,287
BEmERAEUR Later than two years and
not later than five years 877 13 864
61,327 2,039 59,288
16. EE T 16. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
2020
FET
HK$’000
K118 At 1 January
FXREE Opening carrying amount 129,864
nNE Additions 131,328
EBEREYIE BB ARE WaE14) Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 14) (265,160)
bE 0 AA 2L Exchange adjustment 3,968
®12831H At 31 December =
128318 At 31 December
D% Cost -
R BERBEE Accumulated impairment losses =
IRERE Net carrying amount =
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16. EBIRE » 16. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (Continued)
HZE2020512B31HILEEE HEMNEDN For the year ended 31 December 2020, imputed interests
953,000/ 7T (MIz326) ERERLREFRFTUER of approximately HK$953,000 (note 26) were capitalised in
1Ee construction in progress.

REE2020FE 12831 HIEEE » PRI AE During the year ended 31 December 2020, the construction

EFEEEMBEBNAES (HERaiEe & REF of hotel building in Okinawa was completed and the related

B) BEEBREY X - MEELZFE- costs including capitalised interests were transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

17. REE AT 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2021 2020

FHET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

ELEEZEE Share of net assets 9,900 11,993
JFE Ui B = A B BR =R Amount due from an associate 6,290 7,022
P& B A B BR R Amount due to an associate 12 79
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17. RBEAT#ED @ 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continue)
(@) 20214 2020 12531 HAV#H & A (@) Particulars of associates as at 31 December
=S =2/ 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
MM EEITREY
YNGIEZY A Bt EFEEH
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ interest held
Name of company operations indirectly  Principal activities
REBRTHEEER AR (TEGLEE)) P2 38% MEERMEARIKITE
EGL Tours Korea Co., Ltd. (‘EGL Korea”) Korea Provision of inbound

package tours in Korea

G HEGLHAE" (TEGLHAE)) =P 38% R HAPERMAZRITE
Kabushiki Kaisha EGL Okinawa* (‘EGL Okinawa”)  Japan Provision of inbound

package tours in
Okinawa, Japan

KA et ARE (THRE) HA& 41% REXEHEMRITE
Niti Niti Travel Co., Ltd. (“Niti Niti Travel”) Japan Provision of local package
tours in Japan

* R A FRE R * English name for identification purpose only
(b) B TETHE L GIER A4 (b) Amount due from/to an associate is unsecured,
RERIEERER - interest-free and repayable on demand.
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18. IREIRIEH E 18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
RAFEELBFFERIERIESEE 2B LS Details of the deferred tax assets recognised and movements
BEEBUE - during the current and prior year are as follows:

L/E MIEE1E

B & K e
B4 Hith (Hi:z) st

Tax losses

Property, carried

plant and forward
equipment Other (note) Total

FTHAT T FTHET FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

72021FE181H At 1 January 2021 21,216 375 32,740 54,331
RAREEERTA WE9) Credit to profit or loss
for the year (note 9)
—EEREREREER — Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 9,007 107 33,924 43,038
STAFERER Credit to equity for the year - (398) - (398)
bR Translation adjustment (2,427) (28) (1,816) (4,271)
72021FE12831H At 31 December 2021 27,796 56 64,848 92,700
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18. IRIERIBEE

18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Continuea)

/EN MIEEE
TR B K e
# 1 Hith (H152) AR5t
Tax losses
Property, carried
plant and forward
equipment Other (note) Total
FATT FET TET FET
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000
1£2020F181H At 1 January 2020 9,581 1 3,714 13,296
RARFEEBERFTA W9) Credit to profit or loss
for the year (note 9)
—EXREOEREER ~ Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 10,829 608 28,549 39,986
STAFRER Credit to equity for the year = (248) = (248)
ERAE Translation adjustment 806 14 477 1,297
2020F12831H At 31 December 2020 21,216 375 32,740 54,331
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18. IEERIGEE &= 18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (Continued)

LUR S 54k & 75 E 2 EIEFR IRAG R 9 4

The following is the analysis of deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

2021 2020

FAET FET

HK$’000 HK$ 000

RIERIBE E Deferred tax assets 92,700 54,331
Mzt - Note:

RABEHAR AEEAREBEERBEEHEBEY
245,269,0007 7T (20204 : 124,791,000 ) > A & R
HABFIRSEEEBEN AT N R KB ER G o A&
& 78 A R B A FR TE 5 38 494,364,000 7T ( 20204F -
4,357,000 7T) BN AEEREHP R ELERIEES
$8%911,478,0007 7T (20204 : 7,378,000 70) &
= FEREHLURT B A EERIERE475,539,00078 7T
(20204 : 42,723,000/ 7T) &I+ (202045 : LE
+5) AEIEE > AIIREH R R FERR G F] c REEWE A
B RAMBARAUKRBAMBAREE 2 RIEEE
SR 2 R IEFRIEE E D B 49241,967,0007 7T (2020
£ 1 121,526,000 7T) ~ 491,329,000 7T ( 20204 :
1,329,000 75) MU KR #4975,414,00038 7T (20204 :
37,360,000/ 7T) ° fEk F 2 RUAEIE (B1EE 8 PE
REAHMHMBAREEZRNIBEE) Ma > ARES
AT B B AR 0 B E £ SRR A A LUR S R I8 S
B B R F U RIRIE R IBE E ©
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group has tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$245,269,000 (2020:
HK$124,791,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
The Group also had tax losses arising in the PRC of approximately
HK$4,364,000 (2020: HK$4,357,000) that will expire in five years,
tax losses arising in Macau of approximately HK$11,478,000 (2020:
HK$7,378,000) that will expire in three years and tax losses arising
in Japan of approximately HK$75,539,000 (2020: HK$42,723,000)
that will expire in ten years (2020: nine to ten years) for offsetting
against future taxable profits, respectively. Deferred tax assets have
been recognised for tax losses arising from a subsidiary in Hong
Kong of approximately HK$241,967,000 (2020: HK$121,526,000),
from a subsidiary in Macau of approximately HK$1,329,000 (2020:
HK$1,329,000) and from subsidiaries in Japan of approximately
HK$75,414,000 (2020: HK$37,360,000). Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses, including
the tax losses arising from the other subsidiaries in Hong Kong, PRC
and Japan, as it is not probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised in the foreseeable future.
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19. F& 19. INVENTORIES
2021 2020
FAT TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Bl EHE A o Merchandise for sale 2,582 1,331
20. EZEWER 20. TRADE RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
TFHET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FEUR Trade receivables 3,210 1,709
RBIEXEZEHH  RREHER  ~EB 2B LS EI The ageing analysis of the Group’s gross trade receivables
BRABZEAVBRES D AT E - as at the end of the reporting period, based on invoice date,
is as follows:
2021 2020
FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
0 -90k 0 - 90 days 2,431 1,359
91 - 180k 91 - 180 days 91 331
181 - 365k 181 — 365 days 68 19
#BiB365K Over 365 days 620 =
3,210 1,709
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20. BSEWER @ 20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

AEBFFIATFESZEREERNERE B85
10REOK - RIFFEH > AEEE 5Z EUERAR
FEMERES DATIO T ¢

The Group has a policy of granting trade customers with
credit terms of generally 10 days to 90 days. The ageing
analysis of the Group’s gross trade receivables, based on
due date, is as follows:

2021 2020

TFET TAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

5 A< 380 HA Not vet past due 1,699 9

A= 1E B UA Past due within three months 801 1,565
AAABE=EAEE Past due more than three months but

R7E R UR within six months 50 116

BHBEEAE Past due more than six months but
R—FURN within one year 660 19
3,210 1,709

R20215F12H31H BERNESEEREA L
MEENREE RAANE ZEBEREAREE
UERFRR MESHRAEEFTERFNZZE
BRtte—Mmas > AEBWARZEHBREER
{14 1R 3¢ EL A5 FB 1R 58 ©

AEBERSEYBREELNFERFIANEG
{ER A EEFBEREE  ZRTEAH
FIEB 2R RRAERANTRRGEEBEREME
AIIETRREEHE BEZBUVERERERRE
ERBSEMERERRAD B -TBREEBETE
ERIEEER o 1R2021F12831H > K RBEESH
RAMEZEBRESBEEHNEREERHIE
WAREK
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The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December
2021 was the carrying amount mentioned above. Trade
receivables that not yet past due related to a large number
of independent customers that had a good track record
of credit with the Group. In general, the Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
palances.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
lifetime ECL provision for all trade receivables. To measure
the ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
ECLs also incorporate forward-looking information. As at
31 December 2021, the directors of the Company consider
ECLs against the gross amounts of trade receivables are
immaterial.
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21. ;1 AR R EMMEIER 21. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

2021 2020
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

FEREEE Non-current asset
HES Deposits 1,963 2,301

MEEE Current assets

HhE U R Other receivables 8,082 37,845
HERCi=) Deposits (note) 6,546 7,160
FE{T R Prepayments 27,530 75,654
42,158 120,659

RESHPEENESEERRD LMRZERE
WERBVEREIE - A E BT \IFAEMIERRES
R

=
ZEHOREXN T - REAERADAETHNEHET N

1,455,000 75 (20204F : 2,117,000 7T) ° %51 & A HE
WE R E RN E mEEE -

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is

the carrying amounts of each class of receivables mentioned

above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

Note:

The amount included rental deposits paid to a related company,
Great Port, of approximately HK$1,455,000 (2020: HK$2,117,000).
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable at the end

of the rental periods.
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22, IXWIRIT IR EIRITESREFIH  22. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AT
e BANKS AND ON HAND

2021 2020

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

RITER Cash at banks 135,574 103,730

EBEERE Cash on hand 2,885 3,635

138,459 107,365

B IERIRITER Less: Pledged bank deposits (8,326) (8,578)

HEMBERRITZ Cash at banks and on hand per
BT EFNREFRE consolidated statement of financial position 130,133 98,787

FAEENRERREEEBYEEENRSBIRT
FERF e Rt SRIRITTE RN ZE T
MIBFEFBENRHIRTER R2021F128
318 HEMENF0.01%ZE2.75% (20204 :
0.01%ZE2.75%) > BRI FBHAR A =@ U Ao

R2021F 12831 A&EBE TRITEFERD
8,326,000 75 (20204F : 8,578,00038 T) I IR45
RIT TEEREBRREIEEANETE=HA
(R RV IR B R EE BRI T B RBIIER ©
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The Group’s cash and cash equivalents comprise bank
deposits carrying interests at floating rates based on daily
pbank deposit rates and short-term bank deposits carrying
interests at prevailing market interest rates ranging from
0.01% to 2.75% (2020: 0.01% to 2.75%) per annum as at
31 December 2021, with an original maturity of three months
or less.

As at 31 December 2021, certain bank deposits of the
Group amounting to approximately HK$8,326,000 (2020:
HK$8,578,000) were pledged to banks as securities mainly
for letters of guarantee issued to certain third parties on
behalf of the Group and as securities for bank borrowings of
the Group.
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23. BSEMER

24.

BRAMRNEEMNRELTRHEEEMD
HFREREMAE > BERIREIOKR - REBERH
NMERNES @BERERAH—  NREBR
R AEEEZREMRNEREDOTNT ¢

23. TRADE PAYABLES

The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
terms agreed with different suppliers, which normally range
from 1 day to 30 days. Based on the receipts of services and
goods, which normally coincided with the invoice dates, the

ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end

of the reporting period is as follows:

2021 2020
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
0-90% 0 - 90 days 3,070 1,447
91 - 180K 91 — 180 days 30 51
181 — 365% 181 — 365 days 83 1,320
BiB365K Over 365 days 2,037 2,132
5,220 4,950

FEstRIE K H{th e BR 24. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
2021 2020
THET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEsT R IE Accrued expenses 11,853 11,586
HAMEER Other payables 11,653 29,117
23,506 40,703

20214 Annual Report 2021 175



BA#53R 3R FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRNET

B ZE2021F128331H IEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. B&EE 25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
2021 2020
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BHEEELR Contract liabilities arising from:
IR 2 A8 B ZE 75 Travel Related Business
—RITE -BHETERK — Sales of package tours,
RITHERERHEE FIT Products and travel
related products 11,652 13,785
— R EERIFI S — Unexpired discount vouchers 503 4,430
B IEETE Hotel Business 6 =
12,161 18,215
HENEEESREERTFE L — BRI (IEZTOTF - Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities are as follows:
@ FRLEERETE (a) Travel Related Business

() T~ BE{TERRI{TIER Em
BHEERBARAE P RAKRERK
EmBEARBARABEER K W
BERZFENMe

AEEBHR —FRUARAR T ERN
RERFBUBTZFENEEZHT

o
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()

Sales of package tours, FIT Products and
travel related products

Contract liabilities represent advance payments
received from customers for services that have
not yet been performed to the customers or the
control of the products have not been transferred
to the customers.

The Group expects to deliver the goods or
services to satisfy the remaining obligations of
these contract liabilities within one year or less.
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25. aEaE®

25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

@ KRR (&)
i)  REEHHIZF
AEEBE TR RHIREBBES
s - AERETUILBEERIREK
w4 B B RRIMIRTT B S AR IT IR RA = fA
ZEAREN BRENZBHNEFTH
HRBLEBRZEI/ENER-
GHAREREFRBERRBEMIR
75 IRy 2 EL B AR B 5B 2 ik o

R2021E12831H DA EHE K E
BTN HEAZB TEAZENR
5 B % 4858 4 49503,00078 7T (2020
£F © 4,430,000587T) > B ZEITI0
FERPAZ+RER > KEERR
Z+IUE B R sR W o

b BIEEE

BREBEREARRE P RTASRER
WERE R Z AR e

REEBRRAR —FUNRERBUBT
ZEGNEBRZHF T&ER-

(a) Travel Related Business (Continued)

(b)

(i)

Unexpired discount vouchers

The Group provides discount vouchers to certain
customers for Travel Related Business. The Group
determines this offer represents a material right to
purchase additional package tours or travel related
products in the future two years and recognised
as a contract liability based on the relative stand-
alone price of the performance obligations in
the contract. The contract liability recognises as
revenue when the customer redeems it for goods
or services or when it expires.

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation in connection to the
unexpired discount vouchers is approximately
HK$503,000 (2020: HK$4,430,000) and the
Group will recognise this revenue within 24
months as the discount vouchers are effective for
24 months.

Hotel Business

Contract liabilities represent advance payments

received from customers for hotel services that have

not yet been rendered to the customers.

The Group expects to deliver the services to satisfy the

remaining obligations of these contract liabilities within

one year or less.
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25. aNBEE® 25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)
TRV ENEBE 2 EE) . The table below details movements in contract liabilities:
2021 2020
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
M1B18 At 1 January 18,215 185,080
A FERR A AN FEE W Decrease in contract liabilities as
GtAFEMEHNER) a result of recognising revenue
mEmafNaatz b during the year that was included in
the contract liabilities at the beginning
of the year (4,488) (156,818)
ARFEESLIBEM Decrease in contract liabilities as
BEREHNEERD a result of contract modification
in the current year (3,934) (13,925)
(A= 25 A8 BE = 75 BB IS 275 Increase in contract liabilities as
TR (FBERAEE a result of billing in advance of
ERRAWNGRZIEE) Travel Related Business and
MiEMmaNaEzIgmnm Hotel Business, excluding those
recognised as revenue in the
current year 2,368 3,878
®12831H At 31 December 12,161 18,215
26. fRITERX 26. BANK BORROWINGS
2021 2020
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
TREN Current
RITER BIKIT Bank borrowings, secured 239,677 50,362
JETRED Non-current
RITER EEMH Bank borrowings, secured 180,441 426,434
420,118 476,796
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26.

RITETR @

R2021812831H » £9420,118,0007 7T (2020
£F 1 476,796,000% 75) BVIRTTE RIS 72 B LLABER
B #1497,975,00078 7t (20204 : 563,319,000
B7t) (MsE14) 494,630,000 75 (20204 -
4,889,00077T) (Mfst22) ME TYZE B E K%
BRI IBITERELIR o LI ZFWITER
& H1#493,486,00078 7t (20204 : 3,870,000/ 7T)
TDH—XEBAWBATMN — 2RI dFERREZ
MZESEIRIR o

BOREBNMERGRZZHBBGRZRR &
> AEEEREE TEETBERRIZH -1
202112831 "EBE W KR EITEHIBITEI L
B &4 FT iR E M 49228,554,00078 7T (7220204
12H31H : 10,000,000/ 7T) K EEERELEZ
M3  RIERILZHER RITERBES
HNERAEEVREEREENENE KER
EERIN2021F12831H &2020%F12831H 27!
BnEasEe

2022828210 AEBEERITHREBTRE
BB FEEAY220,554,0008 TV REERK - B
B2022F2B21AEDERIERFER-

5 K (832 $R 1T B 7X8,000,0007 7T B H 1B
REITIREEMERFER2022F3811HE
E 2H TN REEHEEAR2022F12831H ©

26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the bank borrowings of
approximately HK$420,118,000 (2020: HK$476,796,000)
were secured by charges over certain property, plant and
equipment and pledged bank deposits with aggregate
carrying amounts of approximately HK$497,975,000
(2020: HK$563,319,000) (note 14) and approximately
HK$4,630,000 (2020: HK$4,889,000) (note 22) respectively.
In addition, among these bank borrowings, an amount of
approximately HK$3,486,000 (2020: HK$3,870,000) was
also secured by a property of a former non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary in Japan.

Some of the Group’s facilities letters are subjected to
covenant clauses, whereby the Group is required to meet
certain key financial ratios and covenants. The Group did not
fulfill the financial covenants as required in the contracts with
the banks for the outstanding loan amounts of approximately
HK$228,554,000 as at 31 December 2021 (as at 31
December 2020: HK$10,000,000). Due to this breach of
the covenant clause, the banks are contractually entitled to
request for immediate repayment of the outstanding loan
amounts. The outstanding balances were presented as a
current liability as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020.

On 21 February 2022, the Group obtained a waiver of
compliance with the covenant requirement from the
bank for the outstanding loan amounts of approximately
HK$220,554,000. The loans were classified as non-current
liabilities from 21 February 2022 onward.

The terms of the outstanding bank loan in the amount of
HK$8,000,000 were subsequently revised and a renewed
facilities letter was signed on 11 March 2022 which has the
next renewal date as at 31 December 2022.
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26. $RITETR @ 26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)
BITERBEAABE IMEESNEIZE The bank borrowings are initially measured at fair value,
(B st HEN BB R X E 10 # A net of directly attributable costs incurred and subsequently
& o measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.
WITEDEBRAEREN RO 79%E1.67% The bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
(20204F : 0.81%E2.94%) IR EH A AT =E > amortised cost using effective interest rate of 0.79% to
FENETREIERZERNEEFNEAZTE T (2020 1.67% (2020: 0.81% to 2.94%) per annum and imputed
£ 1 958,000 7T) © interest of HK$NIl (2020: HK$953,000) was capitalised into

the construction in progress during the year.

REREEAR  BITERBERER T AT E At the end of each reporting period, total bank borrowings
HREE . were scheduled to repay as follows:
2021 2020
FHET FHET
DUT (HaE) : Analysed into (note): HK$’000 HK$’'000
—FRERER Within one year or on demand 239,677 50,362
—FEM EERBEmE Over one year, but within two years 7,655 40,588
MEMU EBABBEAE Over two years, but within five years 23,062 116,087
EEME Over five years 149,724 269,759
420,118 476,796
HtaE - Note:
ERRERPEPARIELEER BEMBNTBETER The amounts due shown in the repayment schedule are based on
HHAZ R o the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
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26. IRITIERR ¢

122021512831 BRIRITEMEFIRHIIAM T ¢

26.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Details of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2021 are
stated below:

i3 GilES ERHR
Principal Interest Repayment
amount rate terms
TER
HK$’000
LAEENER Loan denominated in Japanese Yen (*JPY’) 220,554 EFFEA={ERH BR+ER
RRBIRERS fBiE
M EER%=1.0%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 12 years
Offered Rate
+1.0% per annum
L HEENER Loan denominated in JPY 3,486 B EEF = BRAER
1.2% BE
Fixed rate Payable within
1.2% per annum 5 years

N BEHER SR

LB TTEHER SR

Loan denominated in JPY

Loan denominated in HK$

188,078 FHEXA=EAH

BRZ+RER

RRBOIFERS g
M EERZ20.5%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 26 years
Offered Rate
+ 0.5% per annum
8,000 FHEXH—EA BRATRA
ERRTAERS fBiE
M EER%=1.5%
1-month Payable within
HIBOR 90 days

+1.5% per annum
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ERREERBINT

26.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Details of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2020 are

stated below:

A% GilE:S BB
Principal Interest Repayment
amount rate terms
TET
HK$'000

N AEFENER Loan denominated in JPY 245255 FRIXH=EAH AR+ &R
RRFITEZERS g8

£ FHZE.0%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 12 years

Offered Rate

+1.0% per annum
M BEHENER Loan denominated in JPY 3,870 & EFI=E BRRER
1.2% BE
Fixed rate Payable within
1.2% per annum 5 years
MBEEHER Loan denominated in JPY 217,671 FHERB=EEB ARZHRER
HRRITEZERS EE

il EE#12£0.5%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 26 years

Offered Rate

+ 0.5% per annum
BUATEHER Loan denominated in HK$ 10,000 FRER—ER ARNTEA
BERTEAERS BE

i EFHZE1.5%
1-month Payable within
HIBOR 90 days

+1.5% per annum
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27.

28.

e

R2021F K%20205F12H31H > st BANEEY
¥ ZBEMAFMIEHNES  NIREREGRHRN
HAERNEEZHEYEEHRAE R ING
SRS o 3 BRI 1B B BT A 5 AR HR A4S SR By
EERNRAERE-

TTEEMIA

R2021F12B31H  AEBRFELEZENE
28#9155,757,0007%8 7t (492,319,200,000H [&])
(20204F : 199,897,000 7t (492,676,000,000
HE)) WARIEFEHEEEF == 85 LUR D
MEFHHEHASEFZIHHERRFETEHERY
155,757,00078 7T (492,319,200,000H [B]) AIF
o ZHHIEN2019FE1B4H £ Em B A
2023128318 °

R20215F12831H  AEEBIZFEERE
HWABRNBREREBBTE MAAEEY
533,000/8TTIEEE S (20204 : 642,00078 7T1E
BEH) RESIEIL-

R2021F12831 B R AN XEHEN A A EE
H—XBILEXGHEMA B NS RIKTH:50
BRABEHGE FEEHRANANBEASE
Bt R B RMERIEASHNTARNEEF
HE PRBREPARARLEIEBRSNRTWERZ S
Z{hEt & 88

27.

28.

PROVISION

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there is a provision for
reinstatement cost of a leasehold property in Japan, which
relates to the estimated cost of restoring the leasehold
property to its original state at the end of the lease term
in accordance with the lease terms. The main uncertainty
relates to estimating the cost that will be incurred at the end
of the lease term.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had outstanding
floating-to-fixed interest rate swap with a notional contract
amount of approximately HK$155,757,000 (approximately
JPY 2,319,200,000) (2020: HK$199,897,000 (approximately
JPY2,676,000,000)) to reduce the impact of interest rate
fluctuation on the secured floating-rate bank borrowings
of approximately HK$155,757,000 (approximately JPY
2,319,200,000) in Japan. The swap started on 4 January
2019 with a maturity date on 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recognised such
interest rate swap contract as an effective cash flow hedge
with fair value of approximately HK$533,000 on the asset
side (2020: HK$642,000 on the liabilities side) deferred in
equity.

The fair value of the outstanding interest rate swap as at
31 December 2021 was valued by Ravia Global Appraisal
Advisory Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers. The fair value of interest rate swap is the estimated
amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the
swap at the end of the reporting period, taking into account
observable interest rates and the current creditworthiness of
the swap counterparties.
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29.

30.

A& 7s 29. SHARE CAPITAL
HE HXE
Number Amount
T FHET
‘000 HK$’000
JERE Authorised
R EEO. 18772 ZER Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
722020181 H ~ 20204 K& At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020
2021512831H and 2021 1,000,000 100,000
HE HXE
Number Amount
T FHET
‘000 HK$’000
EETRBEZZER Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid
2020 F1H1H ~ 2020F K At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020
2021E12H31H and 2021 502,450 50,245
B 30. RESERVES
RNEBREEFS  HIEHN G REEEFRA - Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set
EEANHEEERENNT out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The natures and purposes of reserves within equity are as
follows:
1 mE Share premium
KEBRMD BBRIEA AT ZETRISFAENIE The share premium account of the Group represents the
BENAT EZETRMOEEZED excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued.
=S EEE Merger reserve
NEBSHEBRERNBAT ZKREMNZANE K The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
EERNBATNERTRAmBZENERE between the investment costs in subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the issued share capital of the Group’s
subsidiaries.
SNE Foreign exchange reserve

AEBNIIMNERBEREBIIEBRBEAT
R/ERB2FNEEHERTER

184 H=FsERARAS EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Foreign exchange reserve of the Group represents the
exchange differences on translation of the foreign operations
and associates into presentation currency of the Company.
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30. f#fE®= 30. RESERVES (Continued)

H 1

250 8 6 IS RIE M EEA (VDT LR S R B S
ST RA S BB I FRRRA B IR S R AT
RESREH NS R TAARBER B2
DHBHEBS -

SEEE
AEBNEERBEBRERFIEMAIN —KA
MR B RABREERITE (BFT) BRATE
Ho

RIFBRFI (R /AB ) EBI776 > B AR AR ER
L% BIRMIERLAEREE BEEREEIZ
N AR ZAS50% [ K I o 722021 52020512 8
318 A HEBEEIINE AT RKRAME50% o Zok
ERAEARTREDIK

REBEREABE  RRERITH CRYD BRAF

(RABEEMAIIZWERT) BREEEER
BFH (CIEHBEFEHERR) BH10%EETE
FET EECHBTHRAEIEREMELR
50%06s > BRI R ER S EHE — D B - A ER
wEAARREBTEFEBRNIBMEMELS-
R ZELERBENERETIRARRMER
BRI S B AAI50% KT o BLZE2021F &
2020 12A31HIEFE » RiR#ERITH (RN A
RABBEES &R -

BARA

BEARKARAEBRTZH EHAREE A T WA
HNESHEBENEZEMESHAGT ARERE
H2 R MIFE36(0) ©

Hedging reserve

Hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of
the cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging
instruments used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent
recognition of the hedged cash flow in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for cash flow hedges in
note 4(h)(vii).

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve of the Group is contributed by EGL Tours
(Macau) Company Limited, a subsidiary incorporated in
Macau and limited by quotas.

Under the Macau Commercial Code Article 377, a subsidiary
is required to set aside a minimum of 25% of profit after
taxation to the statutory reserve until the balance of the
reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of the company’s
share capital. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
statutory reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiary’s share
capital. Statutory reserve is not distributable.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, EGL Tours
(Shenzhen) Company Limited, a subsidiary incorporated
in the PRC, is required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory net profit after taxation (after offsetting any prior
years’ losses) to the statutory reserve fund. When the
balance of the statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of
the entity’s registered capital, any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or to increase the registered capital.
However, such balance of the statutory reserve fund must
be maintained at a minimum of 50% of the registered capital
after such usages. For the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020, there was no profit generated by EGL Tours
(Shenzhen) Company Limited.

Capital Contribution

Capital contribution represented benefits received by the
Group arising from the differences between market interest
rates and preferential interest rates charged by a related
company. Please refer to note 36(b) for detail.
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31.

186

FERRtEStE

RNBIRMA BB HEST B (T5H8)) 722014411
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HE - REBEREZENTRELOBRHEZ TN
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RHBRENTEHBREFETLNFRE
MRS AR ARESH AR BREKRE
R BRESt T F 2R TRIBFRIEZRX
MR o

RARGEIBE T EAREEETEREERTEN
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BITAEREMNEREMEB TETHNRMBHER
BARBEREERBERENACEITERE
RABEETRBII0% (R RIBIERER
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RREERBRAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) adopted by the
Company was approved by the shareholders on 13
November 2014.

A summary of the Scheme is set out below:

The Scheme became effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 28 November 2014. Under the Scheme, the
directors shall, in its absolute discretion select and make an
offer to any eligible participants to subscribe for shares of
the Company at a subscription price being not less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of the offer of grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer of grant and (iii) the nominal
value of the share. The offer of a grant of options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer.

The options granted shall be exercisable in whole or in
part in the effective option period (i.e. 10 years from the
commencing date on 28 November 2014). The exercise
period of the options granted is determined and notified by
the directors to the grantee thereof at the time of making an
offer provided that such period shall not exceed the period
of 10 years from the date of the grant of the option is made,
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted at any time under
this Scheme together with options which may be granted
under any other share option schemes for the time being
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue immediately following the
completion of the global offering and the capitalisation issue
(but taking no account of any shares issued upon over-
allotment), being 50 million shares.

No share options were granted under the Scheme during
the current and prior years. As at 31 December 2021 and
2020, there were no outstanding options granted under the
Scheme. Share options do not confer rights to the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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32.

BIRSHE

AEBERRBEEREATES (MaEs) 5
2 EEBHIEH B2000FE1281 H AW 2 @M%
RBEEAEMEROI2EB—LBEEZERTEANE
BErzaRwstE AHAEBERES MMM - RiEA
Feitd EXHHEESRESERMAAREZS%
ZEBRZAEER (ZRRESEABERARK
) o5 HBRA L LRA30,000/8 7T o @A 5
SNHRNFE T REFME

REBBRRTE RN AEBTAREESREE
AITERHFETEDLERM 8 PEK
B AR EHBAETE

RAREE » NER (VT HRAEREA2,575,000
70 (20204 : 4,289,000 7T) © AN E LS
WA HIR S IR A H ko

32.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Schemes Authority in Hong Kong, with effect from 1
December 2000, the Group participates in the MPF Scheme
operated by an approved trustee in Hong Kong and
makes contributions for its eligible employees. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income. The cap of monthly relevant income
is HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest
immediately.

In addition to the MPF Scheme in Hong Kong, the Group
is also required to contribute a certain percentage of
employees’ monthly basic salaries to the defined contribution
retirement schemes in Macau, Taiwan, the PRC and Japan.

During the year, the aggregate amounts of employer’s
contributions made by the Group were approximately
HK$2,575,000 (2020: HK$4,289,000). No forfeited
contribution was available for offset against existing
contributions during the year.

20214E% Annual Report 2021 187



BA#53R 3R FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMRHmRM T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B ZE2021F128331H IEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

33. RTF 2B AR AR 33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
@ AREZHBEA LR (@) Statement of financial position of the Company
2021 2020
HizE FAET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current asset
KRB AR Z’E Investment in a subsidiary 61,198 61,198
MENEE Current assets
TR Prepayments 565 482
FE W By /8 A~ B BR R Amounts due from subsidiaries 36(d) 62,459 181,350
AJUg[EFR 18 Tax recoverable 2 38
ROTERREFRE Cash at banks and on hand 621 531
63,647 182,401
mEEaE Current liabilities
FESTRRIE K H At FE T AR Accruals and other payables 1,427 2,916
FE(S M B AR BRRR Amounts due to subsidiaries 36(d) 1,124 1,124
2,551 4,040
MEEEFE Net current assets 61,096 178,361
BEFE Net assets 122,294 239,559
Lr EQUITY
[N Share capital 29 50,245 50,245
i Reserves 33(b) 72,049 189,314
R 4B %A Total equity 122,294 239,559
RKERESZSZ On behalf of the Board of Directors
RXHE Ay il
Yuen Man Ying Leung Shing Chiu
HITES HITES
Executive Director Executive Director
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33. XRBIZHBRARKREE @ 33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

b) FEAEEE

(b) Reserves of the Company

RERH
R EE (R5HE18) 4ast

Retained

earnings/

Share  (accumulated
premium losses) Total
FHETT FHET FETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#2020F181H At 1 January 2020 145,335 43,455 188,790
FERE RN Profit for the year = 524 524

202012831 H K At 31 December 2020 and

2021%E181H 1 January 2021 145,335 43,979 189,314
FEEIE Loss for the year - (117,265) (117,265)
2021%£12831H At 31 December 2021 145,335 (73,286) 72,049
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34. fIBAT] 34. SUBSIDIARIES
1202112831 H » KRB K T 5 B A 5 % As at 31 December 2021, the Company had direct or
EEEyREED ZE N EEMABREA indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which
3 HEFBEAW T ¢ are private companies with limited liability, the particulars of

which are set out as follows:

AL,
AE)ATE =i BEITRBERA FEfh 1 TEEH
Place of
incorporation/  Issued and fully paid
Name of company operations share capital Attributable equity interest  Principal activities
= f
Directly Indirectly
FREEEEAERAR HBEHAREE 3370258 K10 100% - RERERR
B £337,025% 7T
EGL Management Group Company BVI 337,025 shares Investment holding
Limited totalling United States dollar
(‘US$”) 337,025
BRERTHBERAT BN 3,315,000 Z3@H% - - 100% HRERITE ERTERKRED
3,315,000 7T MR THERE MR R
EGL Tours Company Limited Hong Kong 3,315,000 ordinary shares Provision of package tours, FIT
totalling HK$3,315,000 Products and ancillary travel
related products and services
FRERTH (BE) BRAS BN 221REBR - 100% fRftEHANEERTE 5 H
AH221ET TERRENMRKTERER
KB
EGL Tours (Japan) Company Limited Hong Kong 221 ordinary shares Provision of outbound package
totalling HK$221 tours, FIT Products and
ancillary travel related products
and services in Japan
BERITHARAT BN 550,000 & % - - 100% EEER
&$550,000 7T
i-Evertravel Company Limited Hong Kong 550,000 ordinary shares Inactive
totalling HK$550,000
FRIEBIRITH (RF) BRAS i 1,800,000 7t - 100% HRERITE ERTERKRED
BRI REER R RS
EGL Tours (Macau) Company Limited Macau Macau Pataca (‘MOP”) Provision of package tours, FIT
1,800,000 Products and ancillary travel

related products and services

190 S=FE#HZERAERAS  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



MR EE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2021F12H31HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

34. WBAT @& 34. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

G AT
RE%AHE E=piuk BEITRBERAE FEfLBR1E TEREH
Place of
incorporation/  Issued and fully paid
Name of company operations share capital Attributable equity interest  Principal activities
E#% f
Directly Indirectly
iRk CRYI) BRAR) FE BRERAE - 100% R ARER AR KA AT E
AR 13,850,0007T
EGL Tours (Shenzhen) The PRC Paid up capital of Renminbi Provision of inbound and local

Company Limited*

(RMB’) 3,850,000

package tours in the PRC

BREER (BF) BRAE HESARES 100RER - 100% HEEK
& $1,000E7T
EGL Holdings (Nippon) Limited BVI 100 shares Investment holding
totalling US$1,000
B &4 Zipang. S. S* HA 4758 %1 - 80% R EXEERES LR
("Zipang 1) A$£23,750,0008
Kabushiki Kaisha Zipang. S. S* Japan 475 shares Provision of travel bus services in
(“Zipang”) totalling JPY23,750,000 Japan
R R ) BRAF ERERRES 1008MKM0% - 100% HEEK
& $1,000E7T
EGL Holdings (Asia) Limited BVI 100 shares Investment holding
totalling US$1,000
FREREEAERAT HBAARES 1008KRH - 100% REER
BH100ETT
EGL Investment Group BVI 100 shares Investment holding
Company Limited totalling US$100
EGL Market Company Limited & 1REER - 100% REEXZE®
FRRREEZBRAS) BHRIET
EGL Market Company Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Trading of goods in Hong Kong
(formerly known as “EGL Trading totalling HK$1
Company Limited”)
EXSERERAT HREBRES 1RRH - 100% HBEER
BRIET
Ebisu Holdings Company Limited BVI 1 share Investment holding

totalling US$1
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34. MEBAE @

34. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

SR,
AE)ATE =i BEREITRBERA FEfh e TEEH
Place of
incorporation/  Issued and fully paid
Name of company operations share capital Attributable equity interest  Principal activities
EX EibEd
Directly Indirectly
EEERERRAT BN 1REBER - 100% REZR
b
Ebisu Investment Company Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Investment holding
totalling HK$1
Ebisu Growth Limited* B BRERA - 100% %A BERLEHNBEE
10,000,000H
Ebisu Growth Limited* Japan Paid up capital of Ownership, development and
JPY10,000,000 management of hotel in Japan
East Global Limited" B BRERA - 100% %A BERLEHNBEE
10,000,000H
East Global Limited* Japan Paid up capital of Ownership, development and
JPY10,000,000 management of hotel in Japan
FREES (AX) EEERAT EBEBREE 1RRM - 100% REZR
CEIET
EGL Trading (Japan) Group BVI 1 share Investment holding
Company Limited totalling US$1
FREES (B BRAH &% 1REER - 100% EEER
b
EGL Trading (Japan) Company Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Inactive

- RS TR E it 58 )

totalling HK$1

*

English name for identification purpose only

¢ BREEREMOIIEEERE

HZE2020F12B31HIEEE  EF—KHBAQ
BEURTHRMBRAE (FEEES H62%
%) Bt o Bl E2021F12B31HILEFE W
HME2ENBAR RERFEES (HEX) £EERA
BREREREES (HA) BRAB ML

BENBARNRSARETEAREES -

192 =mEEERARAR  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

registered as a wholly-foreign owned enterprise under the
PRC law

During the year ended 31 December 2020, one of the
subsidiaries, Hit Travel Service Co. Ltd, which is 62% owned
by the Group, was deregistered. During the year ended
31 December 2021, EGL Trading (Japan) Group Company
Limited and EGL Trading (Japan) Company Limited, two
wholly-owned subsidiaries, were incorporated.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the reporting period.
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36.

35. JEIERG 35. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
FEEREZEEFENR2021F12831HAY The net liabilities of non-controlling interests as at 31
1,603,0008 7T (20204 : 950,000 7T) " HZA December 2021 were approximately HK$1,603,000 (2020:
ZipangfE (b R A fE 7 o HK$950,000) which were attributable to the non-controlling

interest of Zipang.
ZM B AT IEIE R EFZ R AL RE A The non-controlling interests of the subsidiary are considered
to be immaterial.
FAEL X5 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
R IEEHERERNEMI O REREZR In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
FeiEed N BARE S EIT 2R BT - elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the
following transactions were carried out with related parties:
@ RAFEEA[ELIRS (@ Significant related party transactions during the year
2021 2020
izt FHET FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
SUFREEABZHEE Rental paid to a related company
—KEfT - Great Port () 8,784 12,704
A FREARZAE Interest paid to a related company
—KRET — Great Port (i 1,089 =
FIBMERITE EMRTERK  Amount received for provision of
BB M k1T AR BA 2E T A AR S package tours, FIT Products and
mEIEA B W 2 £ 58 ancillary travel related products and
services from a related company
—KRET — Great Port (i) - 33
FIRMIRTTE  BM{TEMA  Costs charged by associates regarding
BN M ARTT AR A S A AR TS the provision of package tours, FIT
HEE A BIME 2 & B Products and ancillary travel related
products and services
—EGLA4E - EGL Okinawa (i) = 3,036
—EGLEEE - EGL Korea (i) - 2,486
—HB# — Niti Niti Travel (i) - 780
mRAE R B R Purchase from a related company
—Hush Home Hong Kong — Hush Home Hong Kong Limited
Limited (i) - 1,483
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36. FERRXS &=
@) REEEEAGESXS (@)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)  Significant related party transactions during the year

Mt -

() ZNFHERTAZEERAZTBRESES
BEPREAEREFBEARNRIIZHEE

TR IR RETT °
iy ZERZHEREHEEZIFRET

AABATESRAEE - BRE REEN
FUITNRRETZEFTIFEARETZ
P o

Hush Home Hong Kong Limitedz M — A% 58
RBEENLZ R

PREXFIIREEIN REERNELREE
RERRE > A A HEE AN E QSR
BIUBARREFTEAEAEDZIER

PAN
S48 o
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(Continued)

Notes:

(i) Rental expenses paid to a related company were
conducted in the normal course of business and in
accordance with terms of the lease agreements entered
into between the Group and the related company.

(i) The transactions were conducted on the basis of
mutually agreed terms.

The executive directors of the Company, Mr. Yuen, Mr.
Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee, are also directors and
have equity interests in Great Port.

The sole shareholder of Hush Home Hong Kong
Limited is the daughter of Mr. Huen.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.
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36. FEFRS @& 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

b) FEELEER (b) Loans from a related company

R2021%F12831H  KREMEAT ZE®M

£ Loans from a related company represented five loans
IBRERRXARBTHNRAEER AEERFHE

due to Great Port at as 31 December 2021. The details

W NPT . of the five loans were shown as below:
=E EMRRIH A X% REERBH GiES
Loan Loan Principal Final Interest
number drawdown date amount repayment date rate
1 20204E3827H 80,000,0007 75 202651818 s
27 March 2020 HK$80,000,000 1 January 2026 Interest free
2 2020488 27H 80,000,0007 75 2026518181 s
27 August 2020 HK$80,000,000 1 January 2026 Interest free
3 2020 12829H 40,000,0007 7 2026F151H FRERH—EA
BBRITEZEREM.E%
29 December 2020 HK$40,000,000 1 January 2026 One-month HIBOR
plus 1.5% per annum
4 202154810 40,000,000 7t 20261818 FHEH—EAR
BERITEEREM 0%
1 April 2021 HK$40,000,000 1 January 2026 One-month HIBOR
plus 1.5% per annum
5 20214E11829R 80,000,000 7t 20261518 ENERAH—ER
BBRITEZEREMN.60%
29 November 2021 HK$80,000,000 1 January 2026 One-month HIBOR
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36. FERRXS &=

b) FHELGE )

R2020F12831H F—F£HEREM
BF_EMBELERRE=EHEHFERE
MEZERERGERMOERREEE
R2021FE3B18H » KBTI ZE ER HE
FIElNZEREBERRDIZEL =M%
E-FARRBEREBERRERAHEZ=
FEMEHEREST At tE=FEFHRN
2021435 18HE#& ILHERR ©

IE=F 8/ MN2021F3818A URENA
NEBEEEMERAMEREE BABR
FREAHL8% - =FEERNRATEEA
NABEZEEEA4938,5679,0007 7T
HRAERENREZFPHREERZA L
—E£E5RN2021F3H18H R EMDEA
FERBEE

FNEEBEHERRBHEMNESE B
BERFEN XL 4% - FOERESERBHR
THAYERIBZANBEZEERALY
5,033,00078 7T » R AR BRI T
BREELRRA

FEREMERERIZBHMRAE BA
BERFHNEEA% - FREMEHERNAK

THRAVNRERIZAANABEZERRAN
10,272,00078 7T > M AR RN Em
WRRBERRA
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

®)

Loans from a related company (Continued)

The first related party loan, the second related party
loan and the third related party loan with repayment
on demand clause were classified as current liabilities
as at 31 December 2020. On 18 March 2021, Great
Port issued 3 waiver letters in respect of demand
clauses stated in those loan agreements respectively.
As the waiver of the repayment on demand clause
was considered as a significant modification of these 3
loans, these 3 loans were derecognised as at 18 March
2021.

These 3 loans were re-recognised as new loan
liabilities at their fair values as at 18 March 2021,
using the effective interest rate of 4.8% per annum.
The difference of the original principal amounts and
the fair values of these 3 loans of approximately
HK$38,579,000 was recognised as a deemed capital
contribution from the shareholders in equity. These 3
loans were reclassified as non-current liabilities from 18
March 2021 onwards.

The fourth related party loan was carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate of 4.4% per
annum. The difference of the principal amount and
the fair value of the fourth related party loan at initial
recognition of approximately HK$5,033,000 was
recognised as deemed capital contribution from the
shareholders in equity.

The fifth related party loan was carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate of 5.1% per
annum. The difference of the principal amount and
the fair value of the fifth related party loan at initial
recognition of approximately HK$10,272,000 was
recognised as deemed capital contribution from the
shareholders in equity.
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36. FEARXZ @ 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
© EEZEBASZFH (c) Compensation of key management personnel
REE BEEREMTEETEBAEREZ The remuneration of directors and other members of
e key management during the year was as follows:
2021 2020
TFHT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ZHiEEEH Short-term employee benefits 5,034 5,293
BEE BB A Post-employment benefits 162 179
5,196 5,472
@) JEU - TETHTE L\ Gk 2 T (d) The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are
BERIEEREE unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.
37. BAKIE 37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
EHEAERNEEYX BEELENEREX Capital commitments in respect of capital expenditure of
ZENREENT acquisition of property, plant and equipment for the Group

are as follows:

2021 2020

FHET FH7T

HK$’000 HK$’000

B ANEREE Contracted but not provided for 790 1,020

20214E% Annual Report 2021 197



BA#53R 3R FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMRHmRM T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B ZE2021F128331H IEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

38. ExEMEEIE 38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

rERZESEERREE

@ HERAEEFEKEZED UFEBRR
RAVE O3 Ko 2 BAth =50 & 2K A a5

b) XFHAEENRERER; K

© mMRAEERREEENRIES-

FEERBEOBRESTRREFTNGE FBAER
Bt BAEN RtEBEREABMNELR
RBERBEMERER S Rl AE AR IS E
ERER LURFREAGHENRREIRERIER
Ko REBMERAKBEMNERNREER

AEREEEAGHE  TREBEEERTHEEH
HREEZARSREHETHE - BER R
BEAER AEEHRRKTRRZKRE S EIFLH
AE -BORREEBES BITHR - HEEHN
HEBELURILE

AN EEEREDBEARAELR - R2021
FERK2020F12B31HZEXSE DN AN
122,294,00078 7t 52251,633,00078 7T > B IR E &L
EREEFEERERENELABEI RBEE
REEMRER TR DRBIEBAKTE
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The Group’s capital management objectives include:

(@) to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

(b)  to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(c) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholders’ returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows and capital expenditures, and potential strategic
investment opportunities. The Group does not currently
adopt any formal dividend policy.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debts or
sell assets to reduce debt.

Management of the Company regards total equity as
capital. The amount of capital as at 31 December 2021
and 2020 amounted to approximately HK$122,294,000
and HK$251,633,000 respectively, which the management
considers as optimal having considered the projected
operating cash flows and capital expenditures and the
potential projected strategic investment opportunities.
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38. EERAMEIE @ 38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
R2021F %2020F 12831 H FEE H IR The net debt-to-equity ratio as at 31 December 2021 and
=EEERYTF . 2020 were as follows:

2021 2020

FHEIT FHIT

HK$’000 HK$’'000

&% (Wa0) Debt (note(i)) 740,894 736,084
BRI ERREGFRE Less: Cash at banks and on hand (130,133) (98,787)
EETS Net debt 610,761 637,297
RS (Ba#() Equity (note(ii) 123,897 252,583
FEBHREREGEX Net debt-to-equity ratio 493% 252%

Mt -

(i)

(i

BEHEERTER HEAGRBEAREMR
HEF B0 B # M 5E26 ~ 155236(b) ©

REEDEIFEA A RBER AEMGRE R
o

Notes:

(i) Debt comprised bank borrowings, lease liabilities and loans
from a related company as detailed in notes 26, 15 and 36(b)

respectively.

(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners

of the Company.
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39. MIFERAEEIE

FEFTAZEFBEETERENX - EE R
B INERE EFEEHEEAUDTREIE
EMEEFEBFEE SRR (BEFEK
SNEEXRFLEEAET)  FERABRABES
B —fRME > AEE 5L AR E EREFRT R
B o

@ FIEEfE
AEEARSHERTERAELNTER
B hkREEBIRITERMEENIREREZ
) 2 & B o

20215 AEBNAREFERB KA BME
MZBE LG LUBEH) B M A o | i
EEXD2EMEEEREAERZRERE
RAMETE - F Rz UK PREREE
DA ERA R o

AEENRTEFHANBITERNIRTS
BHERRHMARREEREZFREAR -
AEREERAHAEEEERAIRITERT
REBLEAER EHRFRBRITERE
e BT HEIAEE -

el R 2= 5 B )38 0 3L R 5 % m P B E A Al
BEFRARFRFAE MAEENFERIE
T RETES IR SIE 10 (20204 (R &
A AN R D) £9197,00078 7T (20204 :
164,000 7T) » B&E E2020F12831H 1E
FEERIENEARCH SRS 03 mE »
4348,000 B o BREZ M XL H HEm Y
HhEn g 2o
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposures to interest rate, credit, liquidity and foreign

currency risks arise in the normal course of the Group’s

business. The board of directors meets periodically to

analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group’s

exposure to market risk (including principal changes in

interest rates and foreign currency rates), credit risk and

liquidity risk. Generally, the Group employs a conservative

strategy regarding risk management.

@

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising from
bank deposits and cash flow interest rate risk arising
from bank borrowings at floating rate.

During 2021, the Group aimed to maintain a suitable
proportion of fixed and floating rate borrowings in order
to stabilise interest costs. Interest rate hedging ratio is
determined after taking into consideration of the market
trend and the Group’s cash flow pattern. Interest
rate swap was employed to hedge exposures or to
modify the interest rate characteristics of the Group’s
borrowings.

The Group’s bank balances expose it to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The directors of
the Group consider the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risk in respect of bank balances is not significant
as interest-bearing bank deposits are within short
maturity periods in general.

If the interest rates had been increased or decreased
by 5% at the beginning of the year and all other
variables were held constant, would decrease or
increase the Group’s loss for the year and accumulated
losses (2020: increase or decrease retained earnings)
by approximately HK$197,000 (2020: HK$164,000)
and the capitalised interest on construction in
progress would have been increased or decreased
by approximately HK$48,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020. The assumed changes have no
impact on the other components of equity.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

(@

(b)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The increase or decrease by 5% represents directors’
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the year until the end of next reporting
period.

Crediit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under its terms and cause a financial loss to
the Group.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from granting credits to customers in the
ordinary course of its operations and is limited to the
carrying amounts of financial assets recognised at the
end of the reporting period, as summarised in note
39(f).

The Group’s trade and other receivables are actively
monitored to avoid significant concentrations of credit
risk. The Group is not exposed to any significant
credit risk from any single counterparty or any group
of counterparties having similar characteristics. The
Group’s bank balances are deposited with major banks
in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC and Japan. The Group
has no other significant exposure to credit risk.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime ECLs provision for all trade
receivables. The Group always measures the loss
allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. The ECLs on trade receivables are
estimated by reference to past default experience of
the debtor and current market condition in relation to
each debtor’s exposure. The ECLs also incorporated
forward-looking information with reference to general
macroeconomic conditions that may affect the ability of
the debtors to settle receivables. To measure the ECLs,
the trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due
according to the ageing as disclosed in note 20.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

®)

Credit risk (Continued)

Expected loss rate of trade receivables are assessed to
be 0.5%, 1%, 5% and 10% for the amounts less than
30 days, 60 days, 90 days past due and over 90 days
past due respectively. The directors of the Company
considered the loss allowance provision for trade
receivables was immaterial during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

The Group takes into account the historical default
experience and forward-looking information, as
appropriate, for example the Group considers
the consistently low historical default rates of
counterparties, and concludes that credit risk inherent
in the Group’s outstanding other receivables is
insignificant. The Group has assessed that other
receivables do not have a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition and risk of default is
insignificant, therefore the ECLs for these receivables
were immaterial under the 12-month ECLs method and
no loss allowance provision was recognised for both
years.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

With respect to credit risk arising from the amounts
due from a related company and an associate, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from repayment
default of counterparties is limited as the counterparties
have good credit history and sound financial position,
and the Group does not expect any significant loss of
uncollected advances from these entities.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit
risk associated with cash at banks since they are
deposited with credit worthy financial institutions.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

(b)

()

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
throughout the year and are considered to be effective.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
other financial assets.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements in the short and long
terms. The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent
on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from
operations to meet its debt obligations. The Group
relies on internally generated funds as a significant
source of liquidity.
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39. BAFER ﬁ%iﬂ #) 39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
© mEELEE @ (c)  Liquidity risk (Continued)
TREYBEHARAEFIETESHRER The following tables show the remaining contractual
EfMEsmaEGREXRGERRESRE (8 maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
ELAAF R RS HERBETHE (N Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative
FE) FstENFENR) SHNEGREL financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash
EmBEEEAERN B NNERFEHE flows (including interest payments computed using

contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

aNAEERE  —FMA -ENb  mENb
REE REREME  IHEX EFEBWME EFEBRIE  IENL

Total Within Over Over

contractual one year oneyear  two years
Carrying undiscounted oron  butwithin  but within Over
amount  cash flows demand  twoyears  fiveyears five years

TER TER TER TER TER TER
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

2021

e Non-derivatives:

BSEMR Trade payables 5,220 5,220 5,220 - - -
EstRER MR Accruals and other payables 23,506 23,506 23,506 = = =
Efi e ARERR Amount due to an associate 12 12 12 = = =
BEAFER Loans from a related company 272,874 320,000 - - 320,000 -
RITER Bank borrowings 420,118 426,841 241,479 8,059 24,178 153,125
HEER Lease liabilties 47,902 49,392 41,297 7,107 988 -

769,632 824,971 311,514 15,166 345,166 153,125
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

BRRMER —ER —ElE mENML
REE Rens8E FRER EFBEME BFEBLE EENE
Total Within Over Over
contractual one year one year two years
Carrying  undiscounted or on but within but within Over
amount  cash flows demand two years five years five years
TER TER TER TET TER TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2020
277 Non-derivatives:
BEEMER Trade payables 4,950 4,950 4,950 - - -
Rt AR EMENR Accruals and other payables 40,703 40,703 40,703 - - -
EABEATRR Amount due to an associate 79 79 79 = - -
HEARER Loans from a related company 200,000 200,000 200,000 - - -
TR Bank borrowings 476,796 484,828 51,220 41,373 118,056 274,179
fEaR Lease liabilities 59,288 61,327 42,508 17,942 877 -
781,816 791,887 339,460 59,315 118,933 274,179
it . Derivatives:
BREE Net settled
GilEscy:a Interest rate swaps 642 895 367 297 231 =

ZREBEEADER W ZFAHONESR
HARTESREREEREROER
BN E - ZE BRI AE BN BRI
EETRAHEATDRAIEETENER
ERAFER - EFHRE RFTERRERR
ERMmEEAOEERQHREES-

The table summarises the maturity analysis of loans

from a related company with a repayment on demand

clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set

out in the loan agreements. Taking into account the

Group’s financial position, the directors do not consider

that it is probable that the related company will exercise

its discretion to demand immediate repayment. The

directors believe that such loans will be repaid in

accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set

out in the loan agreements.
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39. MFEREEIE @

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

© mEELEE @ (c)  Liquidity risk (Continued)
ARRER  -FMR —£Mb  RENL
REE RERELE  AREX BTEERE BFEBRE  IENE
Total Within Over Over
contractual one year oneyear  two years
Carrying undiscounted oron  butwithin  but within Over
amount  cash flows demand two years five years five years
TR TR TR THER TR THER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2020F12/831H 31 December 2020 200,000 200,000 - - - 200,000
@ SrEE R (d) Foreign currency risk

SNERBIE-—EERMIAZAREBEINHA
SRR IR & 7 8 (K] S B B =R B 8 T 3% 4 O B
Z R o

REMAZTINER R - % FE AR B UIE
AEBMERBMNINESEE 2 EBIRHIKIT
“BEBEITER RES TR EEM R
THEMERRRBEE 2 WG URIRE
SR A BB MRS AR AR TS 2~ IR B A A
R EmEEEBME - NAEE AEEH
#96.2% (20204 : 48.2%) Z B2 K2 £90.7%
(20204 : 5.4%) 2 WU IEREBERS
MIhRE G > &5t E o
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Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group has foreign currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the revenue from provision of
package tours, FIT Products, travel bus services,
ancillary travel related products and services as well as
costs of services consumed in hotel accommodation
and ancillary hotel related services and costs of sale
of merchandises business in currencies other than
the Group entities’ functional currency. Approximately
6.2% (2020: 48.2%) of costs and approximately 0.7%
(2020: 5.4%) of the Group’s revenue are denominated
in currencies other than the Group entities’ functional
currency for the year.



e M B RN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2021F12H31HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

39. A ERERE @

(@

SR ()

7 & [ [F) B I BR S HS LB - 5% 5 LR 2R B
REEMBEZEGFLFAEERETRNI
FEERKZEBHE AEERREHRU
SN EZEREERERZREEN
T

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

(@)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group also has foreign currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the balances of assets and
liabilities in currencies other than the Group entities’
functional currency. The carrying amounts of the foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2021 2020
THT FHB7T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BE Assets

H JPY 46,659 52,166
NG RMB 3,811 3,974
50,470 56,140

afE Liabilities
H JPY 24,293 28,244
NG RMB - 138
24,293 28,382
BIEEFE BB RIS FE R ~ S H5h 55 R The management monitors foreign currency exposure

SMERFE - BEEEEHIFTER  HEREHR
EREEHESE ZIINERR -

RORPITTEBITE R R EM > EFR
HAEEMRPITZINERBRILEAEK

by closely monitoring the movements of foreign
currency rates. The management has set up a policy to
require group entities to manage their foreign exchange
risk against their respective functional currency.

The directors consider that the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk in respect of MOP is not
significant because MOP’s fluctuation with HK$ is
immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change
in the Group’s loss for the year and (accumulated
losses)/retained earnings in response to reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis
includes balances between Group companies where
the denomination of the balances is in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the lender or
the borrower. A positive number below indicates a
decrease in loss and an increase in other equity where
the HK$ strengthens against the relevant currency. For
a weakening of the HK$ against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
loss and other equity, and the balances below would
be negative. The 5% change in foreign exchange
rate is used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s best assessment of the possible
changes in foreign exchange rates.

The following sensitivity analysis has been determined
based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign

1RIFAE . exchange rates taking place at the beginning of the
reporting year and held constant throughout the year:
2021 2020
FEFERREE FERBE (gm Ed
(g /Ed RERERFEM (RL)
(Increase)/decrease
(Increase)/decrease in loss for the year
in loss for the year and increase/(decrease)
and accumulated losses in retained earnings
H AR H AR
JPY RMB JPY RMB
THET FTAT THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EXEE: Changes in exchange rate:
BT RINEFES% HKS$ appreciates by 5% against
the foreign currencies (934) (159) (999) (160)
BT RIMERZE5% HK$ depreciates by 5% against
the foreign currencies 934 159 999 160
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea)

(e)

Fair value

The following table provides an analysis of financial

instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value

hierarchy:
F—H: HEREEIEEREEMEZ Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
B CREHAE) ; markets for identical assets or liabilities;
FETHR . BT E—RFIOEZHREIN Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included
ZEENEEZIERRE A within Level 1 that are observable for the
%> A ABE BUER) ik asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
ErRBEER) ; K& or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and
=4 BEENEBUIFREIEHEZED Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are
B ZEASE CRo SRR A not based on observable market data
) o (unobservable inputs).
20214 120204
12H31H 12831H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
FHET TFET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EREEE Non-current assets
TTEERMTA Derivative financial instrument 4% Level 2 533 =
JEREaE Non-current liabilities
TEEMITA Derivative financial instrument FE 4R Level 2 - 642

B E2021FE KX2020FE12831HIEEFEE &
4R > RS SIE SRR RS o

MM RAABEREEBRFT RAHE
MERIEHENTNTNEEFRE I
BEPREULEHRGORTRIESZTZ
fhEtE8R

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
there was no transfer between levels.

The fair value of interest rate swap is the estimated

amount that the Group would receive or pay to

terminate the swaps at the end of the reporting period,

taking into account observable interest rates and the

current creditworthiness of the swap counterparties.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

category

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated

B statement of financial position related to the following

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

2021 2020
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ETMEE Financial assets
HEEM ATt E L Financial assets measured at
TREE amortised cost:
B 5 EWER Trade receivables 3,210 1,709
5] & K ELfh FE IR BR Deposits and other receivables 13,725 22,303
FE W Bt 2 B BR R Amount due from an associate 6,290 7,022
EIRRITIERR Pledged bank deposits 8,326 8,578
RITERKEFRE Cash at banks and on hand 130,133 98,787
161,684 138,399
EEREANEETA Financial asset designated at FVTPL:
BN EMEE .
MERIASH Interest rate swap contract 533 =
TREE Financial liabilities
BEEMAStE Y Financial liabilities measured at
THEE amortised cost:
B 5 AR Trade payables 5,220 4,950
FEST R IE K HHAFE (T BR Accruals and other payables 23,506 40,703
FE{T B & A Bl AR R Amount due to an associate 12 79
REANTERN Loans from a related company 272,874 200,000
RITIERR Bank borrowings 420,118 476,796
HE&E Lease liabilities 47,902 59,288
769,632 781,816
EEREANEETA Financial liability designated at FVTPL:
BalEMmaE
MERIAGH Interest rate swap contract - 642
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40.

MEBEESFMEEERZHER

TR AEERELTIMELEREIH ZF

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

15 . arising from financing activities:
RITEN HESE TEaE BEREX
Bank Lease Derivative Loans from
borrowings liabilities liability  a related party
(Mrzt26) (Mt 15) (azzs)  (Ha36mb))
(note 26) (note 15) (note 28) (note 36(b))
TAT TAT TAT TAT
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
12020F181H At 1 January 2020 372,875 67,826 1,304 -
MERSRELHE . Changes from financing cash flows:
RITETERE Proceeds from bank borrowings 251,259 = = -
BENE BN Advance from a related company = = = 200,000
BERTER Repayment of bank borrowings (165,742) = = =
EfHERENESHS Principal element of lease rental paid - (29,592) - =
BENHEERENF S Interest element of lease rental paid = (2,575) = =
BAFE Interest paid (4,973) = (419 =
RERERELEEE Total changes from financing
cash flows 80,544 (32,167) (419 200,000
ERAE Exchange adjustments 20,626 13 40 =
HitnEEes Other changes:
FERX Interest expense 4,951 2,575 419 =
BXERFHAE Transaction costs capitalised (1,948) = = =
BIERARE2 Effect on modification of
loan payment (252) - - -
B Addition - 26,185 - -
RIEHEE Termination of lease - (1,137) - =
HEE AR Gain on rental concession - (4,007) = =
NN Fair value change = = (702) =
Hhes e Total other changes 2,751 23,616 (283) =
720205128318 At 31 December 2020 476,796 59,288 642 200,000
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40. MEEREFTELXBRZHKR® 40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)
TR AEERS IHMELSEEEE) =5 The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
1% . arising from financing activities:
i3=V-v4
RITEM HEER (BE) HEREX
Bank Lease Derivative Loans from
borrowings liabilities liability/(asset) a related party
(Hat26) (Hr£15) (Mszzs)  (Hiazsew)
(note 26) (note 15) (note 28) (note 36(b))
TAT TAT TAT FTAT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
R2021E181H At 1 January 2021 476,796 59,288 642 200,000
MERERELEE Changes from financing cash flows:
BE N BB Advance from a related company = = = 120,000
ERIBTER Repayment of bank borrowings (10,427) - - =
ENHERASNEASED Principal element of lease rental paid - (17,634) - -
ENAERSNA S Interest element of lease rental paid - (1,940) - -
BAFE Interest paid (3,888) - (352) (1,089)
MERSRELHLR Total changes from financing
cash flows (14,315) (19,574) (352) 118,911
R AR Exchange adjustments (46,769) (48) 42 -
HtEEE . Other changes:
FERY Interest expense 4,715 1,940 352 7,847
BIERIRZTE Effect on modification of
loan payment (309) - - -
RE Addition - 10,029 - -
RIS Termination of lease - (663) - -
HEE R Gain on rental concession - (3,070) - -
RABHEEE Fair value change - - (1,133) -
BRERZA Deemed capital contribution - - = (53,884)
Htn&s)85 Total other changes 4,406 8,236 (781) (46,037)
1R2021FE12831H At 31 December 2021 420,118 47,902 (533) 272,874

212 mEEERARAR  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



e M B RN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2021F12H31HLEEE For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. IREBHREFIERCOVID-19Z 1B Z &

(@ BE2022FE1B1HZE3H25H AEBEAR
MAREEREEHAENBEIIESER -
ZEHcERENHAEEERRLY
86,0007 7T °

(b) EABEF{NAEFFEHCOVID-19BIBH A&
EEMEEZEBENFE-RFCOVID-19
BEFENKEERECKE ZBNFESRE
FE AERYNERREEANEERE
EREPRH] > WA REF2022F EE E E R
8 o 2R > COVID-19% [E £12022F &R T~ BF
BREFREENEREE L EATER -

42, LEBREF

mEEEREMEEARERPHUTER#T
BEMDHR UNEGEEEAFEZ 25K

e ERMEBEERTEFTEZTHEREIL
43,133, OOO%EEE%’\*EfﬁQ&ﬁZZﬁK’
URFEFFEEMREAZES-

o Mt sE8PR IR B8 491,277,00078 7o I 1T BB X
EEMDEAEMKERRS

BEFERA BEBRBEFIEEZEHDEHEAE
BEHE2020F 1283 1HIEFEZGE6ER A
EEmBERTER K

41.

42.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE AND
EFFECT OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

(a)

From 1 January to 25 March 2022, the Group agreed
to additional rent concessions with lessors relating to
rental in Hong Kong. These rent concessions resulted
in a total reduction in lease liabilities of approximately
HK$86,000.

The directors of the Company are continuing to assess
the implications of the COVID-19 pandemic to the
business in which the Group operates. Depending on
the duration of the COVID-19 pandemic and continued
negative impact on economic activity, the Group
might experience further negative results, and liquidity
restraints and incur impairments on its assets in 2022.
However, the exact impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
in the remainder of 2022 and thereafter cannot be
predicted.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The following comparative figures in consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income have been

reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation of

the Group:

Reclassification of administrative expenses regarding
the depreciation of hotel rooms in amount of
approximately HK$43,133,000 to cost of sales to fairly
present the nature of costs incurred.

Reclassification of administrative expenses disclosed
in note 8 in amount of approximately HK$1,277,000 to
other operating expenses.

In the opinion of the Board, the reclassification made to

the comparative figures has insignificant impact on the

Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December

2020.

20214E% Annual Report 2021 213



&) 52
Glossary

P022FEREEERS
2022 AGM

A EIE4mE]
Articles of Association

BEE
Board

RBEERRHS
BVI

tEEATH
CG Code

RABHERBEZER
Company or EGL Holdings

COVID-19
COVID-19

=

Director(s)

RIRERITI
EGL Tours

12 B8
Evergloss

BT
FIT

BHTE®
FIT Products

REIT
Great Port

AABBERRBFEANG

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company

RABINERESTNKET REFAESZAEA
the amended and restated articles of association of the Company, as amended from
time to time

Exg

the board of Directors

RBEBRES
British Virgin Islands

EHRBIM SR 4PR E R B E B A PR
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

REEZERBRRAE (BRMHRSE 0 6882)
EGL Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6882)

2019 IR ImH R
coronavirus disease 2019

KNABIEE
the director(s) of the Company

REERITHBERAS AREIZEREERE AR
EGL Tours Company Limited, being an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

REEEERFRAR ARRZEKEE (TEREFRBERG)
Evergloss Management Group Company Limited, being an associated corporation
(as defined under the SFO) of the Company

B BHKRE
free independent travellers

BHRTEZERERKE TR

FIT packages and individual travel elements

RETERRB ITEFZHEA

Great Port Limited, being an associate of the Executive Directors
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KER
Group
BT
HKD/HK$

ERMBRSER]
HKFRSs

=]
JPY

BE
Kwok Lai

I BR
Likang

LERA
Listing Rules

fEEpa

Model Code

BT
MOP

HEBEOR B REREE

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot

Spring Hotel

KIEDFBIE
Osaka Hinode Hotel

KRB REWBAE
the Company and its subsidiaries

BT BBEEE

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEEGMAGERN(ERYBRSER)
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants

BHE HERZEEE
Japanese yen, the lawful currency of Japan

BEEZERERAR BEEEREZ—
Kwok Lai Holdings Limited, being one of the shareholders of Evergloss

NERBRAR BEEEREZ—
Likang Limited, being one of the shareholders of Evergloss

WX PreR s LR Al
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

EHRAIMER10PR SR E T ANE R ETE ST 7 NIRESTEY
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

BFITT O RFTNEE B
Macau Pataca, the lawful currency of Macau

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel CH4E:2D¥ B RERAIS) » ZNEE
AABEEZE AL

Okinawa Hinode Resort & Hot Spring Hotel CH4B32D ¥ 38 R EBRASE) , the Group’s
second-owned hotel in Japan

Osaka Hinode Hotel (KBxRDFIEE) > REBN B AER 2 BSOS
Osaka Hinode Hotel (KFr3EDFAEIE) , the Group’s first-owned hotel in Japan
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RE
PRC

55 M EIE IR A
SFO

&

Share(s)

FER ST 3
Share Option Scheme

e
Shareholder(s)

TR
sq.ft.

75K
sg.m.

B2 PR
Stock Exchange

REE

Year

thE A R F1E
the People’s Republic of China

&5 R BRG] (BA LB HEE71E)
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

PN/NSIL )
the share(s) of the Company

AT B2014F 11 BEERMBI B IR 5T 8

share option scheme adopted by the Company since November 2014

e SEST= PN
the holder(s) of the Share(s)

FHR
square feet

7K
square meter(s)

BEMERXBMBERAF
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BHZE20215F12831HIEEFE
the year ended 31 December 2021
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RomiE IR B R A A

EGL Holdings Company Limited

(MBS EEMARZNBERDR)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

2555 Stock Code : 6882

RmEER AR A" EGL Holdings Company Limited

it @ BB N ERYEREESIN R E S 1512 / S jﬁﬁgﬂ:ﬁ"
Address : 15/F, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong FSC ﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁiﬁiwﬁﬁggé
43k Website : www.egltours.com/travel/pages/investor_relations/#eng wicoy  FSC™ 126259
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